

## 7500 Maple Avenue Takoma Park, MD, 20912

City of Takoma Park IFB No. PW-20180208

Lincoln Avenue Sidewalk Construction

Federal Aid Project No. TAP-3(533)E State Contract No. MO4665112

Bids are due by 3:30 pm on March 9, 2018

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

CITY OF TAKOMA PARK SUPPLEMENTAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS	4
BIDDER QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION STATEMENT	6
CERTIFICATION OF NON-INVOLVEMENT IN THE NUCLEAR WEAPONS INDUSTRY	9
LIVING WAGE REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION	10
NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS	
ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP	13
CARGO PREFERENCE ACT (CPA)	
CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS	16
CONTRACT PROVISIONS	17
(NCHRP) REPORT 350 AND MASH COMPLIANCE	17
DEVICES (MDMUTCD) REQUIREMENTS	
OCCUPYING WETLANDSFORM FHWA 1273	
DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS	
MBE/DBE COMPLIANCE FIELD MEETING	
TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN CERTIFICATION	
PREVAILING WAGE	
NOTICE OF ACTIONS REQUIRED FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTIONTRAINING PROVISIONS	
HIGH VISIBILITY SAFETY APPAREL POLICY	
SPECIAL PROVISIONS	
PROJECT DESCRIPTION	
NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR – REQUEST FOR INFORMATION, ETC.	
NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR – EARLY SUBMISSIONS	
GENERAL PROVISIONS	72
BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS	72
LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC - GP-7.22 NONHIRING OF EMPLOYEES LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC – GP 7.34 CONFLICT OF INTEREST LAW	
TERMS AND CONDITIONS	84
TC-SECTION 2 BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS	84
TC-SECTION 2 BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS TC-2.12 DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION	90
TC-SECTION 4 CONTROL OF WORK TC-4.02 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN PROJECT	
TC-SECTION 7 PAYMENT TC-7.09 PRICE ADJUSTMENT FOR DIESEL FUEL	
CATEGORY 100 PRELIMINARY	95
SECTION 103—ENGINEERS OFFICE – 103.03.06 MICROCOMPUTER SYSTEM	
SECTION 104 — MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC – 104.01 TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN (TCP)	
SECTION 104 — MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC – 104.21 CELLULAR TELEPHONES SECTION 114 — DIGITAL CAMERA	
SECTION 120—TREE PRESERVATION	
CATEGORY 200 GRADING	. 110
SECTION 203 — BORROW EXCAVATION	110
SECTION 203 — BORROW EXCAVATION SECTION 204 — EMBANKMENT AND SUBGRADE	

# CITY OF TAKOMA PARK INVITATION FOR BIDS LINCOLN AVENUE SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

CATEGORY 600	114
SECTION 600 – FLEXIBLE SIDEWALK	119
SECTION 600 – REMOVE AND RELOCATE FENCE	124
SECTION 602 – COMBINATION CURB AND GUTTER	126
SECTION 603 – SIDEWALKS	127
SECTION 611 – DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACES	
UTILITIES	124
SECTION 875 — UTILITIES STATEMENT	124
CONTRACT PROVISION - CITY OF TAKOMA PARK	128
PROPOSAL FORM - FEDERAL	128
INVITATION FOR BIDS BACK COVER	184

#### CITY OF TAKOMA PARK SUPPLEMENTAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

All responses must be complete. The City reserves the right to disregard any incomplete bid responses. The City will exercise a multi-step bidding process. Bidders responding to this Invitation for Bids are to provide two sealed and labeled envelopes:

1. Labeled "Qualifications" must include the following City of Takoma Park forms and information to adequately qualify and certify bidders:

Form A (Contact Information)

Bidder Oualification and Certification Statement

Bidder Reference List

Certification of Non-Involvement in the Nuclear Weapons Industry

Living Wage Requirements Certification

2. Labeled "Price Proposal" must include all items related to price.

Each bidder's sealed envelope labeled "Qualifications" will be reviewed first, ten (10) days prior to the bid opening date. All bidders deemed "unqualified/uncertified" will be notified in writing within seven (7) days of the bid opening date. Bidders have the opportunity to submit a written protest as set forth in section GP-2.23 of the Maryland State Highway Administration's Standard Specification for Construction and Materials.

In the event that a Bidder is ruled unqualified, the bid opening may be postponed as deemed necessary.

Contract will be awarded to a responsive and responsible bidder with the lowest priced proposal.

Responses may only be mailed or delivered to:

Special Projects Coordinator, Department of Public Works c/o Nima Upadhyay City of Takoma Park 31 Oswego Avenue Silver Spring, MD 20910

# CITY OF TAKOMA PARK INVITATION FOR BIDS LINCOLN AVENUE SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION

#### **FORM A (Contact Information)**

Company Name:	
• •	
Address:	 
Phone Number:	 
D W 1	
Fax Number:	 
Web Site (if applicable):	
web site (ii applicable).	
	_
Contact Name:	
Contact E-mail Address:	
	 _
Tax ID #:	 

#### BIDDER QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

#### 1. QUALIFICATION.

A Bidder responding to this Invitation for Bids is:

a.	) A corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Maryland, and in good standing to do business in the State of Maryland.			
	2) A corporation incorporated under the laws of (insert jurisdiction), and registered or qualified and in good standing to do business in the State of Maryland.			
	3) List corporate name and the names and titles of the corporation's directors and officers:			
b.	A sole proprietor doing business under his/her individual name.			
	Individual name:			
c.	A sole proprietor doing business under a trade or business name (for example, John Doe t/a Doe Masonry). List individual name and trade or business name:			
d.	A partnership. List type of partnership and the names of all general partners:			
e.	A limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of, and authorized to do business in the State of Maryland.			
	List the limited liability company name and the names of all members:			
f.	Other (explain):			

# CITY OF TAKOMA PARK INVITATION FOR BIDS LINCOLN AVENUE SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION

#### 2. CERTIFICATION.

The undersigned proposes to furnish and deliver all labor, supplies, material, equipment, or services in accordance with specifications and stipulations contained in the Request for Proposals for the price(s) and upon the terms and conditions set forth in the proposal.

The undersigned certifies that this proposal is made without any previous understanding, agreement or connection with any person, firm, or corporation submitting a bid/proposal for the same labor, supplies, material, equipment, or services and is, in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. The undersigned further certifies that he/she is authorized to sign for the bidder.

Bidder Name (print):		
By:		
(Signature)	(Date)	
Print Name:		
Title:		
Business Address:		
Telephone Number:		
Fax:		
E-Mail:		
Web Site:		

REFERENCE #1

#### **BIDDER REFERENCE LIST**

Please provide a representative list of three (3) references involving work as specified herein. Failure to submit the required information with the Proposal may be cause for rejection of the Proposal. The City may make such investigation, as it deems necessary to determine the ability of the Firm to furnish the services and the Firm shall furnish to the City all such information and data for this purpose as the City may request. The City reserves the right to reject any proposal if the evidence submitted by or investigation of such Firm fails to satisfy the City that such Firm is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the contract and deliver the service herein.

Organization Name:		
Address:		
Contact Person:	Phone:	
Email:	Contract Value:	
Project Description:		
REFERENCE #2 Organization Name:		
Address:		
Contact Person:	Phone:	
Email:	Contract Value:	
Project Description:		
REFERENCE #3 Organization Name:		
Address:		
Contact Person:	Phone:	
Email:	Contract Value:	
Project Description:		

# CITY OF TAKOMA PARK, MARYLAND CERTIFICATION OF NON-INVOLVEMENT IN THE NUCLEAR WEAPONS INDUSTRY

#### KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

Pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 14.04 of the <u>Takoma Park Code</u>, the Takoma Park Nuclear Free Zone Act, the undersigned person, firm, corporation or entity hereby certifies that he/she/it is not knowingly or intentionally a nuclear weapons producer.

Note: The following definitions apply to this certification per section 14.04.090:

A "nuclear weapons producer" is any person, firm, corporation, facility, parent or subsidiary thereof or agency of the federal government engaged in the production of nuclear weapons or its components.

"Production of nuclear weapons" includes the knowing or intentional research, design, development, testing, manufacture, evaluation, maintenance, storage, transportation or disposal of nuclear weapons or their components.

"Nuclear weapon" is any device the sole purpose of which is the destruction of human life and property by an explosion resulting from the energy released by a fission or fusion reaction involving atomic nuclei.

"Component of a nuclear weapon" is any device, radioactive substance or nonradioactive substance designed knowingly and intentionally to contribute to the operation, launch, guidance, delivery or detonation of a nuclear weapon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has signed, 2016.	and sealed this instrument this day of
First Name:	
By:	
	Signature
	Print Name & Title
State of, County of	:
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of	, 2016.
	Notary Public
My commission expire	es:

## CITY OF TAKOMA PARK, MARYLAND LIVING WAGE REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION

(Takoma Park Code, section 7.08.200.B)

Business Name:			
Address:			
City, State, Zip Code:			
Phone Number:			
Fax Number:			
E-Mail:			
		the individual designated by you ements, unless exempt under Sec	
Contact Name:		Title:	
Phone Number:	Fax:	E-Mail:	
AWARDED THE CON	RIATE LINES BELOW TH TRACT AND BECOME A equirements Compliance	HAT APPLY IN THE EVENT T "CONTRACTOR."	HAT YOU ARE
Takoma Park Living Wa Contractor and its subco and who perform measur living wage requirement	age Law ( <i>Takoma Park Cod</i> ntractors will pay all emplo rable work for the City relat s in effect at the time of the	vill comply with the requirements te, Section 7.08.180 et. seq Ordyees who are not exempt from the ted to any contract for services who meet the living wage requirements.	dinance No. 2007-55) he wage requirements with the City, the benitted under this
B. <u>Exemption Statu</u>	ıs (if applicable)		
This Contractor is exemp	pt from the living wage requ	uirements because it is:	
	of the contract for services (ation) is less than \$20,000.00	based on the bid or proposal bein 0.	ng submitted under
A public entity.			
	anization that has qualified to of the Internal Revenue Co	for an exemption from federal indee.	come taxes under

#### CITY OF TAKOMA PARK INVITATION FOR BIDS LINCOLN AVENUE SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION

	A contractor who is prohibited from complying with the terms of an applicable federal or state program, contract law and/or furnish a copy of the contract or grant.)	
C.	Living Wage Requirements Reduction.	
	This Contractor provides health insurance to the employ under the City contract and it desires to reduce its hourly requirements by an amount equal to, or less than, the pershare of the health insurance premium. This Contractor cost of the employer's share of the premium for that health submit supporting documentation showing the employer who will perform measurable work under the City copays for that employee labor category, the name of the name, and the employer's share of the monthly health	rate paid under the living wage remployee hourly cost of the employer's certifies that the per employee hourly lth insurance is \$ (Must oyee labor category of all employee(s) ontract, the hourly wage the Contractor he health insurance provider and plan
<u>Contra</u>	ctor Certification and Signature	
Contract Living that per	etor submits this certification in accordance with <i>Takoma</i> etor certifies, under penalties of perjury, that all of the sta Wage Requirements Certification are true and correct. Conform services under the resultant contract with the City of the requirements of the City's living wage law.	tements and representations made in this ontractor and any of its subcontractors
Authori	zed corporate, partner, member, or proprietor signature:	
	Print name:	
	Title of authorized person:	
	Date:	

### **NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS**

The Specifications utilized for this contract are those issued by the Maryland Department of Transportation, State Highway Administration dated May 2017.

The 2017 Standard Specifications for Construction and Materials Book will only be available on the Administration's Internet Site at: www.roads.maryland.gov.

The May 2017 Specification Book can be located by clicking on Business, Business Standards and Specifications; and Standard and Supplemental Specification for Construction and Materials which is available in MediaWiki format.

# CITY OF TAKOMA PARK INVITATION FOR BIDS LINCOLN AVENUE SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION

## NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

The Maryland State Highway Administration is committed to the development and maintenance of the Administration's highway system in an environmentally responsible manner. Therefore, Contractors are encouraged to consider the use of Administration-approved recycled and reclaimed materials in construction projects where practicable, and in accordance with the Plans and Specifications.

The Contractor is also encouraged to reuse, salvage, or recycle all generated waste materials to the extent possible. Materials that are easily recognizable, maintain their physical properties, meet the required material properties for recycling, are easily separated and transported, and have value as commodities are candidates for recycling. These types of materials generally include metals (steel, iron, copper, aluminum, bronze, etc.), plastics (cones, barrels, barricades, crash cushion plastic barrels, conduit, containers, etc.), aluminum poles and signs, electronic and electrical components, signals and signal components, topsoil, formwork, temporary falsework, brick, masonry, stone, wood, paper, and timber and yard waste from clearing and grubbing operations.

#### NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

#### **CARGO PREFERENCE ACT (CPA)**

All Contractors and Sub-Contractors are to be in compliance with the requirements of 46 CFR Part 381 and incorporate by reference the recommended clauses in 46 CFR 381.7(a)-(b) - ("Contractor and Subcontractor Clauses. "Use of United States-flag vessels")

- (a) Agreement Clauses. "Use of United States-flag vessels:
- "(1) Pursuant to Pub. L. 664 (43 U.S.C. 1241(b)) at least 50 percent of any equipment, materials or commodities procured, contracted for or otherwise obtained with funds granted, guaranteed, loaned, or advanced by the U.S. Government under this agreement, and which may be transported by ocean vessel, shall be transported on privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels, if available.
- "(2) Within 20 days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, 'on-board' commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in paragraph (a)(1) of this section shall be furnished to both the Contracting Officer (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading) and to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development. Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590."
  - (b) Contractor and Subcontractor Clauses. "Use of United States-flag vessels: The contractor agrees-
- "(1) To utilize privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment. material, or commodities pursuant to this contract, to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-flag commercial vessels.
- "(2) To furnish within 20 days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States. a legible copy of a rated, 'on-board' commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in paragraph (b) (1) of this section to both the Contracting Officer (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading) and to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590.
- "(3) To insert the substance of the provisions of this clause in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract".

Guidance documents for this requirement, including the 12/11/2015 policy memo, the 12/8/2015 legal opinion and a page of Q&A's are available on the CPA construction Program Guidance page:

### $\underline{https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/construction/cqit/cargo.cfm}$

This requirement applies to material or equipment that is acquired for a specific Federal-aid highway project. It is not applicable to goods or materials that come into inventories independent of an FHWA funded-contract.



## **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

#### CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS

On all Federal-Aid funded contracts, the Administration is requiring that Contractors have an active Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) and be registered in the Central Contract Registration (CCR) database prior to Award of Contract.

The Contractor DUNS number is a unique nine-digit number issued by Dun & Bradstreet, followed by the optional 4 digit DUNS Plus number (reported as "99999999999999"). A DUNS number can be obtained on-line at <a href="http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform">http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform</a>.

The Central Contractor Registration (CCR) is no longer the primary registrant database for the U.S. Federal Government.

The System for Award Management (SAM) is the Official U.S. Government system that consolidated the capabilities of CCR/FedReg, ORCA, and EPLS. There is NO fee to register for this site. Entities may register at no cost directly from this page. User guides and webinars are available under the Help tab. Contractors can now register on-line at https://www.sam.gov.



**CONTRACT PROVISIONS** (NCHRP) REPORT 350 AND MASH COMPLIANCE

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

#### NOTICE TO ALL HOLDERS OF THIS CONTRACT DOCUMENT

# NATIONAL COOPERATIVE HIGHWAY RESEARCH PROGRAM (NCHRP) REPORT 350 AND THE MANUAL FOR ASSESSING SAFETY HARDWARE (MASH) COMPLIANCE FOR DEVICES USED IN THE MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC AND TRAFFIC CONTROL

Except as otherwise specified in this section, all items for the temporary traffic control, including those listed under the following categories and permanent roadside hardware such as concrete barriers, W-beam barriers, cable barriers, end terminals, crash cushions, sign supports and all other breakaway hardware, shall be crashworthy in conformance with the appropriate test level as required by the safety crash testing and performance criteria published in the National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) Report 350, "Recommended Procedures for the Safety Performance Evaluation of Highway Features" or the Manual for Assessing Safety Hardware (MASH). When conformance with NCHRP Report 350 or MASH is required, provide the Engineer with the manufacturers' certifications that the devices comply with the specified criteria. All temporary and permanent roadside devices shall comply with MASH 2016 criteria by the relevant dates in accordance with the Joint Implementation Agreement memorandum dated January 7, 2016 between the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). This document may be downloaded from:

https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/roadway\_dept/policy\_guide/road\_hardware/docs/memo\_joint\_imple mentation\_agmt.pdf

Unless specifically waived in the Contract Documents, only devices approved by the Administration may be used.

#### **Category 1 Devices**

These devices include cones, tubular markers, flexible delineator posts, and drums, none of which have any accessories or attachments, and are used for channelization and delineation.

#### **Category 2 Devices**

These devices include Type I, II, and III barricades, portable sign supports with signs, intrusion alarms, drums, vertical panels, and cones, any of which having accessories or attachments.

#### **Category 3 Devices**

- (a) Truck Mounted Attenuators (TMAs) and Trailer Truck Mounted Attenuators (TTMAs).
- **(b)** Temporary Barrier.
  - (1) Concrete Barrier.



#### **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**

(NCHRP) REPORT 350 AND MASH COMPLIANCE

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 2 of 2

- (2) Traffic Barrier W Beam and Water Filled Barrier.
- (3) Steel/Aluminum Barrier.
- **(c)** Temporary End Treatments.

#### **Category 4 Devices**

These devices include area lighting supports, arrow panels, and portable variable message signs that may be portable or trailer-mounted.

Category 1, 2 and 3 devices shall always conform to NCHRP Report 350 or MASH Criteria. The AASHTO/FHWA Joint Implementation Agreement for MASH states that temporary work zone devices including category 4 devices manufactured after 12/31/2019 must be successfully tested to the 2016 edition of MASH before 12/31/2019 and relevant devices manufactured on or before 12/31/2019 and successfully tested to NCHRP 350, the 2009 edition of MASH, or otherwise authorized may continue to be used throughout their normal service life. Use of Category 4 devices shall comply with the provisions of Part 6 of the MD MUTCD.



#### **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

MARYLAND MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MdMUTCD) REQUIREMENTS

1 of 1

#### NOTICE TO ALL HOLDERS OF THIS CONTRACT DOCUMENT

## MARYLAND MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MdMUTCD) REQUIREMENTS

The 2011 Maryland Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MdMUTCD) is the legal State standard for traffic control devices. All traffic control devices (temporary or permanent) utilized on Administration projects shall be in conformance with the requirements provided in the 2011 Edition of the Administration's MdMUTCD for Streets and Highways.

## CONTRACT PROVISIONS OCCUPYING WETLANDS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

#### **OCCUPYING WETLANDS**

The Contractor is hereby alerted to the importance of preserving wetland areas. The Administration, in conjunction with the various environmental agencies, has developed these Contract Documents so as to minimize or eliminate disturbance and damage to existing wetland areas. In order to accomplish this, the following must be rigidly adhered to:

- (a) Prior to performing any work on the project, the areas of wetland will be identified and marked as directed by the Administration. All personnel of the Contractor or sub-contractors shall be alerted to these designated areas.
- (b) The Contractor or sub-contractors shall not impact any wetland or waterway, whether it be permanently or temporarily unless otherwise stipulated in the permit application and approved as an authorized action by the appropriate regulatory agency. No fill shall be placed in these areas without a permit.
- (c) If a Contractor or sub-contractor has to impact a wetland or waterway that is not covered by an existing wetland permit, they shall immediately notify the Engineer. The Engineer will notify the Environmental Programs Division to determine the extent of any permit modification. At that time the Environmental Programs Division will request a permit modification or submit a permit application.
- (d) If the Contractor impacts any wetland or waterway for which they do not have a wetland permit, they shall be responsible for restoring the wetland areas and possibly mitigating the wetland impacts to the full satisfaction of the environmental agencies, which could include monetary compensation.
- (e) The cost of restoration and mitigation of the impacted areas shall be at no additional cost to the Administration.

The importance of not abusing the wetland areas cannot be overemphasized. Abuse of wetland areas could jeopardize the operation of the total Contract and could be cause for a shut-down. If a shut-down occurs because of the Contractor's failure to secure the required permits (i.e. the Contractor's method of work includes impacts not approved by previously acquired permits), the Contractor's negligence or operations, all costs and damages to the Contractor and to the State will be at no additional cost to the Administration. Noncompliance with these requirements will not be considered for an extension of Contract time.

### REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

- General
- II. Nondiscrimination
- III. Nonsegregated Facilities
- IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions
- V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Provisions
- VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract
- VII. Safety: Accident Prevention
- VIII. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects
- Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act
- X. Compliance with Governmentwide Suspension and Debarment Requirements
- Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying

#### **ATTACHMENTS**

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only)

#### I. GENERAL

1. Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each construction contract funded under Title 23 (excluding emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal). The contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services).

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase order, rental agreement or agreement for other services. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid designbuild contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services). The design-builder shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in bid proposal or request for proposal documents, however, the Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services related to a construction contract).

2. Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract.

- A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for withholding of progress payments, withholding of final payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment or any other action determined to be appropriate by the contracting agency and FHWA.
- 4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on parole, supervised release, or probation. The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors.

#### II. NONDISCRIMINATION

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230 are applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more. The provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60, 29 CFR 1625-1627, Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with: the requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding \$10,000, the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3.

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR 60, and 29 CFR 1625-1627. The contracting agency and the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR 230, Appendix A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.

1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal employment opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and

to take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (28 CFR 35, 29 CFR 1630, 29 CFR 1625-1627, 41 CFR 60 and 49 CFR 27) and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140 shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the contractor's project activities under this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR 35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of EEO:

- a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review of activities under the contract.
- b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the following statement:

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or onthe-job training."

- 2. EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active EEO program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.
- 3. Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and will implement, the contractor's EEO policy and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:
- a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often than once every six months, at which time the contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer.
- b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO

Officer, covering all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor.

- c. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and women.
- d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees.
- e. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.
- **4. Recruitment:** When advertising for employees, the contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer." All such advertisements will be placed in publications having a large circulation among minorities and women in the area from which the project work force would normally be derived.
- a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women. To meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of potential minority group employees, and establish with such identified sources procedures whereby minority and women applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment consideration.
- b. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's compliance with EEO contract provisions. Where implementation of such an agreement has the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the contractor to do the same, such implementation violates Federal nondiscrimination provisions.
- c. The contractor will encourage its present employees to refer minorities and women as applicants for employment. Information and procedures with regard to referring such applicants will be discussed with employees.
- **5. Personnel Actions:** Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be followed:

- a. The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.
- b. The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
- c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the contractor will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.
- d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal.

#### 6. Training and Promotion:

- a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minorities and women who are applicants for employment or current employees. Such efforts should be aimed at developing full journey level status employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.
- b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor shall make full use of training programs, i.e., apprenticeship, and on-the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract performance. In the event a special provision for training is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the special provision. The contracting agency may reserve training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a).
- c. The contractor will advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and entrance requirements for each.
- d. The contractor will periodically review the training and promotion potential of employees who are minorities and women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion.
- **7. Unions:** If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use

- good faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minorities and women. Actions by the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the procedures set forth below:
- a. The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability.
- c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral practices and policies of the labor union except that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.
- d. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minorities and women. The failure of a union to provide sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the requirements of this paragraph. In the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the contracting agency.
- 8. Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / Employees with Disabilities: The contractor must be familiar with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established there under. Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in all employment activities unless to do so would cause an undue hardship.
- 9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps

to ensure nondiscrimination in the administration of this contract.

- a. The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors and suppliers and lessors of their EEO obligations under this contract.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations.

#### 10. Assurance Required by 49 CFR 26.13(b):

- a. The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State DOT's U.S. DOT-approved DBE program are incorporated by reference.
- b. The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the contracting agency deems appropriate.
- 11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO requirements. Such records shall be retained for a period of three years following the date of the final payment to the contractor for all contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA.
- a. The records kept by the contractor shall document the following:
- (1) The number and work hours of minority and non-minority group members and women employed in each work classification on the project;
  - (2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions, when applicable, to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women; and
- (3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women:
- b. The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of the project, indicating the number of minority, women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work classification required by the contract work. This information is to be reported on <a href="FHWA-1391">FORM FHWA-1391</a>. The staffing data should represent the project work force on board in all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July. If on-the-job

training is being required by special provision, the contractor will be required to collect and report training data. The employment data should reflect the work force on board during all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July.

#### **III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES**

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more.

The contractor must ensure that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin cannot result. The contractor may neither require such segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by employee custom. The contractor's obligation extends further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their services at any location, under the contractor's control, where the facilities are segregated. The term "facilities" includes waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms, and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing provided for employees. The contractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.

#### IV. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction projects exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size). The requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of-way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid highway. This excludes roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt. Contracting agencies may elect to apply these requirements to other projects.

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "Contract provisions and related matters" with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-1273 format and FHWA program requirements.

#### 1. Minimum wages

a. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part

3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- b. (1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
  - (i) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
  - (ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
  - (iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

- (2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Wage and Hour Administrator for determination. The Wage and Hour Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

#### 2. Withholding

The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

#### 3. Payrolls and basic records

- a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- b. (1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the contracting agency. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and

- home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency...
- (2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
  - (i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and complete;
  - (ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;
  - (iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
  - (3) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH–347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of this section.

- (4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, after written notice to the contractor, the contracting agency or the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

#### 4. Apprentices and trainees

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL).

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.

The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the

journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed.

Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination.

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL).

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration.

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually

performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.

In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.
- d. Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT).

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill training programs which have been certified by the Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and trainees under such programs will be established by the particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of the particular program.

- **5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.** The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- **6. Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- **7. Contract termination: debarment.** A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- **8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements.** All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

**9. Disputes concerning labor standards.** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

#### 10. Certification of eligibility.

- a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

### V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and quards.

- 1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the

case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section.

- 3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2.) of this section.
- **4. Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) through (4.) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) through (4.) of this section.

#### VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts on the National Highway System.

- 1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items designated by the contracting agency. Specialty items may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such specialty items performed may be deducted from the total original contract price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the contractor's own organization (23 CFR 635.116).
- a. The term "perform work with its own organization" refers to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators. Such term does not include employees or equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime contractor,

or any other assignees. The term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant Federal and State regulatory requirements. Leased employees may only be included in this term if the prime contractor meets all of the following conditions:

- (1) the prime contractor maintains control over the supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased employees;
  - (2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of the work of the leased employees;
- (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or exclude individual employees from work on the project; and
- (4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all other Federal regulatory requirements.
- b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract.
- 2. The contract amount upon which the requirements set forth in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of material and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract provisions.
- 3. The contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations (regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its own organizational resources (supervision, management, and engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is necessary to assure the performance of the contract.
- 4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the contract. Written consent will be given only after the contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions and requirements of the prime contract.
- 5. The 30% self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting agencies may establish their own self-performance requirements.

#### **VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION**

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

- 1. In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR 635). The contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract.
- 2. It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her health or safety, as determined under construction safety and health standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704).
- 3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance with the construction safety and health standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C.3704).

### VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY PROJECTS

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high degree of reliability on statements and representations made by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal-aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, and honestly as possible. Willful falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR 635) in one or more places where it is readily available to all persons concerned with the project:

#### 18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows:

"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, or false report as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs of construction on any highway or related project submitted for approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, false report or false claim with respect to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in connection with the construction of any highway or related project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid Roads Act approved July 1, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended and supplemented;

Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years or both."

### IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this contract, or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as appropriate, will be deemed to have stipulated as follows:

- 1. That any person who is or will be utilized in the performance of this contract is not prohibited from receiving an award due to a violation of Section 508 of the Clean Water Act or Section 306 of the Clean Air Act.
- 2. That the contractor agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements of paragraph (1) of this Section X in every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such requirements.

## X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier

subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA approval or that is estimated to cost \$25,000 or more – as defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.

### 1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective first tier participant is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction.
- c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default.
- d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).

- f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.
- g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the department or contracting agency, entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold.
- h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services Administration.
- i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

\* \* \* \* \*

## 2. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier Participants:

- a. The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:
- (1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded

from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

- (2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- (3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) of this certification; and
- (4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
- b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

### 2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants:

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or estimated to cost \$25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200)

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. You may contact the person to which this proposal is

- submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).
- e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold.
- g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded Parties List System website (<a href="https://www.epls.gov/">https://www.epls.gov/</a>), which is compiled by the General Services Administration.
- h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with

which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

\* \* \* \* \*

## Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Participants:

- 1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.
- 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

\* \* \* \* \*

### XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS FOR LOBBYING

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed \$100,000 (49 CFR 20).

- 1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
- a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into

this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.



## CONTRACT PROVISIONS DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

# AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REQUIREMENTS UTILIZATION OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

#### **CONTRACT GOALS**

FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS CONTRACT, A GOAL OF 14 PERCENT HAS BEEN ECONOMICALLY ESTABLISHED FOR SOCIALLY AND DISADVANTAGED BUSINESSES THAT ARE OWNED AND CONTROLLED BY - THOSE INDIVIDUALS AMERICANS, ARE BLACK AMERICANS, HISPANIC **ASIAN-PACIFIC** WHO AMERICANS, SUBCONTINENT ASIAN AMERICANS, NATIVE AMERICANS, OR WOMEN PURSUANT TO THE MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (MDOT) MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM:

It is the policy of the Maryland Department of Transportation that disadvantaged business enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 26 and the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) shall have an equal opportunity to participate in the performance of the contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds under these agreements. Consequently, the disadvantaged business enterprise requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and SAFETEA-LU apply to this agreement.

The bidder agrees to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 26 and SAFETEA-LU have an equal opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided under this agreement. In this regard, all bidders shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26 and SAFETEA-LU to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises have an equal opportunity to compete for and perform on Federally funded contracts.

The Maryland State Highway Administration, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 USC§§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award. "

#### A. GENERAL

For the purpose of these requirements, the following terms as defined below shall apply:

**Administration Representative** – A DBE/MBE Officer or employee of an Administration who enforces the laws and regulations pertaining to disadvantaged and minority business enterprise and contract compliance.

**Affirmative Actions** – Specific steps taken to eliminate discrimination and its effects, to ensure nondiscriminatory results and practices in the future, and to involve disadvantaged and minority business enterprises fully in contracts and programs.



## **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 2 of 11

**Business Enterprises** – Any legal entity which is organized in any form other than as a joint venture (e.g., sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, etc.) to engage in lawful commercial transactions.

**Certified Business** – A business which by order of the Chair/MBE Advisory Council or his/hers designee, has been certified as a bona fide DBE/MBE. MDOT certification does not equate to a pre-qualification status.

**DBE** – **Disadvantaged Business Enterprise** – Reference 49 CFR, Part 26, Subpart A) a small business concern: (1) which is at least 51 percent owned by one or more socially and economically disadvantaged individuals. Where stock ownership is involved, the disadvantaged owner(s) shall own at least 51 percent of each class of voting stock and at least 51 percent of the aggregate of all classes of stock that have been issued (also applies to publicly owned businesses); and (2) whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more of the socially and economically disadvantaged individuals who have ownership. In this specification the terms MBE and DBE have the same meaning.

**DBE/MBE Directory** – A compilation of businesses certified by MDOT as disadvantaged, minority, or socially and economically disadvantaged businesses. The directory will be published annually with quarterly supplements. It will also be provided in automated format and on the Internet to be updated as changes are made.

**DBE/MBE Participation Packet** – The documents submitted by the bidder or proposer pursuant to the appropriate special bid provisions. The DBE/MBE Participation Packet consists of the Certified DBE Utilization and Fair Solicitation Affidavit and the DBE Participation Schedule, both of which must be submitted with your bid or initial price proposal. The DBE Participation Packet also includes the following documents, which shall be submitted after bids or proposals are opened: Outreach Efforts Compliance Statement (MDOT-OP-018-2), DBE Subcontractor Project Participation Affidavit (MDOT-OP-019-2), MDOT Joint Venture Disclosure Affidavit (D-EEO-006), and Minority Contractor Unavailability Certificate (OOC46).

**DBE/MBE Program** – A program developed by MDOT to implement the requirements of Title 14, Subtitle 3 of the State Finance and Procurement Article, Annotated Code of Maryland; Title 10, Subtitle 3 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland for Leases of State-Owned Property; and 49 CFR, Part 26, Subparts A and C for all Federal Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs.

**Director, Office of Equal Opportunity** – The individual designated for the Administration's overall MBE compliance.

**Joint Venture** – An association of a DBE/MBE firm and one or more other firms to carry out a single, for-profit business enterprise, for which the parties combine their property, capital, efforts, skills, and knowledge, and in which the DBE/MBE is responsible for a distinct, clearly defined portion of the work of the contract and whose share in the capital contribution, control, management, risks, and profits of the joint venture are commensurate with its ownership interest.



#### **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**

DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 3 of 11

Small Business Administration (SBA) 8(a) Certification – The SBA 8(a) Certification Program is a Federal Program which establishes firms as disadvantaged and eligible for participation in the Federal SBA Program.

Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individual Pursuant to 49 CFR, Part 26 – Those individuals who are citizens of the United States (or lawfully admitted permanent residents). For convenience, these individuals and groups are referred to as "minorities" in this document and who are:

- 1. Found by the MDOT to be socially and economically disadvantaged on a case-by-case basis;
- **2.** Any individual in the following groups, members of which are rebuttably presumed to be socially and economically disadvantaged.
  - **a.** "Black Americans," which includes persons having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa;
  - **b.** "Hispanic Americans," which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Dominican, Central or South American, or other Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin, regardless of race;
  - **c.** "Native Americans," which includes persons who are American Indian, Eskimos, Aleuts, or Native Hawaiians;
  - d. "Asian-Pacific Americans," which included persons whose origins are from Japan, China, Taiwan, Korea, Burma (Myanmar), Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia (Kampuchea), Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, the Philippines, Brunei, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific Islands (Republic of Palau), the Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas Islands, Macao, Fiji, Tonga, Kirbati, Juvalu, Nauru, Federated States of Micronesia, or Hong Kong;
  - e. "Subcontinent Asian American," which includes persons whose origins are from India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Bhutan, the Maldives Islands, Nepal or Sri Lanka;
  - **f.** Women;
- **3.** Only those persons whose personal net worth does not exceed \$750,000 may be found to be economically disadvantaged.

#### B. DBE/MBE and Good Faith Effort Requirements

1. This contract includes a DBE participation goal for subcontracting and/or procurement of materials and/or services. Bidders (or offerors) must make a good faith effort to meet the DBE participation goal before bids or proposals are due, including outreach efforts. A bid or initial proposal must include both a completed and executed Certified DBE Utilization and Fair Solicitation Affidavit and DBE Participation Schedule. The failure of a bidder to complete and submit these documents shall result in a determination that the bid is not responsive. The failure of an offeror to complete and submit these documents



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 4 of 11

shall result in a determination that the proposal is not susceptible of being selected for award.

- 2. In making a good faith effort to achieve the DBE goal, prior to completing the Certified DBE Utilization and Fair Solicitation Affidavit and the DBE Participation Schedule and prior to submitting a bid or initial proposal the bidders (or offerors) including those bidders or offerors that are certified DBEs must:
  - **a.** Identify specific work categories within the scope of the procurement appropriate for subcontracting and/or procurement of materials and/or services;
  - b. Solicit DBEs in writing at least 10 days before bids or initial proposals are due, describing the identified work categories and providing instructions on how to bid on the subcontracts and/or procurement of materials and/or services;
  - **c.** Attempt to make personal contact with the DBEs solicited and to document these attempts;
  - **d.** Assist DBEs to fulfill, or to seek waiver of, bonding requirements; and
  - **e.** Attend prebid or other meetings the procurement agency schedules to publicize contracting opportunities to DBEs.
- **3.** All firms bidding on a Federal-Aid Contract shall submit the name and address of all subcontractors, service providers and suppliers that submitted quotes on the Contract. All subcontractors, service providers and suppliers shall complete and submit the form entitled Contractor Information, to the Administration.
- 4. The bidder shall seek commitments from disadvantaged business enterprises by subcontracting and/or procurement of materials and/or services, the combined value of which equals or exceeds the appropriate percent (goal) of the total value of the prime contract. A bidder may count toward its DBE goals expenditures for materials and supplies obtained from DBE regular dealers and/or manufacturers provided that the DBEs assume the actual and contractual responsibility for the provision of the materials and supplies. The bidder may count its entire expenditure to a DBE manufacturer (i.e., a supplier that produces goods from raw materials or substantially alters them before resale). The bidder may count sixty (60) percent of its expenditures to a DBE regular dealer that is not a manufacturer, provided that the DBE supplier performs a commercially useful function in the supply process. The apparent low bidder shall submit to the Administration, within ten (10) business days after notification that it is the apparent low bidder, an acceptable Affirmative Action Plan for the utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in this Contract. The Contract will not be awarded without the Bidder's AAP being approved by the Administration.

The Affirmative Action Plan shall include as a minimum:

**a.** The name of an employee designated as the bidder's liaison officer for minority affairs.



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 5 of 11

- **b.** A complete DBE Subcontractor Project Participation Affidavit (MDOT-OP-019-2), using contractors whose names appear in the DBE/MBE directory or who are otherwise certified by MDOT as being a disadvantaged business enterprise. Except as permitted by law and approved by the Administration, this affidavit shall include all DBE firms identified on the DBE Participation Schedule with a percentage of participation that meets or exceeds the percentage of participation indicated in the bid or initial proposal.
- c. A completed Outreach Efforts Compliance Statement (MDOT-OP 018-2).
- 5. When a bidder intends to attain the appropriate goal for disadvantaged business enterprise participation by use of a joint venture, the bidder shall submit a Joint Venture Disclosure Affidavit (Form D-EEO-006-A) showing the extent of disadvantaged business participation. If a bidder intends to use a joint venture as a subcontractor to meet its goal, the affidavit shall be submitted through the bidder by the proposed subcontractor and be signed by all parties. A DBE, even in a joint venture arrangement shall be certified as a DBE by MDOT prior to being included in the Affirmative Action Plan.
- **6.** Where the proposed DBE participation does not meet the DBE contract goals, sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the bidder has taken all necessary and reasonable steps to make a good faith effort to meet these goals shall be required.

### 7. Determination of Bid Responsiveness for Federal-Aid Contracts

If the bidder is unable to secure from DBEs by subcontracting and/or by procurement of materials and/or services, commitments which at least equal the appropriate percent (goal) of the values of the prime Contract at the time of bid, he shall request, in writing, a waiver of the unmet portion of the goal. This request must be initiated by checking the appropriate box on the Certified DBE Utilization and Fair Solicitation Affidavit submitted with the bid or initial proposal.

The waiver may be granted by the Administrator. To obtain approval of a waiver, the bidder shall submit the following information:

- **a.** A detailed statement of efforts made prior to bid to contact and negotiate with DBEs including: (i) the dates, names, addresses, and telephone numbers of DBEs who were contacted; (ii) a description of the information provided to DBEs requesting the plans, specifications, and anticipated time schedule for portions of the work to be performed and (iii) a detailed statement of the reasons why additional prospective agreements with DBEs were not reached;
- **b.** A detailed statement of the efforts made to select portions of the work proposed to be performed by DBEs in order to increase the likelihood of achieving the stated goals;
- **c.** For each DBE that the Contractor considers not qualified, but from which a bid has been received, a detailed statement of the reasons for the bidder's conclusion; and



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 6 of 11

- **d.** For each DBE contacted but unavailable, (i) a Minority Contractor Unavailability Certificate (Form OOC46) signed by the disadvantaged business enterprise, or (ii) a statement from the bidder shall be submitted that states that the DBE refused to sign the Certificate.
- **8.** Guidance concerning good faith efforts. The following is a list of the types of actions and factors that will be used to determine the bidder's or offeror's good faith efforts to obtain DBE participation. It is not intended to be a mandatory checklist, nor is it intended to be exclusive or exhaustive. Other factors or types of efforts may be relevant in appropriate cases.
  - (1) Soliciting through all reasonable and available means (e.g. attendance at pre-bid meetings, advertising and/or written notices) the interest of certified DBEs who have the capability to perform the work of the contract. The bidder must solicit this interest within sufficient time to allow the DBEs to respond to the solicitation. The bidder must determine with certainty if the DBEs are interested by taking appropriate steps to follow up initial solicitations.
  - (2) Selecting portions of the work to be performed by DBEs in order to increase the likelihood that the DBE goals will be achieved. This includes, where appropriate, breaking out contract work items into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation, even when the bidder or offeror might otherwise prefer to perform these work items with its own forces.
  - (3) Providing interested DBEs with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract in a timely manner to assist them in responding to a solicitation.
  - (4) (a) Negotiating in good faith with interested DBEs. It is the bidder's or offeror's responsibility to make a portion of the work available to DBE subcontractors and suppliers and to select those portions of the work or material needs consistent with the available DBE subcontractors and suppliers, so as to facilitate DBE participation.
    - (b) A bidder using good business judgment would consider a number of factors in negotiating with subcontractors, including DBE subcontractors, and would take a firm's price and capabilities as well as contract goals into consideration. However, the fact that there may be some additional costs involved in finding and using DBEs is not in itself sufficient reason for a bidder's failure to meet the contract DBE goal, as long as such costs are reasonable. Also, the ability or desire of a prime contractor to perform the work of a contract with its own organization does not relieve the bidder of the responsibility to make good faith efforts. Bidders and offerors are not, however, required to accept higher quotes from DBEs if the price difference is excessive or unreasonable.



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 7 of 11

- (5) Not rejecting DBEs as being unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation of their capabilities. The contractor's standing within its industry, membership in specific groups, organizations, or associations and political or social affiliations (for example union vs. non-union employee status) are not legitimate causes for the rejection or non-solicitation of bids in the contractor's efforts to meet the project goal.
- (6) Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, or insurance as required by the recipient or contractor.
- (7) Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, materials, or related assistance or services.
- (8) Effectively using the services of available minority/women community organizations; minority/women contractors' groups; local, state, and Federal minority/women business assistance offices; and other organizations as allowed on a case-by-case basis to provide assistance in the recruitment and placement of DBEs.
- (9) In determining whether a bidder or offeror has made good faith efforts, you may take into account the performance of other bidders or offerors in meeting the contract goal. For example, when the apparent successful bidder or offeror fails to meet the contract goal, but others meet it, the Administration may reasonably raise the question of whether, with additional reasonable efforts, the apparent successful bidder or offeror could have met the goal. If the apparent successful bidder or offeror fails to meet the goal, but meets or exceeds the average DBE participation obtained by other bidders or offerors, the Administration may view this, in conjunction with other factors, as evidence of the apparent successful bidder or offeror having made good faith efforts.

### 9. Bidder Use of DBE Special Services

The bidder shall consider, whenever possible, utilizing the services of minority-owned banks. Most minority banks are full-service corporations that can provide an array of financial services such as Treasury and Tax Loan fund accounts, time and demand deposit accounts, payroll services, and if needed, organization investment counseling.

#### 10. Bidder Records

The bidder shall maintain records showing actions which have been taken to comply with procedures set forth herein.

### 11. Bidder Cooperation



#### **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**

DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 8 of 11

The bidder shall cooperate with the Administration Representative in any reviews of the Contractor's procedures and practices with respect to DBEs which the Administration Representative may from time to time conduct.

### 12. Bidder DBE Modifications

During the life of the Contract, all plans to modify the approved DBE participation program will require the approval of the Administrator or his authorized representative. This shall include any changes to the items of work to be sublet or materials and services to be obtained which differ for those in the original DBE participation program. Any such request for revisions shall be directed to the appropriate District Engineer for their disposition.

#### C. RECORDS AND REPORTS

- 1. The Contractor shall keep such records as are necessary to determine compliance with its Minority Business Enterprise utilization obligations. The records kept by the Contractor shall be designed to indicate:
  - **a.** The name of disadvantaged and non-disadvantaged subcontractors and suppliers, the type of work materials or services being performed on or incorporated in this project, and the monetary value of such work materials or services.
  - **b.** Documentation of all correspondence, contacts, telephone calls, etc., to obtain the services of disadvantaged business enterprises on this project.
  - **c.** The progress and efforts made in seeking out disadvantaged contractor organizations and individual disadvantaged contractors for work on this project.
- **2.** Information required to be submitted for Federally Assisted contracts in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26:
  - **a.** All bidders (not only the apparent successful bidder) shall provide the following information:
    - (1) The age of the bidding firm; and
    - (2) The annual gross receipts of the bidding firm.
  - **b.** All bidders (not only the apparent successful bidder) shall provide the following information for each firm quoting or considered as subcontractors:
    - (1) The name of firm; and
    - (2) The address of firm.
  - **c.** The Administration will contact each of the firms quoting or considered as subcontractors to obtain:
    - (1) The age of the firm; and



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 9 of 11

(2) The annual gross receipts of the firm

If this information already has been gathered by the Administration on a firm and it is current, it will not be requested.

- 3. The Contractor shall submit reports on a monthly basis of those contracts and other business transactions executed with disadvantaged business enterprises with respect to the records referred to in Subparagraph 1.a above, in such form, manner, and content as prescribed by the Administration. The reports shall be due monthly on the 15<sup>th</sup> calendar day of each month. If the Contractor cannot submit their report on time, they shall notify the Administration's Representative and request additional time to submit the report. Failure of the Contractor to report in a timely manner may result in a finding of noncompliance. Additional reports may be required by the Administration upon written request.
- **4.** To ensure compliance with the certified DBE contract participation goals, the Contractor shall:
  - **a.** Submit monthly, a report listing unpaid invoices, over 30 days, from all certified DBE subcontractors and the reason payment has not been made;
  - **b.** Include in its agreement with certified DBE subcontractors a requirement that the DBE subcontractors are to submit monthly to the Administration, a report identifying the prime Contractor and listing the following:
    - 1. Payment received from the Contractor in the preceding 30 days; and
    - 2. Invoices for which the subcontractor has not been paid.
- 5. All such records shall be retained for a period of three years following acceptance of final payment and shall be available for inspection by the U.S. Department of Transportation, the Maryland Department of Transportation, and the Administration.

### D. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES FOR ENFORCEMENT

- 1. Whenever the Administration believes the prime Contractor or any subcontractor may not be operating in compliance with the terms of these provisions, the Administration Representative will conduct an investigation. If the Administration Representative finds the prime Contractor or any subcontractor not in compliance with these provisions, he will make a report of non-compliance and notify such Contractor in writing of the steps that will, in the judgment of the Administration, bring the Contractor into compliance. If the Contractor fails or refuses to comply fully with such steps, the Administration Representative will make a final report of noncompliance to the Administrator, who may direct the imposition of one or more of the sanctions listed below:
  - **a.** Suspension of work on a project, pending correction;
  - **b.** Withholding payment or a percentage thereof, pending correction;



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 10 of 11

- **c.** Referral of DBE/MBE to MDOT Office of MBE for review for decertification or minority business fraud investigation;
- **d.** Referral to MDOT Office of MBE for review/referral to the Attorney General's Office for review for initiation of debarment;
- **e.** Referral to the Attorney General's Office for review for debarment or for criminal prosecution through the MDOT Office of General Counsel; or
- **f.** Any other action as appropriate.

The Administrator will determine which sanction(s) should be imposed in order to promote the purpose of the MDOT DBE/MBE Program.

**2.** If the documents used to determine the status of a DBE contain false, misleading, or misrepresenting information, the matter may be referred to the MDOT Office of MBE for appropriate action.

#### 3. Loss of DBE Certification

- **a.** When a prime Contractor has made a commitment to use a DBE who has lost its certification but the subcontract has not been executed prior to the notice of loss of certification, the prime Contractor is required to obtain an eligible, certified DBE for the contract or demonstrate to MDOT that it has made a good faith effort to do so.
- b. When a prime Contractor has executed a contract with a DBE subcontractor before the notice of loss of certification, the prime Contractor may continue to use the firm on the contract and may continue to receive credit towards its DBE goal, i.e., contract goal, for the work of that subcontractor.
- goal, for the work of that subcontractor. **c.** The work carried out by a DBE Prime Contractor would be counted by MDOT up to the loss of certification. The work performed after the loss of certification would not be considered DBE participation.
- **d.** When a DBE subcontractor has lost its certification, MDOT may not continue to count the DBE participation which takes place after the loss of certification as DBE work when counting participation towards the overall goal of the modal administration or the Department.
- **e.** If a DBEs loss of certification is the result of exceeding the size standards while performing on a contract, the DBE participation may be counted for both the contract goal and the overall goal.

### E. SUBCONTRACTING.

**Subcontracting by the Prime Contractor.** Form B Request for Approval of Subcontractor shall be used by the Prime Contractor to request approval of a Subcontractor and also to ensure that a formal Subcontract has been or will be written and kept on file by the Prime Contractor. Completion and submittal of the form by the Prime Contractor acknowledges that the Administration's Contracting Officer may require the submission of the written Subcontract for review by the Administration and/or FHWA.



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**DBE FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 11 of 11

Lower Tier Subcontracting by an Approved Subcontractor. Form B Subcontractor's Request for Approval of Lower Tier Subcontractor shall be used by an Approved Subcontractor to request approval of a Lower Tier Subcontractor and also to ensure that a formal Subcontract has been or will be written and kept on file by the Subcontractor. Completion and submittal of the form by the Subcontractor acknowledges that the Administration's Contracting Officer may require the submission of the written Subcontract for review by the Administration and/or FHWA.

**Form Acquisitions.** Maryland State Highway Administration Form B may be acquired through the Administration's Contracts Award Team or District Office. All questions should be directed to the Office of Construction, Contracts Award Team.

It is the Administration's intention to randomly select during each calendar quarter a representative sample of written Subcontracts for review. This review will be conducted by the Office of Construction's Contracts Award Team.

# CONTRACT PROVISIONS MBE/DBE COMPLIANCE FIELD MEETING

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

#### MBE/DBE COMPLIANCE FIELD MEETING

A MBE/DBE compliance Field Meeting will be conducted to review the responsibilities of the Administration and the Contractor's personnel relative to MBE/DBE Compliance and documentation. The meeting will be held within two weeks after starting work on the project.

The Construction Project Engineer, who will notify the following of the date, time and location, will arrange the meeting. At least one week advanced notice will be required.

### (a) Administrative Representatives.

- (1) Director, Office of Equal Opportunity or Designee
- (2) District Equal Opportunity Officer
- (3) Regional Constructional Engineer
- (4) Construction Project Engineer
- (5) Construction Inspection Division Inspector

### (b) Contract Representatives.

- (1) Superintendent Prime Contractor
- (2) Equal Opportunity Officer Prime Contractor
- (3) Owner/Superintendent/Foreman MBE/ DBE Subcontractor

The Construction Project Engineer and Equal Opportunity Representative will jointly conduct the meeting. The Contractor shall notify the appropriate subcontractors and ensure their attendance.



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN CERTIFICATION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 1 of 1

### TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN CERTIFICATION

PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT, THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE A TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN CERTIFICATION, CONTAINING THE INFORMATION SHOWN BELOW. THE CERTIFICATION FORM WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER UPON AWARD OF THE CONTRACT.

The Administration's Traffic Control Plan (TCP) has been reviewed and the following course of action shall be followed:

Option 1 The TCP is accepted and shall be used on this	project.
Option 2 The TCP is accepted; however, revisions and in conformance with the Administration's Special Conformance with the Administration of the Conformance with the Conformance with the Administration of the Conformance with the Conformance w	
Option 3 The TCP is not accepted and revision shall be the Administration's Specifications 104.01.	e submitted for approval in accordance with
It is understood that the effective implementation the Contractor. Minor modifications may be madewarrant and prior concurrence is obtained from the will be submitted to the Engineer in writing, Administration's Specifications 104.01.	e by the Traffic Manager if field conditions e Engineer. Significant changes to the TCF
(DATE)	(SIGNATURE)
	(PRINT SIGNATURE)
	(TITLE)



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

## PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE CONTRACTOR

### PAYROLLS.

**Non-Federally Funded Contracts.** The Division of Labor and Industry, Prevailing Wage Unit is requiring that all certified payroll records be submitted electronically. For instructions on how to register and submit go online to <a href="www.dllr.state.md.us/prevwage">www.dllr.state.md.us/prevwage</a> and follow the instructions for registering. The regulation addressing this change can be found at COMAR 21.11.11.02. For Non-Federally funded projects, which include prevailing wage rates, the prime Contractor and each subcontractor, shall submit the certified payroll electronically and provide one hard copy to the Project Engineer. All wages shall be paid in conformance with the State Finance and Procurement Article, Section 17-201-17-226 of the Annotated Code of Maryland and the Fair Labor Standards Amendments of 1974 (P.L. 93259). If the award amount of a Non-Federally funded job is less than \$500,000, the project will be exempt from prevailing wage requirements.

A review has been made of the wage conditions in the locality and, based on the information available, the wage rates and fringe payments listed are determined by the Commissioner of the Department of Labor and Industry to be prevailing for the Contract for the described classes of labor in conformance with the law. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to fully comply with the law and to contact the Office of the Commissioner of Labor and Industry for interpretation of the provisions of the law.

**Federally Funded Contracts.** For Federally funded projects, the prime Contractor and each subcontractor shall submit one copy of the certified payroll to the Project Engineer.

**General Requirements for Federally and Non-Federally Funded Contracts.** All payrolls are subject to the following requirements:

- (a) All payrolls shall be numbered, beginning at No. 1, and consecutively numbered through the end of the Contract.
- (b) Contract and FAP numbers shall be shown on all payrolls (as applicable).
- (c) All payroll submissions shall include:
  - (1) Federally Funded employees' full name, classification, and Individual Identifying Number (IIN) e.g. (last four digits of social security number). Refer to FHWA 1273 (IV),(3),(b)1) for further requirements related to weekly payrolls.
  - (2) Non-Federally Funded employees' full name, classification, address and social security number.



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 2 of 4

- (d) All payrolls shall show the employee's basic hourly wage rate, overtime rate (if applicable), and the number of hours worked (tabulated both daily and weekly).
- (e) When fringe benefits are required, indicate separately the amount of employer contributions to fringe benefit funds and/or programs. The fringe benefits shall be individually identified, but may be tabulated on a separate sheet. When required fringe benefits are paid in cash, add the required fringe benefit amount to the basic hourly rate to obtain the total prevailing wage rate for the employee.
- (f) The employee's net pay and the itemized deductions shall be included in all payrolls.
- (g) A Contractor may make deductions that are required by law or required by a collective bargaining agreement (between the Contractor and a bona fide labor organization). Deductions are also permitted if they are identified in a written agreement between the employee and employer that was made at the beginning of employment, provided that the Contractor presents the agreement to the Administration before the employee begins working on the Contract. Each payroll shall also include the U.S. Department of Labor and Hour Public Contracts Division Statement of Compliance Form WH-347 (or its equivalent), signed by an appropriate official of the Contractor/subcontractor. The Contractor's name, address, and telephone number shall also be shown.
- (h) On Non-Federally funded projects, all apprentices shall be registered with the Maryland Apprenticeship and Training Council.
- (i) Contractors employing a classification of worker for which a wage rate was not included on the original wage decision, shall submit to either the Wage and Hour Team (Federally Funded) or Department of Labor and Licensing (DLLR), (Non-Federally Funded), a request for an additional classification and rate prior to the employee's employment at the project.
- (j) Payrolls for Non-Federally Funded projects shall be submitted within 14 calendar days after the end of each payroll period.
- (k) Payrolls for Federally Funded projects shall be submitted within 7 calendar days after the end of each payroll period.
- (l) Contractors and Subcontractors are required to maintain complete social security numbers and home addresses for employees. Government agencies are entitled to request or review all relevant payroll information, including social security numbers and addresses of employees. Contractors and Subcontractors are required to provide such information upon request.



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 3 of 4

#### OVERTIME.

**Non-Federally Funded Contracts.** Overtime rates shall be paid by the prime Contractors and subcontractors under their Contracts and agreements with their employees, which in no event shall be less than time and a half the prevailing hourly rate of wages for all hours worked in excess of ten hours in any one calendar day or forty hours in any one calendar week and work performed on Sundays and legal holidays.

Fringe benefits shall be paid for all hours worked, including the overtime hours. However, the fringe benefit amounts may be excluded from the half time premium due as overtime compensation.

**Federally Funded Contracts.** Overtime rates shall be paid as specified in Form FHWA 1273. Fringe benefits shall be paid for all hours worked, including the overtime hours. However, the fringe benefit amounts may be excluded from the half time premium due as overtime compensation.

### PENALTIES.

**Non-Federally Funded Contracts.** When the Contractor is delinquent in submitting payroll records, processing of partial payment estimates will be held in abeyance, pending receipt of the records. The Contractor shall be liable to the Administration for liquidated damages in the amount of \$10.00 for each calendar day the records are late.

The Contractor shall be liable to the Administration for liquidated damages in the amount of \$20.00 for each day that an employee is paid less than the prevailing wage.

**Federally Funded Contracts.** When the Contractor is delinquent in submitting payroll records, processing of partial payment estimates will be held in abeyance pending receipt of the records.

#### ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS.

**Federally Funded Contracts.** If the wage determination lacks a necessary classification the Prime Contractor is responsible to submit the request for the additional classification, with a proposed rate, to the State Highway Administration's Wage and Hour Team. The request is to include a copy of the projects wage determination.

**Non-Federally Funded Contracts.** If the wage determination lacks a necessary classification the Prime Contractor is responsible to submit the request for the additional classification, with a proposed rate, to the Department of Labor and Licensing (DLLR).



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 4 of 4

### INQUIRIES.

Request for information or questions shall be addressed to:

Maryland State Highway Administration Office of Construction Wage and Hour Team 7450 Traffic Drive, Building #4 Hanover, MD 21076 or

Email: wageandhourteam@sha.state.md.us

### CONTRACT PROVISIONS PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

General Decision Number: MD180014 01/05/2018 MD14

Superseded General Decision Number: MD20170014

State: Maryland

Construction Type: Highway

County: Montgomery County in Maryland.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building structures in rest area projects & railroad construction; bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; and other major bridges).

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.35 for calendar year 2018 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.35 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 2018. The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number Publication Date 0 01/05/2018

SUMD2015-009 09/15/2015

	Rates	Fringes
CARPENTER	.\$ 26.81	8.19
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	.\$ 19.56	5.08
ELECTRICIAN	.\$ 38.79	15.25
IRONWORKER, REINFORCING	.\$ 27.05	17.31
IRONWORKER, STRUCTURAL	.\$ 26.97	15.87



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS LABORER: Asphalt, Includes Release Characters and

LABORER: Asphalt, Includes	
Raker, Shoveler, Spreader and Distributor\$ 18.93	16.35
LABORER: Concrete Surfacer\$ 27.48	5.25
LABORER: Grade Checker\$ 19.11	16.35
LABORER: Jack Hammer\$ 14.30	0.00
LABORER: Luteman\$ 14.00	0.00
LABORER: Mason Tender - Cement/Concrete\$ 19.11	16.35
LABORER: Pipelayer \$ 17.25	3.50
LABORER: Common or General, Includes Flagger\$ 21.10	2.18
OPERATOR: Backhoe/Excavator/Trackhoe\$ 21.07	4.99
OPERATOR: Bobcat/Skid Steer/Skid Loader\$ 16.00	0.00
OPERATOR: Broom/Sweeper\$ 23.49	12.15
OPERATOR: Bulldozer\$ 24.75	12.15
OPERATOR: Crane\$ 30.30	15.30
OPERATOR: Gradall\$ 27.45	12.15
OPERATOR: Loader\$ 26.45	12.15
OPERATOR: Milling Machine\$ 21.16	0.00
OPERATOR: Paver (Asphalt, Aggregate, and Concrete)\$ 19.92	0.00
OPERATOR: Piledriver\$ 26.89	8.78
OPERATOR: Roller\$ 16.17	2.58
OPERATOR: Screed\$ 16.00	0.00
PAINTER: Bridge\$ 33.23	9.40
TRUCK DRIVER: Dump Truck\$ 15.00	0.00
TRUCK DRIVER: Flatbed Truck\$ 19.68	4.83

# CONTRACT PROVISIONS PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

TRUCK DRIVER: TackTruck......\$ 22.94 7.87

TRUCK DRIVER: Water Truck.....\$ 23.56 6.96

\_\_\_\_\_\_

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

\_\_\_\_\_\_

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

-----



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

#### WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- \* an existing published wage determination
- \* a survey underlying a wage determination
- \* a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- \* a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PREVAILING WAGE INSTRUCTIONS

### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

4.)	All	decisions	by	the	Admini	strativ	e Revie	w Board	are	final	
===:	====	-======	===:	===:	=====	======	=====	=====:	====	=====	==

END OF GENERAL DECISION



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**NOTICE OF ACTIONS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

# NOTICE OF ACTIONS REQUIRED FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)

- **1.** The Offeror's or Bidders attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal Equal Employment Specifications" set forth herein.
- 2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate work force in each trade on all construction work in the covered area, are as noted in Appendix A and B:

These goals are applicable to all the Contractors' construction work (whether or not it is Federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the contractor performs construction work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and nonfederally involved construction.

The contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of contract, and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the contractor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

- 3. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this notification. The notification shall list the name, address, and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be performed.
- **4.** As used in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is noted on appendix B.

# STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS (Executive Order 11246)

- **1.** As used in these specifications:
- **a.** "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted:
- **b.** "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority:

### **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**

### NOTICE OF ACTIONS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 2 of 8

- **c.** "Employer identification number" means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.
- **d.** "Minority" includes:
- (i) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
- (ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish culture or origin regardless of race);
- (iii) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original people of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and,
- (iv) American Indians or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).
- 2. Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
- 3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each Contractor or Subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other Contractors or Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor's or Subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.
- 4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7.a through 7.p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress toward its goal in each craft during the period specified.
- 5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.

# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**NOTICE OF ACTIONS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

- **6.** In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.
- 7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
- a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
- **b.** Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.
- c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with reason therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
- **d.** Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
- **e.** Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 7.b above.
- f. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.

# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**NOTICE OF ACTIONS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 4 of 8

- **g.** Review, at least annually, the company's EEO Policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with on-site supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.
- **h.** Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- **j.** Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force.
- **k.** Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.
- **l.** Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- **m.** Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to insure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- **n.** Ensure that all facilities and company activities are nonsegregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- **o.** Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**NOTICE OF ACTIONS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 6 of 8

- **p.** Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- 8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7.a through 7.p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more if its obligations under 7.a through 7.p of these specifications provided that the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female work force participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's non-compliance.
- 9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized).
- **10.** The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.
- 12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.
- 13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.
- 14. The Contractors shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep records. Records shall at affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice, trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated



### CONTRACT PROVISIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

6 of 8

NOTICE OF ACTIONS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.

15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents

(a.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

**16.** The Contractor will receive at the time of Award Federal Form CC-257 for his use in reporting monthly the Affirmative Actions for minority and female which he has employed.



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**NOTICE OF ACTIONS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 7 of 8

### **APPENDIX A**

The following goals and timetables for female utilization shall be included in all Federal and federally assisted construction contracts and subcontracts in excess of \$10,000. The goals are applicable to the Contractor's aggregate on-site construction work force whether or not part of that work force is performing on a Federal or federally assisted construction contract or subcontract.

AREA COVERED: Nationwide

### **GOALS AND TIMETABLES**

Timetable	Goals
	(percent)
From April 1, 1978 until March 31, 1979	3.1
From April 1, 1979 until March 31, 1980	
From April 1, 1980 until further notice.	6.9



# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**NOTICE OF ACTIONS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 8 of 8

### **APPENDIX B**

Until further notice, the following goals for minority utilization in each construction craft and trade shall be included in all Federal or federally assisted construction contracts and subcontracts in excess of \$10,000 to be performed in the respective geographical areas. The goals are applicable to each nonexempt contractor's total on-site construction work force, regardless of whether or not part of that work force is performing work on a Federal, federally assisted or nonfederally related project, contract or subcontract.

Construction contractors which are participating in an approved Hometown Plan (see 41 CFR 60-4.5) are required to comply with the goals of the Hometown Plan with regard to construction work they perform in the area covered by the Hometown Plan. With regard to all their other covered construction work such contractors are required to comply with the applicable SMSA or EA goal contained in this appendix B-80.

Chata	Goal
State Manufacture	(percent)
Maryland:	
019 Baltimore, MD: SMSA Counties:	
	22.0
0720 Baltimore, MD.	23.0
MD Anne Arundel; MD Baltimore;	
MD Carroll; MD Harford;	
MD Howard; MD Baltimore City	22.6
Non-SMSA Counties	23.6
MD Caroline; MD Dorchester;	
MD Kent; MD Queen Annes;	
MD Somerset; MD Talbot;	
MD Wicomico; MD Worcestar	
Washington, DC:	
020 Washington, DC:	
SMSA Counties:	
8840 Washington, DC	28.0
MD Charles; MD Montgomery;	
MD Prince Georges	
Non-SMSA Counties	25.2
MD Calvert; MD Frederick	
MD St. Marys; MD Washington	
2.12 St. 1.2m. Jo, 1.12 Habinington	
Pennsylvania	
Non-SMSA Counties	4.8
MD Allegany: MD Garrett	

# CONTRACT PROVISIONS TRAINING PROVISIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 1 of 4

#### TRAINING PROVISIONS

As part of the Contract's Equal Employment Opportunity Affirmative Action Program, on-the-job training shall be provided as follows:

The on-the-job training shall be aimed at developing full journeypersons in the type of trade or job classification involved. On this Contract **ZERO** (0) (number to be filled in by the Administration) persons will be trained.

In the event that a Contractor subcontracts a portion of the Contract work, the Contractor shall determine how many, if any, of the trainees are to be trained by the subcontractor, however, the Contractor shall retain the primary responsibility for meeting the training requirements imposed by this Provision. The Contractor shall also insure that this training Provision is physically included in each subcontract to insure that the workforce utilized by the subcontractor meet the goals for minority and female employment and training. Where feasible, 25 percent of apprentices or trainees in each occupation shall be in their first year of apprenticeship or training.

The number of trainees in each classification shall be distributed among the work classifications on the basis of the Contractor's needs, minority and women employment goals specified for each trade in the Contract Provision, and the reasonable area of recruitment.

Prior to beginning construction, the Contractor shall submit to the Administration for approval a Manpower and Training Utilization (MTU) Schedule no later than at the preconstruction meeting.

The MTU schedule shall include:

- 1. The proposed training programs.
- **2.** The number of trainees to be trained in each classification.
- **3.** Anticipated starting and ending dates for training in each classification.

No Contract work may be undertaken until the Administration has accepted the schedule.

If the submitted training programs fail to meet the requirements as defined within these Provisions, the Administration will withhold one percent of the total category code one pay items from the payment due the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit a revised Manpower and Training Utilization Schedule when major changes in the Contract work schedule occur that substantially affect the previously submitted schedule.

The Contractor shall be credited for each trainee employee who is currently enrolled or becomes enrolled in an approved program and will be reimbursed for the hourly cost of the trainee as specified in the schedule of prices.

Training and upgrading of minorities and women toward journeyperson status is a primary objective of this Training Provision. The purpose for this objective is to insure a pool of qualified minorities and women to replace those journeypersons who, in the natural course of events will leave the workforce. The program will also provide opportunities to the minorities and women trainees in geographic areas where shortages in minority and women journeypersons are prevalent



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS TRAINING PROVISIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 2 of 4

and recognized due to the Contractor's inability to meet the Equal Employment Opportunity goals specified in this Contract.

The training requirements of this Training Provision are not intended nor shall they be used to discriminate against any applicant for training, whether a member of a protected class or not. It is the Contractor's responsibility to demonstrate good faith efforts to ensure an adequate workforce representation of minorities and women in all job classifications on this Contract. Therefore, the Contractor shall consider the employment Contract goals set for minorities and females when enrolling trainees. The Contractor's utilization of the on-the-job training goals will be weighed when an Equal Employment Opportunity workforce compliance determination is made.

The Contractor shall make every effort to enroll minority and women trainees (e.g., by conducting systematic and direct recruitment through public and private sources likely to yield minorities and women to the extent that these persons are available within a reasonable area of recruitment).

No employee shall be employed as a trainee in any classification which the individual has successfully completed a training program leading to journeyperson status or has been employed as a journeyperson. This includes a person gainfully employed as a journeyperson by virtue of informal on-the-job training. The Contractor should satisfy this requirement by including appropriate questions in the employee job application or by other suitable means. Regardless of the method used, the Contractor's records shall document the findings in each case. In the case of apprentices, evidence of indentureship and registration of the approved apprenticeship program shall be included in the Contractor's records.

The minimum length and type of training and rate for each classification shall be specified in the training program by the Contractor and approved by the Administration and the Federal Highway Administration.

The Administration will approve any program specified in the Administration's On-The-Job Training Manual. The Administration and the Federal Highway Administration will consider other programs if it is reasonably calculated that the programs conform to the Equal Employment Opportunity obligations of the Contract and will qualify the average trainee for journeyperson status in the specified classification by the end of the training period. Apprenticeship programs registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State apprenticeship agency recognized by the Bureau, and training programs approved by, but not necessarily sponsored by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training will also be acceptable, provided that the program being offered is administered in a manner consistent with the Equal Employment obligation of Federal-aid highway construction Contracts and meets the minimum requirements of this Training Provision.

Some offsite training is permissible as long as the training is an integral part of an approved training program and does not comprise a significant part of the overall training.

Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor will be reimbursed 80 cents per hour of training given an employee on this Contract in conformance with an approved training program. As approved by the Engineer, reimbursement will be made for training persons in excess of the number specified herein. This reimbursement will be made even though the Contractor received additional training program funds from other sources, provided that the other sources do not specifically prohibit the Contractor from receiving other reimbursement. Reimbursement for offsite training indicated above



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS TRAINING PROVISIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 3 of 4

will only be made to the Contractor where the Contractor does one or more of the following and the trainees are concurrently employed on a Federal-aid project:

reimbursement will be made even though the Contractor received additional training program funds from other sources, provided that the other sources do not specifically prohibit the Contractor from receiving other reimbursement. Reimbursement for offsite training indicated above will only be made to the Contractor where the Contractor does one or more of the following and the trainees are concurrently employed on a Federal-aid project:

The training requirements of this Training Provision are not intended nor shall they be used to discriminate against any applicant for training, whether a member of a protected class or not. It is the Contractor's responsibility to demonstrate good faith efforts to ensure an adequate workforce representation of minorities and women in all job classifications on this Contract. Therefore, the Contractor shall consider the employment Contract goals set for minorities and females when enrolling trainees. The Contractor's utilization of the on-the-job training goals will be weighed when an Equal Employment Opportunity workforce compliance determination is made.

The Contractor shall make every effort to enroll minority and women trainees (e.g., by conducting systematic and direct recruitment through public and private sources likely to yield minorities and women to the extent that these persons are available within a reasonable area of recruitment).

No employee shall be employed as a trainee in any classification which the individual has successfully completed a training program leading to journeyperson status or has been employed as a journeyperson. This includes a person gainfully employed as a journeyperson by virtue of informal on-the-job training. The Contractor should satisfy this requirement by including appropriate questions in the employee job application or by other suitable means. Regardless of the method used, the Contractor's records shall document the findings in each case. In the case of apprentices, evidence of indentureship and registration of the approved apprenticeship program shall be included in the Contractor's records.

The minimum length and type of training and rate for each classification shall be specified in the training program by the Contractor and approved by the Administration and the Federal Highway Administration.

The Administration will approve any program specified in the Administration's On-The-Job Training Manual. The Administration and the Federal Highway Administration will consider other programs if it is reasonably calculated that the programs conform to the Equal Employment Opportunity obligations of the Contract and will qualify the average trainee for journeyperson status in the specified classification by the end of the training period. Apprenticeship programs registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State apprenticeship agency recognized by the Bureau, and training programs approved by, but not necessarily sponsored by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training will also be acceptable, provided that the program being offered is administered in a manner consistent with the Equal Employment obligation of Federal-aid highway construction Contracts and meets the minimum requirements of this Training Provision.

Some offsite training is permissible as long as the training is an integral part of an approved training program and does not comprise a significant part of the overall training.



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS TRAINING PROVISIONS

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 4 of 4

Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor will be reimbursed 80 cents per hour of training given an employee on this Contract in conformance with an approved training program. As approved by the Engineer, reimbursement will be made for training persons in excess of the number specified herein. This reimbursement will be made even though the Contractor received additional training program funds from other sources, provided that the other sources do not specifically prohibit the Contractor from receiving other reimbursement. Reimbursement for offsite training indicated above will only be made to the Contractor where the Contractor does one or more of the following and the trainees are concurrently employed on a Federal-aid project:

The Contractor shall furnish the trainee a copy of the approved training program in which the trainee is enrolled. The Contractor shall provide each trainee with a certificate showing the type and length of training satisfactorily completed. The Contractor shall submit a Certificate to the trainee in the following instances:

- **1.** Certificate of Completion when a trainee completes the total number of hours required to complete a training program.
- **2.** Certificate of Training when a trainee does not totally complete the required program hours.

The Contractor shall provide for the maintenance of records and furnish periodic reports inclusive of the Administration's Contractor's Semiannual Training Reports, documenting his performance under this Training Provision. The Semiannual Training Report is to be submitted by the 10th of the month following the reporting period (July 10 and January 10).

If the Contractor fails to fully comply with these Training Provisions, the Administration's Representative will make a final report of non compliance to the Administrator, who may direct the imposition of one or both of the sanctions listed below:

- 1. Withholding a percentage of the progress payment.
- **2.** Other action appropriate and/or within the discretion of the Administrator.



# CONTRACT PROVISIONS HIGH VISIBILITY SAFETY APPAREL POLICY

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

### NOTICE TO ALL HOLDERS OF THIS CONTRACT DOCUMENT

### HIGH VISIBILITY SAFETY APPAREL POLICY

**BACKGROUND.** Research indicates that high visibility garments have a significant impact on the safety of employees who work on highways and rights-of-way. In addition, high visibility garments may help to prevent injuries and accidents and to make highway workers more visible to the motoring public, which ultimately improves traffic safety.

### STATEMENT OF POLICY.

- (a) The High Visibility Safety Apparel Policy provides a standardized apparel program.
- **(b)** The program seeks to improve the visibility of all persons who work on Administration highways and rights-of-way.
- (c) All apparel shall contain the appropriate class identification label.
- (d) Compliance with this policy is retroactive and becomes effective immediately. All affected employees shall receive high visibility apparel awareness training.

**APPLICABILITY.** This policy applies to all Administration employees and all other persons who work on Administration highways and rights-of-way. All workers shall wear, at a minimum, Class 2 ANSI/ISEA 107/2004 apparel.

- (a) For Administration employees, this apparel shall have a fluorescent yellow-green background material color and be the outermost garment worn.
- (b) Retro-reflective material color for Administration employee apparel shall be silver or white and be visible at a minimum distance of 1,000 feet. The retro-reflective safety apparel shall be designed to clearly recognize and differentiate the wearer from the surrounding work environment. The retro-reflective material may be contrasted by fluorescent orange background material not exceeding one and one half inches on either side of the retro-reflective material.
- (c) For non-Administration employees, this apparel shall be either fluorescent orange-red or fluorescent yellow-green background material color and be the outermost garment worn.
- (d) Retro-reflective material color for non-Administration employee apparel shall either be orange, yellow, white, silver, yellow-green, or a fluorescent version of these colors, and be visible at a minimum distance of 1,000 feet. The retro-reflective safety apparel shall be designed to clearly recognize and differentiate the wearer from the surrounding work environment.

# **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**HIGH VISIBILITY SAFETY APPAREL POLICY

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 2 of 2

### REFERENCES.

- (a) ANSI/ISEA 107/2004 standard American National Safety Institute/International Safety Equipment Association
- (b) MUTCD 2009 Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices Sections 6D.03B and 6E.02
- (c) Visibility Research The VCTR 1989 report concludes that fluorescent colors, when compared with non-fluorescent colors, enhance the daytime conspicuity of worker clothing.

### **DEFINITIONS.**

- (a) Apparel The outermost high-visibility garment worn by employees who work on Administration highways and rights-of-way.
- (b) Highways All roads owned by the Maryland Department of Transportation and maintained by the Administration.
- (c) High Visibility The ability for workers to be distinguishable as human forms to be seen, day and night, at distances that allow equipment operators and motorists to see, recognize, and respond.

#### PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This project, located in Montgomery County, is for the construction of sidewalk along a portion of Lincoln Avenue. Beginning at the Intersection of Lincoln Avenue and Jackson Avenue and extending in an Easterly direction to Elm Avenue for a total distance of approximately 0.40 miles.

The work will consist of the following:

Construct 2000 Linear Feet of ADA Compliant Sidewalk

Construct 200 linear feet of sidewalk along Elm Avenue to provide a safe crossing zone for pedestrian travelling from Auburn Avenue to Lincoln Avenue.

Install Crosswalk marking at two intersections: Elm and Auburn Avenue and Hayward Avenue and Lincoln Avenue

Construct approximately 551 LF ft of retaining wall

#### **SPECIFICATIONS**

All work on this project shall conform to the Maryland Department of Transportation, State Highway Administration's Specifications entitled, "Standard Specifications for Construction and Materials" dated May 2017 revisions thereof, or additions thereto, and the Special Provisions included in this Invitation for Bids.

### **EMPLOYMENT AGENCY**

The Maryland Department of Human Resources is located at: Montgomery County

Montgomery County One Stop Center (Germantown) Up County Regional Service Center 12900 Middlebrook Road Germantown, MD 20874 (P) 240-777-2050 (F) 240-777-2070

### NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR

**PROJECT SCHEDULE.** Section 109 shall only apply when a CPM Project Schedule item is included in the Schedule of Prices. Otherwise, all Project Schedules shall conform to Section 110.

**NOTICE TO BIDDERS.** The Proposal Form Packet in this Invitation for Bids requires the following information be submitted for the Bidder and each firm quoting or considered as subcontractors:

- (a) Name of firm.
- **(b)** Address of firm.
- (c) MBE, Non-MBE, DBE, or Non-DBE.
- (d) Age of firm.
- (e) Annual gross receipts per last calendar year.

Note that there are provisions for submitting copies for additional subcontractors, and that an "X" is required to indicate whether or not additional copies have been submitted.

**AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN (AAP) CONTRACT GOALS.** In order to be in compliance with the revised MBE/DBE laws effective September 27, 2011 or later, the bidder is required to complete the AAP information within the MDOT MBE/DBE Form A and Form B (Parts 2 and 3) of the Proposal Form Packet for State, Federal, and State Small Business Reserve Procurements. Failure to complete the information may be grounds for the bid to be declared non-responsive.

**BOOK OF STANDARDS.** The Book of Standards for Highway and Incidental Structures is only available on the Administration's Internet Site at <a href="www.roads.maryland.gov">www.roads.maryland.gov</a>. The Book of Standards can be located by clicking on Business, Business Center, Business Standards and Specifications; and Book of Standards for Highway and Incidental Structures.

**2017 STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS BOOK.** The 2017 Standard Specifications for Construction and Materials Book is now only available on the Administration's Internet Site at <a href="www.roads.maryland.gov">www.roads.maryland.gov</a>. The 2017 Specification Book can be located by clicking on Business, Business Center, Business Standards and Specifications; and Standard and Supplemental Specifications for Construction and Materials which is available for MediaWiki format.

**PAYMENT OF STATE OBLIGATIONS.** Electronic funds transfer will be used by the State to pay Contractor for this Contract and any other State payments due Contractor unless the State Comptroller's Office grants Contractor an exemption.

By submitting a response to this solicitation, the Bidder/Offeror agrees to accept payments by electronic funds transfer unless the State Comptroller's Office grants an exemption. The selected Bidder/Offeror shall register using the attached form COT/GAD X-10 Vendor Electronic Funds (EFT) Registration Request Form. Any request for exemption must be submitted to the State Comptroller's Office for approval at the address specified on the COT/GAD X-10 form and must include the business identification information as stated on the form and include the reason for the exemption.

# SPECIAL PROVISIONS NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR

An electronic form and additional information can be found at <a href="http://comptroller.marylandtaxes.com/Vendor\_Services/Accounting\_Information/Electronic\_Funds\_Transfer/">http://comptroller.marylandtaxes.com/Vendor\_Services/Accounting\_Information/Electronic\_Funds\_Transfer/</a>

**BRIDGE UNDERCLEARANCE.** The minimum underclearances shall be maintained whenever resurfacing a roadway. This may require grinding the existing pavement prior to placing the resurfacing material. Immediately after completing the resurfacing operation and when the lane closures are still in the effect, the Contractor, in the presence of the Engineer, shall measure the minimum vertical underclearance. The Engineer will submit results to the Office of Structures. The cost of these measurements will be incidental to other pertinent items specified in the Contract Documents.

**REQUEST FOR INFORMATION.** Any information regarding the requirements or the interpretation of any provision of the Contract Documents shall be requested, in writing, per the requirement of GP-2.09. Responses to questions or inquiries having any material effect on the bids shall be made by written addenda sent to all prospective bidders. The Administration will not respond to telephone requests for information concerning this invitation for bids that would materially affect the bid.

Written requests for information or questions shall be addressed to:

Special Projects Coordinator, Department of Public Works City of Takoma Park c/o Ms. Nima Upadhyay 31 Oswego Avenue Silver Spring, MD 20910

Each request for information or questions shall include the Project Name and SHA Tracking number and the name and address of the originator.

# **RIGHT OF WAY STATUS**

No right of way acquisitions are anticipated for this project. There are no relocation assistance services necessary for the above-captioned contract.

# SPECIAL PROVISIONS NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 3 of 5

**RAILROAD STATEMENT.** Federal Aid Contracts Only. Federal Aid Contract No. TAP-3(533)E

For this project, Maryland SHA is providing the following statement of coordination (check one):

No Railroad coordination required (no RR facilities are affected) (check this box when there is no railroad facility within or near the terminus of the project limits)

All Railroad work has been completed prior to the project (check this box if traffic control devices within or near the terminus of the Federal-Aid project limits comply with the current edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices)

The necessary arrangements have been made for all railroad work to be undertaken and completed as required for proper coordination with physical construction schedules. (Appropriate notification shall be provided in the PS&E for railroad coordination concurrent with the project construction)

For AREAWIDE Contracts, Maryland SHA will provide a Statement of Coordination when the Modification to the 25C is submitted, prior to NTP. (Check this box for all AREAWIDE

# REQUIRED ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS, APPROVALS AND AUTHORIZATIONS.

The Administration will obtain all required permits, approvals, or authorizations which are within the project scope and limits set forth in the contract documents and listed in the below table. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of all permits, approvals, or authorizations required for this project. All permits received by advertisement are included in the IFB. Permits received after advertisement and prior to bid opening will be added to the IFB via an addendum.

All of the indicated permits, approvals, and authorizations should be kept on-site unless indicated otherwise. Proposed changes to the project may require additional permits, approvals, and authorizations and/or modifications.

Permit/ Approval/Authorization Description	Required for this project?	Approval/ Permit/ Authorization Included in IFB? <sup>1</sup>	Permit, Approval, Or Auth. Number	Expiration Date
	LANDS, WAT	ERWAYS, CRITICAL AR	EA	
MDE Non-tidal Wetland & Waterway Permit	□Yes ⊠No	□Yes □Draft ⊠ No		
MDE Authorization to Proceed	□Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ☒ No		
MDE Letter of Authorization	☐Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ⊠ No		
MDE General Waterway Construction Permit	□Yes ⊠No	□Yes □Draft ⊠ No		
MDE Water Quality Certification	□Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ☒ No		
MDE Tidal License	☐Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ⊠ No		
MDE Tidal Permit	☐Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ⊠ No		
MDE Tidal No-License	☐Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ⊠ No		
Maryland State Programmatic General Permit	□Yes ⊠No	□Yes □Draft ⊠ No		
COE Individual Permit	☐Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ⊠ No		
U.S. Coast Guard Permit	☐Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ⊠ No		
Critical Area Commission Approval	□Yes ⊠No	□Yes □Draft ⊠ No		
MDE Water Appropriations Permit for Ground Water	□Yes ⊠No	□Yes □Draft ⊠ No		
Other	☐Yes ⊠No	☐Yes ☐Draft ⊠ No		
EROSION/SEDIMENT CONTROL & STORMWATER MANAGEMENT				
Stormwater Management and Erosion & Sediment Control Approval	⊠Yes □No	⊠Yes □Draft □ No	283317	9/22/2019
NPDES Permit for Stormwater Associated with Construction Activity <sup>2</sup>	□Yes ⊠No	□Yes □Draft ⊠ No		

Permit/ Approval/Authorization Description	Required for this project?	Approval/ Permit/ Authorization Included in IFB? <sup>1</sup>	Permit, Approval, Or Auth. Number	Expiration Date
TREES				
MD Roadside Tree Permit	☐Yes ☐No	☐Yes ☐Draft ☐ No		
Maryland Reforestation Law Approval	□Yes □No	☐Yes ☐Draft ☐ No		
Maryland Forest Conservation Act Approval	□Yes □No	☐Yes ☐Draft ☐ No		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> 'Draft' indicates the formal permit has not been obtained but draft permit conditions are included.

# **Abbreviations:**

AASCD - Anne Arundel Soil Conservation District

COE – U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

MDE – Maryland Department of the Environment

NPDES – National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> See website listed below for complete NPDES Permit requirements: <a href="http://www.mde.state.md.us/programs/Permits/WaterManagementPermits/WaterDischargePermittheory">http://www.mde.state.md.us/programs/Permits/WaterManagementPermits/WaterDischargePermittheory</a> tApplications/Documents/2014MDRC-GeneralPermit.pdf

### NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR

**EARLY SUBMISSIONS.** The last sentence of the first paragraph of TC-5.02, "No work shall be started before receipt of the Notice to Proceed" shall not apply to the following:

After notification to the Contractor from the Administration that the Contractor is the apparent low bidder, the Contractor will be permitted to provide a written request to the Engineer to submit documentation for materials sources and working drawings for any items of work that have a long lead time and could jeopardize the project schedule. Upon written approval from the Engineer the Contractor may submit the applicable documentation to the Engineer.

Should the Contract not be awarded to the apparent low bidder who meets the requirements of the Contract, GP-8.10 will apply for all costs accrued for the preparation and approval of the working drawings and any resultant material purchase approved by the District Engineer and steel fabricated in conformance with the approved working drawings between the date the Contractor received notice of apparent low bidder and the date of notice that the apparent low bidder will not be awarded this Contract.

Should this Contract not be awarded to the apparent low bidder due to failure of the Contractor to comply with all award and execution requirements, all costs accrued for the preparation of the specific items and any resultant material purchased and steel fabrication shall be borne by the Contractor.

Failure of the Contractor to submit the early submissions will not be basis for delaying issuance of the Notice to Proceed or be considered a reason for a time extension.

### **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

# GP SECTION 2 BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

**<u>DELETE:</u>** GP-SECTION 2 — BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following.

# **GP-2.01 BID IRREVOCABLE.**

Unless otherwise provided in the Invitation for Bids, bid prices are irrevocable for 90 days following bid opening.

# GP-2.02 CONTENTS OF BID FORMS.

All papers included in, bound thereto or attached to the bid form are necessary parts thereof and shall not be detached, separated or altered. The Plans, Specifications, Supplemental Specifications, referred to in the Specifications, and all other Contract Documents will be considered a part of the bid form whether attached thereto or not.

# GP-2.03 INTERPRETATION OF QUANTITIES IN BID SCHEDULE.

Where designated as estimated quantities, the quantities in the prepared bid schedule are approximate only. Payment to the Contractor will be made only for the actual quantities of work performed or materials furnished in accordance with the Contract and as provided in GP-4.04 Variations in Estimated Quantities.

## **GP-2.04 SITE INVESTIGATION.**

The Contractor acknowledges that he has investigated and satisfied himself as to the conditions affecting the work, including but not restricted to those bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling and storage of materials, availability of labor, water, electric power, roads and uncertainties of weather, river stages, tides or similar physical conditions at the site, and confirmation and conditions of the ground, the character of equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during prosecution of the work. The Contractor further acknowledges that he has satisfied himself as to the character, quality and quantity of surface and subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the site, including all exploratory work done by the State, as well as from information presented by the drawings and specifications made a part of this Contract. Any failure by the Contractor to acquaint himself with the available information may not relieve him from responsibility for estimating properly the difficulty or cost of successfully performing the work. The State assumes no responsibility for any conclusions or interpretations made by the Contractor on the basis of the information made available by the State.

# GP-2.05 TAXES-RESPONSIBILITY FOR PAYMENT, EXEMPTIONS, FORMS TO FILE, ETC.

- (a) The Contractor is responsible for, and by submitting a bid agrees to pay, all retail sales, income, real estate, sales and use, transportation and special taxes applicable to and assessable against any materials, equipment, processes and operations incident to or involved in the construction. The Contractor is responsible for ascertaining and acquainting himself with such taxes and making all necessary arrangements to pay same.
- **(b)** The Contractor shall indicate its Federal Tax Identification or Social Security number on the face of each invoice billed to the Administration.
- (c) The Administration or the Comptroller of the Treasury may withhold any payment under this Contract until the Contractor and any subcontractors performing any duties under this Contract have paid all State taxes or other obligations due the State of Maryland. The taxes or other obligations shall be resolved either by set-off of the amount due the Contractor against the amounts due the State or by direct payment.

# GP-2.06 PREPARATION OF BID.

On Administration Contracts the Contractor may elect to submit his bid on forms generated in the development of his bid as specified in TC-2.02 Preparation of Bid.

- (a) The bidder shall submit his bid upon the blank forms furnished by the Administration. The bidder shall specify a price in dollars and cents for each pay item given, and shall show the products of the respective unit prices and quantities written in figures in the column provided for that purpose, together with the total amount of the bid obtained by adding the amounts of the several items.
- (b) The bid form(s) shall be filled out legibly in ink or typed. The bid, if submitted by an individual, shall be signed by the individual. If submitted by a partnership, the bid shall be signed by such member or members of the partnership an have authority to bind the partnership. If submitted by a corporation or other business entity, the same shall be signed by an officer with his or her position stated below the signature line. Such signature shall constitute the Contractor's representation and warrant that the signing party has the Contractor's authorization to do so, binding the Contractor to the bid and to the Contract. All bids shall be signed in ink. All erasures or alterations shall be initialed by the signer in ink.
- (c) Bid Samples and Descriptive Literature. If the Invitation for Bids requires the bidder to furnish samples or descriptive literature, it shall be submitted with the bid, unless the Invitation for Bids provides otherwise.
- (d) Offerors shall identify those portions of their proposals which they deem to be confidential, proprietary information or trade secrets and provide any justification of why such materials

3 of 10

should not be disclosed by the State under the Maryland Public Information Act, Section 10-611 et seq. of the State Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland.

(e) Foreign Corporations – Pursuant to the Corporations and Associations, Title 7 of the Annotated Code of Maryland, corporations not incorporated in the State shall register with the State Department of Assessments and Taxation, before doing any interstate or foreign business in this State. Before doing any intrastate business in this State, a foreign corporation shall qualify with the Department of Assessments and Taxation.

### GP-2.07 PROPOSAL GUARANTY.

- (a) No bid will be considered for any Contract in excess of \$100,000 unless accompanied by a guaranty in an amount not less than 5 percent of the amount bid, or such amount as may be specified elsewhere in the bid documents and made payable to the State of Maryland.
- (b) Acceptable forms of security for bid guaranty shall be:
  - (1) A bond in a form satisfactory to the State underwritten by a surety company authorized to do business in this State;
  - (2) A bank certified check, bank cashier's check, bank treasurer's check, or trust account;
  - (3) Pledge of securities backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government or bonds issued by the State of Maryland; or
  - (4) Cash or other securities—if submitted pursuant to COMAR 21.06.07.01

# **GP-2.08 DELIVERY OF BIDS.**

Each bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope plainly marked to indicate its contents. When sent by mail, the sealed bid must be addressed to the Administration at the address and in care of the official in whose office the bids are to be received. All bids shall be filed prior to the time and at the place specified in the Notice to Contractors. Bids received after the time for opening of bids will be treated in accordance with the provisions of GP-2.12.

# GP-2.09 COMMUNICATIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS PRIOR TO BID OPENING.

Any information regarding the requirements or the interpretation of any provision of the General Provisions, Special General Provisions, Specifications or any part of the bidding documents shall be requested, in writing, from the procurement officer, and delivered no later than 10 days prior to the scheduled date of bid opening. Responses to questions or inquiries having any material effect on the bids shall be made by written addenda, or by written notice sent to all prospective bidders. **DO NOT MAKE VERBAL INQUIRIES**.

Any verbal interpretations or oral pre-bid statements made by State employees or their representatives shall not be binding upon the State.

# GP-2.10 AMENDMENTS TO INVITATION FOR BIDS.

- (a) Form. Each amendment to an Invitation for Bids shall be in writing and identified as such.
- **(b) Acknowledgements.** Unless otherwise provided, the bidder shall acknowledge receipt of all amendments.

# GP-2.11 PRE-OPENING MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS.

- (a) **Procedure.** Bids may be modified or withdrawn by written notice delivered to and received in the office designated in the Invitation for Bids before the time and date set for bid opening. Written notice of modification or withdrawal may be delivered by hand delivery, overnight carrier, or by US Postal mail. Any notice addressed in this subsection must be received before the time and date set for bid opening.
- **(b) Disposition of Bid Security.** If a bid is withdrawn in accordance with this regulation, the bid security, if any, shall be returned to the bidder.

# GP-2.12 LATE BIDS, LATE WITHDRAWALS, AND LATE MODIFICATIONS.

- (a) **Policy.** Any bid received at the place designated in the solicitation after the time and date set for receipt of bids is late. Any request for withdrawal or request for modification received after the time and date set for opening of bids at the place designated for opening is late.
- (b) **Treatment.** A late bid, late request for modification, or late request for withdrawal may not be considered. Late bids will be returned to the bidder unopened. Upon written approval of the Office of the Attorney General, exceptions may be made when a late bid, withdrawal, or modification is received before Contract award, and the bid, withdrawal, or modification would have been timely but for the action or inaction of State personnel directing the procurement activity or their employees.

NOTE: Provision GP-2.12(b) does not apply to Federal Aid projects.

# GP-2.13 OPENING AND RECORDING OF BIDS.

- (a) Opening and Recording. Bids and modifications shall be opened publicly, at the time, date, and place designated in the Invitation for Bids. The name of each bidder, the bid price, and such other information as is deemed appropriate shall be read aloud or otherwise made available. This information also shall be recorded at the time of bid opening. The bids shall be tabulated or a bid abstract made. The opened bid shall be available for public inspection at a reasonable time after bid opening but in any case before Contract award except to the extent the bidder designates trade secrets or other proprietary data to be confidential as set forth in COMAR 21. Material so designated shall accompany the bid and shall be readily separable from the bid in order to facilitate public inspection of the nonconfidential portion of the bid. Prices, makes, and model or catalog numbers of the items offered, deliveries, and terms of payment shall be publicly available at a reasonable time after bid opening but in any event before Contract award regardless of any designation to the contrary at the time of bid opening.
- (b) Confidential Data. The procurement officer shall examine the bids to determine the validity of any requests for nondisclosure of trade secrets and other proprietary data identified in writing. Confidential, proprietary information, and trade secrets furnished by a bidder or offeror may be disclosed to another State agency if there is a need for the information and may not be disclosed outside of State government except as provided by the Public Information Act or other applicable laws of this State.

### **GP-2.14 MISTAKES IN BIDS.**

- (a) **Mistakes Discovered Before Opening.** A bidder may correct mistakes discovered before the time and date set for bid opening by withdrawing or correcting the bid as provided in GP-2.11.
- **(b) Confirmation of Bid.** If the procurement officer knows or has reason to conclude that a mistake may have been made, the bidder may be required to confirm the bid. Situations in which confirmation may be requested include obvious, apparent errors on the face of the bid or a bid unreasonably lower than the other bids submitted. If the bidder alleges mistake, the bid may be corrected or withdrawn upon written approval of the Office of the Attorney General if any of the following conditions are met:
  - (1) If the mistake and intended correction are clearly evident on the face of the bid document, the bid shall be corrected to the intended correct bid and may not be withdrawn. Examples of mistakes that may be clearly evident on the face of the bid document are typographical errors, errors in extending unit prices, transposition errors, and arithmetical errors.
  - (2) A bidder may be permitted to withdraw a low bid if:
    - (a) A mistake is clearly evident on the face of the bid document but the intended correct bid is not similarly evident; or
    - **(b)** The bidder submits proof of evidentiary value which clearly and convincingly demonstrates that a mistake was made.
    - (c) Mistakes Discovered After Award. Mistakes may not be corrected after award of the Contract except when the procurement officer and the head of a procurement agency makes a determination that it would be unconscionable not to allow the mistake to be corrected. Changes in price are not permitted. Corrections shall be submitted to and approved by the Office of the Attorney General.

# **GP-2.15 MINOR IRREGULARITIES OR INFORMALITIES.**

**General.** Minor irregularities or informalities in bids, as defined below, may be waived if the procurement officer determines that it shall be in the State's best interest. The procurement officer may either give a bidder an opportunity to cure any deficiency resulting from a technicality or minor irregularity in its bid, or waive the deficiency where it is to the State's advantage to do so.

When at any public opening of bids, a bid appears to be irregular, as herein specified, this fact may be announced when read. Said bid shall be read as other bids and then referred to the procurement officer for consideration and appropriate action thereon in accordance with these General Provisions, Law and Regulation.

A minor irregularity is one which is merely a matter of form and not of substance or pertains to some immaterial or inconsequential defect or variation of a bid or proposal from the exact requirement of the solicitation, the correction or waiver of which would not be prejudicial to other bidders or offerors. The defect or variation in the bid or proposal is immaterial and inconsequential when its significance as to price, quantity, quality, or delivery is trivial or negligible when contrasted with the total cost or scope of the supplies or services being procured and the intent and meaning of the entire bid or proposal is clear.

# GP-2.16 CANCELLATION OF INVITATION FOR BIDS.

- (a) Before opening of bids a solicitation may be canceled in whole or in part when the State determines this action is fiscally advantageous or otherwise in its best interest.
- (b) When a solicitation is canceled before bid opening, the bids shall be returned to the vendors submitting them and notice of cancellation shall be included.

# GP-2.17 REJECTION OF INDIVIDUAL BIDS OR PROPOSALS.

- (a) Any bid may be rejected in whole or in part when it is in the best interest of the State to do so.
- (b) Reasons for rejection of a bid may include but are not limited to:
  - (1) The bid is not responsive i.e., it does not conform in all material respects to the solicitation.
  - (2) Unreasonable price;
  - (3) The bidder submitting the bid is determined to be nonresponsible. A determination of nonresponsibility may be made for, but is not limited to, any of the following reasons:
    - (a) Bidder debarred or ineligible and period of debarment or ineligibility not expired.
    - **(b)** The unit prices contained in a bid are unbalanced.
    - (c) Evidence of collusion among bidders.
    - (d) Inadequate quantity and/or quality of experience, plant, equipment, financing, manpower or other resources required to perform the Contract.
    - (e) Bidder's workload which, in the judgement of the Administration, might hinder or prevent the prompt completion of the subject work if awarded.
    - (f) Default by the bidder on other Contracts.

- (g) Failure to pay or satisfactorily settle all reasonable and just bills due for labor and material on prior or current Contracts.
- (h) The same person has an interest in more than one bid on a Contract exclusive of being named by another bidder as a subcontractor.
- (i) Failure to perform satisfactorily on other Contracts awarded, and the conditions leading to unsatisfactory performance remain unresolved.
- (j) Any other reason affecting the bidder's ability to perform, or record of business integrity.
- (k) Bidder not otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable laws and regulations.
- (4) The bidder or offeror fails to supply information to the procurement officer promptly, after notification from the procurement officer that such information is required in connection with a determination to be made pursuant to this GP-2.17.

# **GP-2.18 REJECTION OF ALL BIDS.**

- (a) After opening of bids or proposals but before award, all bids or proposals may be rejected in whole or in part when the procurement officer, with the approval of the agency head or his designee, determines that this action is fiscally advantageous or otherwise in the State's best interest.
- (b) A notice of rejection of all bids shall be sent to all vendors that submitted bids, and bids which have been opened shall be retained by the Administration.

# GP-2.19 BID EVALUATION AND AWARD.

- (a) General. The Contract is to be awarded to the responsible and responsive bidder whose bid meets the requirements and evaluation criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bids, and is either the lowest bid price or lowest evaluated bid price.
- **(b) Determination of Lowest Bidder.** Bids shall be evaluated to determine which bidder offers the lowest cost to the State in accordance with the evaluation criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bids.

Except as otherwise provided under GP-2.14 Mistakes in Bids:

(1) The unit price will govern in the event of a discrepancy between the unit price bid and the extended price (product of unit price multiplied by the quantity).

- (2) The sum of the extended prices will govern in the event of a discrepancy between the total lump sum bid and the extended prices.
- (3) The written words will govern in the event of a discrepancy between the prices written in words and the prices written in figures.
- (4) If a unit price has been omitted, the unit price will be determined by dividing the extended price by the quantity.
  - The Administration reserves the right to make the award by item, or groups of items, or total bid if it is in the best interest of the State to do so unless the bidder specifies in his bid that a particular or progressive award is not acceptable.
- (c) Award. Upon determination of the lowest bidder, review of the bid for responsiveness, and satisfaction that the bidder is responsible, the Contract may be awarded to that bidder. A Contract may be awarded to a bidder offering a higher quality item than that designated in the Invitation for Bids if that bidder is also the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.

### GP-2.20 TIE BIDS.

On Administration Federal Aid Contracts, the preference to in-State Contractors does not apply.

- (a) **Definition.** Tie bids are responsive bids from responsible bidders that are identical in price, terms and conditions and which meet all the requirements and evaluation criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bids.
- **(b) Award.** In the instance of tie bids, the award shall be made in accordance with COMAR 21.05.02.14. If identical low bids are received from an in-State and out-of-State bidder, the award shall be made to the in-State bidder. If identical low bids are received from in-State bidders or from out-of-State bidders, a drawing shall be conducted, and a witness shall be present to verify and certify the result.

# GP-2.21 RESIDENT BUSINESS PREFERENCE.

- (a) When awarding a Contract by competitive sealed bidding, if the State in which a nonresident firm submitting the lowest responsible bid is located gives a competitive advantage to its resident businesses, a procurement agency may give an identical competitive advantage to the Maryland firm submitting the lowest responsive and responsible bid in order to determine Contract award.
- **(b)** A competitive advantage may include:
  - (1) A percentage preference;
  - (2) An employee residency requirement;

- (3) Any other provision that favors a nonresident firm over a Maryland firm.
- (c) This provision GP-2.21 shall not apply if it conflicts with any Federal grant or regulation affecting this Contract.

# GP-2.22 MULTIPLE OR ALTERNATE BIDS.

Unless multiple or alternate bids are requested in the solicitation, these bids may not be accepted. However, if a bidder clearly indicates a base bid, it shall be considered for award as though it were the only bid submitted by the bidder.

# **GP-2.23 BID PROTESTS.**

A bid protest must be in writing and filed with the procurement officer. Oral objections, whether or not acted on, are not protests.

# (a) Time for Filing.

- (1) A bid protest shall be filed not later than 7 days after the basis for protest is known or should have been known, whichever is earlier.
- (2) A protest based on alleged improprieties in the solicitation which are apparent before the bid opening or the closing date for receipt of initial proposals shall be filed before the opening date or the closing date for receipt of initial proposals.
- **(b)** Content of Written Protest.
  - (1) Name and address of protestor.
  - (2) Bid or Contract number.
  - (3) Reasons for protest.
  - (4) Supporting exhibits, evidence or documents to support claim. If not available within filing time, indicate expected availability date.
  - (5) Mark envelope "protest".

Bid protests will be resolved pursuant to COMAR 21.10.02.



STATE HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION

# SPECIAL PROVISIONS INSERT GP — 7.22 NONHIRING OF EMPLOYEES

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 1 of 1

## **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

# **GP SECTION 7** LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC

**DELETE:** GP-7.22 NONHIRING OF EMPLOYEES in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following.

# **GP-7.22 NONHIRING OF EMPLOYEES**

No official or employee of the State of Maryland, as defined under General Provisions Article, §5-101, Annotated Code of Maryland, whose duties as such official or employee include matters relating to or affecting the subject matter of this contract, shall during the pendency and term of this contract and while serving as an official or employee of the State become or be an employee of the contractor or any entity that is a subcontractor on this contract.



# **SPECIAL PROVISIONS INSERT**GP — 7.34 CONFLICT OF INTEREST LAW

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

# GP SECTION 7 LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC

**DELETE:** GP-7.34 CONFLICT OF INTEREST LAW in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following.

## **GP-7.34 CONFLICT OF INTEREST LAW**

It is unlawful for any State officer, employee, or agent to participate personally in his official capacity through decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, advice, or investigation in any Contract or other matter in which he, his spouse, parent, minor child, brother, or sister has a financial interest or to which any firm, corporation, association, or other organization in which he has a financial interest or in which he is serving as an officer, director, trustee, partner, or employee is a party, or to which any person or organization with whom he is negotiating or has any arrangement concerning prospective employment, is a party, unless such officer, employee, or agent has previously complied with the provisions of General Provisions Article, Title 5 of the Annotated Code of Maryland.

The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of State Finance and Procurement Article, §13-212.1, Annotated Code of Maryland and COMAR 21.05.08.08.

# TERMS AND CONDITIONS TC SECTION 2 BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

**<u>DELETE:</u>** TC-SECTION 2 — BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following.

# TC-2.01 PROJECT CLASSIFICATION.

The Administration will estimate the cost of the Contract and classify it within one cost group and letter designation as follows:

COST GROUP ESTIMATE	COST GROUP LETTER CLASS
Up to \$ 100 000	A
\$ 100 001 to \$ 500 000	В
\$ 500 001 to \$ 1 000 000	С
\$ 1 000 001 to \$ 2 500 000	D
\$ 2 500 001 to \$ 5 000 000	Е
\$ 5 000 001 to \$ 10 000 000	F
\$10 000 001 to \$ 15 000 000	G
\$ 15 000 001 to \$ 30 000 000	Н
\$ 30 000 001 to \$ 50 000 000	I
\$ 50 000 001 to \$ 75 000 000	J
\$ 75 000 001 to \$ 100 000 000	K
Over \$ 100 000 000	L

The letter designation will be published as part of the Notice to Contractors.

# TC-2.02 PREPARATION OF BID.

The requirements of GP2.06 (Preparation of Bid) is modified for Administration Contracts to include the following after paragraph (a):

The Contractor may elect to submit the bid on forms generated in the development of the bid. When approved, these forms may be submitted in lieu of the schedule of prices bid forms furnished by the Administration in the Invitation for Bids. They shall emulate the forms currently furnished by the Administration and contain the following information.

- (1) State and Federal Contract Nos.
- (2) Administration Item Nos.
- (3) Administration Category Code Nos.
- (4) Administration Proposed Quantities
- (5) Description of Items
- (6) Unit Price
- (7) Total Cost of Each Item
- (8) Total Bid Amount

The document shall be 8-1/2 X 11 inches, and in landscape format. The font size shall be at least 10 points, with horizontal lines dividing each item. Addendums that revise items or quantities shall be noted on all affected Schedule of Prices sheets. Any special bid requirements that are noted in the Schedule of Prices shall also be listed on the form.

A sample of the form shall be submitted to the Administration at least 14 days prior to the scheduled bid opening. Contractor generated forms shall be approved in writing prior to use. If the forms were previously approved on another Administration project and were not changed, they need not be resubmitted for each project.

Sample forms shall be submitted to:

Maryland State Highway Administration Director, Office of Construction Contracts Award Team 7450 Traffic Drive Hanover, Maryland 21076

### TC-2.03 VALUE ENGINEERING CHANGE PROPOSALS.

The Contractor may submit to the District Engineer, in writing, Value Engineering Change Proposals (VECP) for modifying the Contract Documents for the purpose of reducing the total cost of construction without reducing design capacity or quality of the finished product. The District Engineer will then forward the proposal to the Chief Engineer with recommended action. The final decision to accept or deny the VECP will be made by the Chief Engineer. The Administration will not consider appeals once the final decision is made. If accepted by the Administration, net savings resulting from a VECP will be equally divided between the Administration and the Contractor.

The Contractor may elect to pursue one of the following options:

Option 1—Submit the detailed plans, specifications, and estimate of savings, or

Option 2—Submit a written concept of the VECP for tentative approval and if accepted, submit the detailed plans, specifications, and estimate for final approval at a later date.

Each VECP shall result in a net savings to the Contract cost without impairing essential functions and characteristics of the items or of any other part of the project, including but not limited to service life, reliability, economy of operation, ease of maintenance, desired aesthetics, and safety.

As a minimum, the Contractor shall submit the following information before final approval of a VECP can be given:

- (a) A statement that the proposal is submitted as a VECP.
- (b) A statement concerning the basis for the VECP and benefits to the Administration, together with an itemization of the Contract items and requirements affected by the VECP.
- (c) A detailed estimate of the cost under the existing Contract and under the VECP.
- (d) Proposed plans, specifications, and recommendations as to how the VECP changes shall be accomplished.
- (e) A statement as to the time by which a change order adopting the VECP must be issued so as to obtain the maximum cost effectiveness. The Administration will require 30 days to review and approve a VECP.
- (f) The Contractor's engineering cost for the VECP.

The Administration will process the VECP in the same manner as prescribed for any other proposal that would necessitate issuance of a change order. The Administration may accept, in whole or in part, any VECP by issuing a change order, which will identify the VECP on which it is based. The Administration will not be liable to the Contractor for failure to accept or act upon any VECP submitted pursuant to these requirements nor for any delays to the work attributable to any VECP proposal. Until a proposal is affected by a change order, the Contractor shall remain obligated to the terms and conditions of the existing Contract. If an executed change order has not been issued by the date upon which the Contractor's proposal specifies that a decision should be made, or any other date as the Contractor may subsequently have specified in writing, the proposal shall be deemed rejected.

The change order affecting the necessary Contract modification will establish the net savings agreed upon, will provide for adjustment in the Contract prices or Contract time, and will indicate the net savings to be equally divided between the Contractor and the Administration. The Contractor's costs for preparation of the VECP and the Administration's costs to review and administer the VECP will be deducted from the gross savings. The Administration reserves the right to include in the agreement any conditions it deems appropriate for consideration, approval, and implementation of the proposal. The Contractor's 50 percent share of the net savings shall constitute full compensation for affecting all changes pursuant to the agreement.

Acceptance of the VECP and performance of the additional work will not change the Contract time limit as a result of the VECP, unless specifically provided for in the change order authorizing the VECP.

The Administration expressly reserves the right to adopt a VECP for general use in Contracts administered by the Administration when it determines that the proposal is suitable for application to other Contracts. VECPs identical or similar to previously submitted proposals will be eligible for consideration and compensation under these provisions if such proposals were not previously adopted for general application to other Contracts administered by the Administration. When a VECP is adopted for general use, compensation pursuant to these requirements will be applied only to those Contracts awarded and for which the subject VECP has been submitted prior to the date of adoption of the specific VECP.

Proposed changes in the basic design of a bridge or pavement type, or requiring modification to the right of way limits, will not normally be considered as an acceptable VECP. Quantity decreases or elimination of any Contract pay items as a result of changing field conditions, errors, etc. will not be considered as an acceptable VECP. If a VECP is based upon or similar to a change in the Plans, Specifications, or Special Provisions adopted by the Administration prior to submission of the VECP, the Chief Engineer will reject the proposal.

These requirements apply to all VECPs initiated and developed by the Contractor and which are identified as such by the Contractor at the time of its submission to the Chief Engineer; however, nothing herein shall be construed as requiring the Chief Engineer to consider or approve a VECP submitted by the Contractor.

Subject to these provisions, the Administration or any other public agency will have the right to use all or part of any accepted VECP on other projects without obligation or compensation of any kind to the Contractor.

In the event a VECP is accepted by the Administration, the provisions of the Contract Documents that pertain to adjustment of Contract unit prices due to alterations of Contract quantities will not apply to the items adjusted or deleted as a result of affecting the VECP by change

### TC-2.04 OWNER/OPERATOR.

For the purpose of labor compliance, the term "Owner/Operator" will be defined as being the individual who owns and operates their own vehicle.

The prevailing wage rates shall not apply to these individuals. However, they shall appear on the payroll of the Contractor or subcontractor with the notation "Owner/Operator".

Employees of Owner/Operator shall be subject to prevailing wage rates and shall appear on a certified payroll.

# TC-2.05 DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION.

Pursuant to the emergency regulations which were approved by the Administrative and Executive Legislative Review (AELR) Committee of the Maryland General Assembly on July 27, 1982, and which went into effect on July 28, 1982, the Maryland Department of Transportation, State Highway Administration has pursuant to applicable laws and regulation established a list of Debarred or Suspended Contractors.

The current list of Debarred or Suspended Contractors or Suppliers is available at the Administration's Cashier's Office, Baltimore, Maryland.

# TC-2.06 PARTNERING.

The Administration invites the Contractor, subcontractors, and suppliers to participate in a voluntary partnership agreement for the work. The partnership will be structured to draw on the strengths of each organization through open communication, teamwork, and cooperative action to identify and achieve reciprocal goals. The objectives are effective and efficient Contract performance, completion within the Contract bid price, on schedule, and in conformance with the Contract Documents. This partnership will not change the legal relationship of the parties to the Contract nor relieve any party from any of the terms of the Contract.

The Administration will contact the Contractor to determine if there is an interest in partnering. If the Contractor is interested, the Administration's Assistant District Engineer Construction and the Contractor's management representative will meet, plan, and organize a partnering development team. Persons recommended to be on the team are: The Administration's District Engineer, Assistant District Engineer, Area Engineer, Construction Project Engineer, and Project Design Engineer, the Contractor's designated on site project manager, and key project supervision personnel of both the Contractor and principal subcontractors and suppliers. FHWA and key local government personnel will also be invited to attend as necessary. The initial workshop team meeting will be held prior to the Preconstruction Conference. Follow up workshops may be held regularly as agreed by the Contractor and the Administration.

# **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

TC - SECTION 2 — BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

6 of 6

The partnership will be bilateral. Participation is voluntary. All partnering costs will be shared equally by the Contractor and the Administration.



# SPECIAL PROVISIONS INSERT

TC — 2.12 DEBARMENT / SUSPENSION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

## TERMS AND CONDITIONS

# TC SECTION 2 BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

**<u>DELETE</u>**: TC-2.12 — DEBARMENT / SUSPENSION in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following.

# TC-2.12 DEBARMENT / SUSPENSION

Pursuant to the emergency regulations which were approved by the Administrative and Executive Legislative Review (AELR) Committee of the Maryland General Assembly on July 27, 1982, and which went into effect on July 28, 1982, the Maryland Department of Transportation, State Highway Administration has pursuant to applicable laws and regulation established a list of Debarred or Suspended Contractors.

The current list of Debarred or Suspended Contractors or Suppliers is available as follows:

- **1.** Visit <a href="http://bpw.maryland.gov/Pages/debarments.aspx">http://bpw.maryland.gov/Pages/debarments.aspx</a> for contractors barred from doing business with Maryland Government.
- 2. Visit <a href="http://www.sam.gov/">http://www.sam.gov/</a> and click on 'Search Records' for exclusions.

TC — 4.02 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN PROJECT

### TERMS AND CONDITIONS

# TC SECTION 4 CONTROL OF WORK

## TC-4.02 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN PROJECT

**ADD:** As a third paragraph.

Additionally, an appropriate deduction will be made from the Contractor's next progress estimate for each day or portion thereof that Maintenance of Traffic deficiencies exist, and will continue until the deficiencies are satisfactorily corrected and accepted by the Engineer. Any portion of a day will be assessed a full day deduction. The deduction will be equal to a prorata share of the lump sum price bid for Maintenance of Traffic or an amount prorated from the Engineer's estimate, whichever is more. The amount prorated will be the per diem amount established by using the working days (based upon calendar dates when required) divided into the total value of the bid item or the Engineer's estimate of that item, whichever is more.

The above noted deduction will be assessed on the next progress estimate if:

The Contractor does not take action to correct the deficiencies and properly assume the responsibilities of maintaining the project (as determined by the Engineer) within four hours of receiving a notice to comply with the required maintenance provisions.

The deduction will be equal to the daily prorated share of the lump sum price bid for Maintenance of Traffic or \$350 per day, whichever is more for each day or portion thereof that the deficiencies exist, and will continue until the deficiencies and proper assumption of the required maintenance provisions are satisfactorily corrected and accepted by the Engineer. The amount of monies deducted will be a permanent deduction and are not recoverable. Upon satisfactory correction of the deficiencies, payment of the Maintenance of Traffic lump sum item will resume.

# TC SECTION 7 PAYMENT

## TC-7.09 PRICE ADJUSTMENT FOR DIESEL FUEL

(a) General. A Price Adjustment (PA) will be made to provide additional compensation to the Contractor or a credit to the Administration for the fluctuation in the cost of diesel fuel.

The monthly index price used for calculating the PA will be the On-Highway Diesel Fuel Price for the Central Atlantic Region published by the U.S. Department of Energy, Energy Information Administration, at <a href="https://www.eia.doe.gov">www.eia.doe.gov</a>. The monthly index price will be the average of the weekly prices posted for the month.

The prevailing base index price will be the price specified for Diesel Fuel currently posted at <a href="www.roads.maryland.gov">www.roads.maryland.gov</a> (Business Center /Contracts, Bids, and Proposals) prior to bid opening. A historical database will be maintained by the Administration.

The adjustment factors for specific categories of the work are included in Table TC-7.09. Category <u>D</u> will apply to this Contract.

The PA will be calculated when the index for the current month increases or decreases more than 5 percent of the base index. The total dollar amount of fuel adjustment will be limited to 5 percent of the Contract Total Amount as bid. If an increase or decrease in costs exceeds 5 percent of the Contract Total Amount as bid, no further adjustment will be made.

Computations for adjustment will be as follows:

Percent Change =  $[(E - B)/B] \times 100$ 

 $PA = [E - (B \times D)] \times F \times Q$ 

## Where:

PA = Amount of the price adjustment

E = Current monthly index price

B = Prevailing base index price

D = 1.05 when increase is over 5%; 0.95 when decrease is over 5%

F = Applicable fuel adjustment factor from Table TC-7.09

O = Ouantity of individual units of work

**TABLE TC-7.09** 

COST ADJUSTMENT FACTORS FOR DIESEL FUEL			
CATEGORY	DESCRIPTION	UNITS	<b>FACTOR</b>
A	Sum of Cubic Yards of Excavation in Category 200	Gallons/Cubic Yard	0.29
В	Sum of Structure Concrete in Category 400	Gallons/Cubic Yard	1.892
С	Sum of Aggregate Base in Category 500	Gallons per ton	0.60
D	Sum of HMA in Category 500	Gallons per ton	3.50
Е	Sum of Rigid Concrete Pavement in Category 500	Gallons/Cubic Yard	0.95

Any difference between the checked final quantity and the sum of quantities shown on the monthly estimates for any item will be adjusted by the following formula:

$$FPA = [(FCQ \div PRQ) -1] \times EA$$

### Where:

FPA = Final PA for the item that increased or decreased

FCQ = Final Checked Quantity of the item

PRQ = Total Quantity of the item reported on the most recent estimate

EA = Total PA of the item shown on most recent estimate

- **(b) Price Adjustment Criteria and Conditions.** The following criteria and conditions will be considered in determining the PA.
  - (1) **Payment.** The PA will be computed on a monthly basis. PA resulting in increased payment to the contractor will be paid under the item Price Adjustment for Diesel Fuel. The item amount will be established by the Administration, and shall not be revised by the Contractor. PA resulting in a decreased payment will be deducted from monies owed the Contractor.

The monthly base price for determining a PA for all work performed after the Contract completion date, as revised by an approved time extensions, will be the monthly base price at the time of the Contract completion date (as extended) or at the time the work was performed, whichever is less.

- (2) Expiration of Contract Time. When eligible items of work are performed after the expiration of Contract time with assessable liquidated damages, no PA will be made.
- (3) Final Quantities. Upon completion of the work and determination of final pay quantities, an adjusting Change Order will be prepared to reconcile any difference between estimated quantities previously paid and the final quantities.
- (4) **Inspection of Records.** The Administration reserves the right to inspect the records of the Contractor to ascertain actual pricing and cost information for the diesel fuel used in the performance of the applicable items of work.
- (5) Additional Work. When applicable items of work, as specified herein, are added to the Contract as additional work, in accordance with the Contract provisions, no PA will be made for the fluctuations in the cost of diesel fuel unless otherwise approved by the Engineer. The Contractor shall use current fuel costs when preparing required backup data for work to be performed at a negotiated price.
- (6) Force Account. Additional work performed on a force account basis, reimbursement for material, equipment, and man-hours as well as overhead and profit markups will be considered to include full compensation for the current cost of diesel fuel

# CATEGORY 100 PRELIMINARY

### **SECTION 103 – ENGINEERS OFFICE**

**DELETE:** 103.03.06 Microcomputer System for all Offices in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following.

**103.03.06 Computer System.** Furnish  $\underline{1}$  desktop computers and  $\underline{1}$  laptop computers, printers and or multifunction printers and other equipment as specified herein.

# General Requirements.

- (a) IBM compatible with an Intel Core i5 processor.
- (b) Minimum hard drive storage of 500 GB (gigabyte).
- (c) One CD-RW drive (re-writable CD-ROM). 16X Minimum speed.
- (d) Operating System. Minimum Microsoft® Windows 7 Professional Edition. The computer system will not be acceptable unless all Microsoft Windows Critical Updates are installed.
- (e) Printer. When an Engineers Office is specified, furnish a color all-in-one laser printer/scanner/copier/fax with at least 64 MB of RAM and meeting the following minimum requirements:
  - (1) Input paper capacity of 150 sheets.
  - (2) Automatic document feed of 35 page capacity.
  - (3) Printer resolution up to 600 X 2400 dpi, and a print speed (color) of at least 15 ppm.
  - (4) Scanner resolution must be capable of 1200 x 2400 dpi optical. Built in Copier resolution must be capable of up to 600 X 600 dpi. Copier speed of at least 15 ppm.
  - (5) Fax speed of at least 2 sec / page.
  - (6) For security reasons a printer with an internal hard drive installed is not allowed.
- **(f)** Software. Supply all manuals, license numbers, software key numbers, and/or software on original disks for retention in the Engineers Office or Administration facility for the duration of the Contract.
  - (1) Microsoft® Office 2007 Professional (32-Bit version only), for Windows™ or later. The computer system will not be acceptable unless all available Microsoft Office Professional critical updates and service packs are installed.

- (2) Install and configure antivirus/antispyware software to perform an automatic virus signature update when the microcomputer system connects to the internet. No Freeware allowed (Antivirus/AntiSpyware software approved for Administration web email: \*Norton, \*McAfee, Sophos, or ETrust.)
- (g) Internet Access. Provide unlimited internet service approved by the Engineer. Where available, provide internet high-speed service from cable. DSL service will be acceptable only if cable service is not available. Provide an external router device with cable or DSL internet service. Provide firewall software to protect the computer from security intrusions.
  - \*Both Norton Internet Security and McAfee Internet Security include Antivirus and a Personal Firewall.
- (h) Accessories.
  - (1) When an Engineers office is specified, provide a standard computer workstation with minimum desk space of 60 X 30 in. and a padded swivel type chair with armrests.
  - (2) 8-1/2 X 11 in. xerographic paper as needed.
  - (3) Toner and ink as needed.
  - (4) Maintenance agreement to provide for possible down time.
  - (5) Physical security system to deter theft of the computer and components.
  - (6) Three 4-GB (minimum size acceptable) USB flash drive storage devices.
  - (7) Blank recordable CD-RW media as needed.

# **Desktop Specific Requirements.**

- (a) IBM compatible with an Intel Core i5 processor.
- (b) Minimum processor speed of 3.0 GHz.
- (c) Minimum of 4 GB RAM.
- (d) Enhanced 101 key keyboard with wrist rest.
- (e) Super video graphics accelerator (SVGA).
- (f) Mouse and mouse pad.
- (g) Flat-panel LCD monitor (19 in. minimum) meeting Energy Star requirements.

103 — ENGINEERS OFFICE

3 of 4

(h) Uninterruptible power supply (UPS).

# Laptop Specific Requirements.

- (a) Must meet military standard of durability MIL-STD 810G.
- **(b)** Minimum processor speed of 3.2 GHz.
- (c) Minimum 4 GB SDRAM.
- (d) Minimum 15 in. 1024x768 (XGA), daylight-readable, 500nits (cd/m2) LCD display.
- (e) Power Supply. Two lithium ion battery packs with overcharge protection, an AC adaptor, and a vehicle DC power adaptor that operates the laptop and simultaneously charges the laptop's internal battery.
- (f) Carrying Case.
- (g) Printer. When an Engineers Office is not specified, furnish a portable B&W printer with DC power adapter and having a minimum resolution of 1200 dpi, at least 8 MB of RAM, and a print speed of at least 15 ppm. (Note: A color printer may be substituted if a digital camera is specified. Refer to SP-Section 113).
- (h) Internet Service. If an Engineers office is not specified, furnish the laptop with an internal wireless broadband card and broadband internet service.

Have the computer system completely set up and ready for use on or before the day the Engineers office is to be occupied. When an Engineers office is not specified, have the computer system furnished complete and ready for use at least five days prior to beginning any work on the project.

The computer system is for the sole use of the Engineer. The engineer will have complete access to the system. After all specified software is satisfactorily installed by the contractor an SHA technician/ representative will ensure that no user accounts exist on the computer system except those used by the Engineer.

If for any reason the system fails to operate, is stolen, or is otherwise unavailable for use, it shall be replaced or repaired within 48 hours.

Any remote access to the computer system by the contractor may be performed only with the permission and supervision of the Engineer.

When the computer system is no longer required, the Construction Management software system including original user/operator guide manuals, program disks, and all data files (including those stored on USB flash drives, CD-R's, etc.) will be removed by the Engineer and delivered to the District Engineer and become the property of the Administration. The remaining computer systems shall remain the property of the Contractor.

# 103.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.

**ADD:** The following as a fourth paragraph.

**Computer.** The computer system will not be measured but the cost will be incidental to the Contract price for the Engineers Office item. If an item for Engineers Office is not specified, the cost of the computer system will be incidental to the payment for Mobilization. In absence of either item, payment will be incidental to the other items specified in the Contract Documents.

# CATEGORY 100 PRELIMINARY

# SECTION 104 — MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

# 104.01 TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN (TCP)

# **104.01.01 DESCRIPTION.**

**<u>DELETE:</u>** The fourth paragraph sentence "Refer to contract Documents for Work Restrictions." in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following.

# Work Restrictions.

Work is not permitted on the following holidays indicated below with an "X", nor is work permitted on the day immediately preceding and immediately following the holidays indicated below with an "X".

X	New Year's Day, January 1
	Martin Luther King's Birthday, the third Monday in January
	President's Day, the third Monday in February
X	Good Friday
X	Easter Weekend
X	Memorial Day, the last Monday in May
X	Independence Day, July 4
X	Labor Day, the first Monday in September
	Columbus Day, the second Monday in October
	Veterans Day, November 11
X	Thanksgiving Day, the fourth Thursday in November
	Christmas Day, December 25
V	Work is not permitted on the following weekend days indicated below with an "X".
X X	Saturdays, unless prior written approval is given by the Engineer Sundays, unless prior written approval is given by the Engineer

TEMPORARY LANE OR SHOULDER CLOSURE SCHEDULE				
ROADWAY	# LANE(S) / SHOULDER CAN BE CLOSED	DAY OF THE WEEK	CLOSURE PERIOD (TIME OF DAY)	
Curb, Sidewalk, SWM Installation	1/1	Mon – Fri	9:00 AM – 3:00 PM	
Grinding & Resurfacing	1/1	Mon - Fri	9:00 AM – 3:00 PM	

<u>ADD</u>: The following after the last paragraph, "Any monetary savings...and the Administration."

When closing, or opening a lane or shoulder on freeways, expressways, and roadways with posted speed  $\geq 55$  mph, ensure a work vehicle is closely followed by a protection vehicle (PV) during installation and removal of temporary traffic control devices. The PV shall consist of a work vehicle with approved flashing lights, either a truck-mounted attenuator (TMA) with support structure designed for attaching the system to the work vehicle or a trailer truck-mounted attenuator (TTMA) designed for attaching the system to the work vehicle by a Pintle hook and an arrow panel (arrow mode for multilane roadways and caution mode on two-lane, two-way roadways).

Temporary Traffic Control for shoulder work along freeways, expressways, and roadways with posted speed > 55 mph shall include the use of a PV. The PV shall be

outfitted with a TMA or TTMA as noted above and be positioned on the shoulder to protect the work area throughout the duration of the shoulder work operation.

The work vehicle size and method of attachment shall be as specified in the TMA/TTMA manufacturer's specification as tested under NCHRP and/or MASH Test Level 3.

When a temporary lane or shoulder closure is in effect, begin work within one hour after the lane is closed. For any delay, greater than one hour and no work in progress, remove the lane/shoulder closure. Ensure the Traffic Manager attends the Pre-Construction, Pre-Structural Steel Erection, Pre-Concrete Placement, Pre-MOT Shift, and Pre-Paving Meetings and is prepared to competently discuss traffic control, the Traffic Control Plan (TCP), and the procedures to be implemented for lane closures.

All closures shall be in conformance with the approved TCP and at the direction of the Traffic Manager and the Engineer.

Workers and equipment, including temporary traffic control devices needed for setting up a lane closure or restriction, are prohibited in the lane/shoulder to be closed or restricted before the time permitted in the Contract Documents unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.

Temporary traffic control devices to be used for lane/shoulder closure may be placed on the shoulder of the roadway by workers no earlier than <u>30</u> minutes prior to the actual time lane/shoulder closure or restriction is permitted. When temporary traffic control devices are being installed, ensure that all work vehicles involved in the installation display flashing lights that provide a 360-degree visibility of the vehicles. These lights shall remain on until the full installation of TTC devices is complete. Temporary traffic signs may be displayed to traffic at this time.

Workers shall not enter any lane open to traffic. Workers may be present on shoulders to prepare for lane closure setup no earlier than 30 minutes prior to the actual time lane/shoulder closures or restrictions are permitted. During preparation for the lane closure, ensure that all work vehicles at the site and involved in the installation of the lane closure or restriction display flashing lights that provide 360-degree visibility of the vehicles, as required by MD 104.01-18B. These lights shall remain on while the vehicle remains in the work zone and until the full implementation of the road closure or restriction is complete.

Restore all temporary lane or shoulder closures at the end of the closure period and ensure that no travel lane has been reduced to less than 11 ft on expressways, freeways and 10 ft on other roadways. Prior to opening the closed lane or shoulder, clear the lane or shoulder of all material, equipment, and debris.

Failure to restore full traffic capacity within the time specified will result in a deduction assessed in conformance with the following.

104.01 — TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN

5 of 5

This is in addition to the requirements specified in TC-4

### CATEGORY 100 PRELIMINARY

#### SECTION 104 — MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

#### 104.21 CELLULAR TELEPHONES.

**104.21.01 DESCRIPTION.** Furnish and maintain new or like new cellular telephones for use by the appropriate Administration personnel. Each telephone shall be furnished with a handsfree device and be delivered to the Engineer at time of Notice to Proceed, fully activated and operational. They shall remain operational until returned to the Contractor at final acceptance of the entire project in conformance with GP-5.13.

#### 104.21.02 MATERIALS.

Cellular Telephones

As approved by the Engineer

## **104.21.03 CONSTRUCTION.** Not applicable.

**104.21.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.** The number of cellular telephones required for this Contract is <u>1</u> The cellular telephones will not be measured but will be incidental to the Contract price for the Engineers Office item. If an item for Engineers Office is not specified, payment for the cellular telephones will be incidental to the payment for Mobilization. In the absence of either item, payment will be incidental to the other items specified in the Contract Documents. The payment will be full compensation for furnishing the telephones and hands-free devices, activation fees, battery replacement, monthly service fees, extended coverage charges, air time (peak and nonpeak time per minute), roaming rates, long distance fees in conformance with the schedules provided, and for all material, labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. If any of the telephones become defective, are stolen, or for any other reasons do not function as intended, they shall be replaced in-kind at no additional cost to the City of Takoma Park. Nonfunctioning or stolen telephones shall be replaced within eight hours after the Contractor is notified by the Engineer.

Ownership of the telephones will remain with the Contractor. The City of Takoma Park assumes no responsibility or liability for the condition of the telephones when they are returned.

### CATEGORY 100 PRELIMINARY

#### SECTION SP-Section 113 – DIGITAL CAMERA

**113.01 DESCRIPTION.** Furnish and maintain new or like new digital cameras for use by Administration personnel. For projects that do not include an Engineer's Office, furnish one color printer. The digital cameras and printer shall be delivered to the Engineer at the time of the Notice to Proceed. They shall remain operational and not be returned to the Contractor until final acceptance of the entire project, in conformance with GP-5.13.

#### 113.02 MATERIALS.

- (a) **Digital Camera.** Each digital camera shall meet the following minimum requirements and be furnished with the specified accessories:
  - (1) Photo Managing Software.
  - (2) 16.0 megapixel image resolution and 5X optical zoom.
  - (3) AC adapter, 2 sets of rechargeable batteries, and battery charger.
  - (4) 16 GB SD Card or memory stick with all items required for downloading.
  - (5) Lens Cover, Shoulder Strap, and Carrying Case.
- **(b) Color Printer.** The printer shall have at least 8 MB RAM, 2400 x 1200 dpi resolution, a color print speed of 13 ppm, and a duty cycle of 5,000 pages/month.

## 113.03 CONSTRUCTION. Not applicable.

113.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT. The number of digital cameras required for this project is \_\_\_\_\_\_. The digital cameras and printer will not be measured but the cost will be incidental to the Contract price for the Engineers Office item. If an item for Engineers Office is not specified, payment will be incidental to the payment for Mobilization. In the absence of either item, payment will be incidental to the other items specified in the Contract Documents. If a digital camera or printer becomes defective, is stolen, or for any other reason does not function as intended, it shall be replaced with an approved camera or printer at no additional cost to the Administration. A nonfunctioning or stolen camera or printer shall be replaced by the SHA Project prime contractor within 5 days after the Engineer notifies the Contractor.

### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

SP-Section 113 – DIGITAL CAMERA

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

2 of 2

Ownership of the camera(s) and printer(s) will be with the assigned SHA project personnel during the progression of the project. Pictures and removable media will be the property of the State Highway Administration. The State Highway Administration assumes neither responsibility nor liability for the condition of the camera when returned after project is satisfactorily completed.

# CATEGORY 100 PRELIMINARY SECTION 120 — TREE PRESERVATION AREA

#### **120.02 MATERIALS.**

### 214 **INSERT**: The following:

Water 920.09.01

Root Aeration Matting Refer to detail on Tree Save Plan Geo-Grid Refer to detail on Tree Save Plan

### 120.03 CONSTRUCTION.

## 120.03.04 Tree Preservation Meeting.

215 **DELETE:** Section 120.03.04 in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following:

Prior to beginning work, meet at the TPA with the Engineer, City of Takoma Park Arborist, and the LTE to review the TPP. Multiple tree preservation meetings may be required to facilitate construction of this project, in accordance with the Tree Save Plans.

## 120.03.05 Tree Preservation Operations.

## 215 **INSERT:** The following:

- (d) **Tree Root Pruning.** Section 715 and in accordance with the root pruning detail and notes on the Tree Save Plans. Root Pruning shall be conducted to the depth of excavation as determined during the tree preservation meeting(s), not 24" depth as indicated under 715.03.08 Operations.
  - (e) **Contingent Tree Fertilizing.** Section 716. All fertilization applications for the project shall be via injection as specified in 716.03.07 Operations (b), unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.
  - (f) Contingent Supplemental Tree Watering. Supplemental watering of trees shall be conducted to reduce water stress during construction, as directed by the LTE and approved by the Engineer and City Arborist in accordance with the Tree Preservation Program on the Tree Save Plans. The root zones of trees affected by construction activities shall be thoroughly watered with clean water using a hose with nozzle end breaker, watering probe, or other appropriate watering implement, as approved by the Engineer. Watering shall be conducted on an as needed basis depending upon rainfall, temperature, and humidity, as determined by the LTE.
  - (g) Contingent Supersonic Air Tool (SSAT)/Soil Vacuum Trenching (SVT)

and Tree Root Pruning. The LTE shall provide Supersonic Air Tool/Soil Vacuum Trenching services for soil excavation of tree roots at project locations for sidewalk and water house connections, as determined necessary by the LTE and approved by the Engineer and City Arborist. The SSAT/SVT shall meet current arboriculture industry standards, and shall be approved by the Engineer prior to use on the project. Tree roots shall be exposed with the SSAT/SVT, and pruned with hand tools or approved equipment at the direction of the LTE. Root pruning shall be conducted in accordance with the root pruning detail and notes on the approved Forest Conservation/Tree Save Plans using hand tools and/or approved equipment. The LTE shall be on-site to provide tree protection guidance during SSAT activities. SSAT activities shall be closely coordinated with the Engineer, City Arborist, and the Contractor.

(h) Contingent At Grade Sidewalk. The Contractor shall install at grade sidewalks to reduce impacts to adjacent trees using Root Aeration Matting (RAM) and Geo-Grid under the direction of the LTE, in accordance with the details and locations shown on the Tree Save Plans. The RAM and Geo-Grid shall be approved by the Engineer and City Arborist prior to use on the project. The Contractor and LTE shall layout the proposed at grade sidewalks in the field for review and approval by the Engineer and City Arborist prior to commencement of construction.

#### 120.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.

216 **DELETE:** Section 120.04.07 in its entirety.

**INSERT:** The following:

Licensed Tree Expert (LTE) Services will be paid for at the Contract lump sum price. Payment for LTE services will be full compensation for all project tree preservation consultation, meetings, and construction supervision adjacent to sensitive trees, including supervision of trimming operations, supplemental watering, fertilization, and at grade sidewalk construction.

**INSERT:** The following:

**120.04.08** Contingent Supplemental Tree Watering. Supplemental Tree Watering will be measured and paid for at the Contract unit price per gallon applied.

**120.04.09** Contingent SSAT/SVT. Supersonic Air Tool (SSAT)/Soil Vacuum Trenching (SVT) and Tree Root Pruning, as directed by the LTE and approved by the Engineer, will be measured and paid for at the Contract unit price per day (UD) of services provided. Payment will be full compensation for all materials, labor, equipment, tools and incidentals necessary to complete the work, including LTE consultation, SSAT/SVT equipment use, and pruning of tree roots. The Unit Day will begin and end at the work site, as approved by the Engineer.

**120.04.10** SSAT/SVT for lighting conduit installation will be measured and paid for per linear foot (LF) of the 3 Inch Schedule 80 Rigid PVC Conduit - Air Spaded item

### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

SP - Section 120 - TREE PRESERVATION

3 of 3

**120.04.11** Contingent At Grade Sidewalk, as directed by the LTE and approved by the Engineer and City Arborist, will be measured and paid for at the Contract Unit price per square feet (SF). Payment will be full compensation for all materials, labor, equipment, tools and incidentals necessary to complete the work, including root aeration matting & geo-grid, concrete sidewalk, No. 57 stone base and topsoil backfill.

#### CATEGORY 200 GRADING

#### SECTION 203 — BORROW EXCAVATION

#### 203.01.02 Notice to Contractor — Borrow Pits.

**ADD:** After the first paragraph.

This project is located in <u>Montgomery County</u>. The following conditions applicable to the county or city shall be complied with and documented.

#### **DISTRICT 1**

Dorchester (DO) County

Site plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Grading permit from County Highway Department (except City of Cambridge).

Planning and Zoning approval for use.

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Inspection by County.

Somerset (SO) County

Site plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Grading Permit from the County.

Land Use permit.

Critical Areas approval by Planning and Zoning (if applicable).

Inspection by SHA.

Wicomico (WI) County

Site plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Certificate of compliance with Planning and Zoning if located in Critical Area.

Inspection by SHÂ.

Worcester (WO) County

Site plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Critical areas approved by Planning and Zoning (if applicable).

Inspection by SHA.

#### **DISTRICT 2**

Caroline (CO), Cecil (CE), Queen Anne's (QA) and

Talbot (TA) Counties

Site plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Planning and Zoning approval.

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Inspection by SHA.

Kent (KE) County

Site plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Grading permit.

Planning and Zoning approval.

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Inspection by SHA.

## 2 of 3

#### **DISTRICT 3**

Montgomery (MO) County

Sediment control permit and plan approval by County

Department of Environmental Protection, Division of

Water Resources Management, Storm Water Management Section/Sediment Control.

Approval by Maryland National Capital Park and Planning Commission (if applicable).

Inspection by County.

Prince Georges (PG) County

Site Plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

County Grading Permit.

Tree conservation plan approval by Maryland National Capital Park and Planning Commission (if applicable).

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Payment of all pertinent county fees and/or securing of county required bonding.

Inspection by SHA with oversight by County.

#### **DISTRICT 4**

Baltimore (BA) County

Site Plan approved by the Department of Environmental Protection and the Soil Conservation District.

County Grading Permit.

Critical Areas approval by the Department of Environmental Protection and Resource Management (if applicable).

Inspection by County.

Harford (HA) County

Site Plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

County Grading Permit.

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Inspection by County.

#### **DISTRICT 5**

Anne Arundel (AA) County

Site Plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Planning and zoning approval - special exception required.

Grading plan issued by the County Department of Inspections and Permits.

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Inspection by County and SHA.

Calvert (CA) County

Site Plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Grading plan issued by the County after a mining permit or exemption is issued.

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Inspection by SHA.

#### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

#### 203 — BORROW EXCAVATION

3 of 3

#### Charles (CH) County

Site Plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Special exception granted by the County.

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Inspection by SHA.

#### St. Mary's (SM) County

Site Plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

County Grading Permit.

Critical Areas approval (if applicable).

Inspection by SHA.

#### DISTRICT 6

## Allegany (AL) County

Site plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

Informational copy of plans to County Planning and Zoning Commission.

Inspection by SHA.

#### Garrett (GA) and Washington (WA) Counties

Site plan approval by Soil Conservation District.

Inspection by SHA.

#### DISTRICT 7

#### Carroll (CL) County

Site plan approved by County Planning Commission.

Sediment control plan approval by Soil Conservation District.

County Grading Permit.

Inspection by County.

#### Frederick (FR) County

Site plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

County Grading Permit.

Inspection by SHA.

#### Howard (HO) County

Site Plan approved by Soil Conservation District.

County Grading Permit.

Inspection by County.

#### **BALTIMORE CITY (BC)**

Site plan approved Baltimore City Department of Public Works (BCDPW). Inspection by BCDPW.

117

#### STATE AND FEDERAL PROPERTY

Borrow pits located on state and federal property are subject to Maryland Department of the Environment approval.

Inspection by SHA.

## 204 – EMBANKMENT AND SUBGRADE

## CATEGORY 200 GRADING

## **SECTION 204 – EMBANKMENT AND SUBGRADE**

## 204.03 CONSTRUCTION.

204.03.01 Embankment Foundation.

- 227 **ADD:** The following:
  - (d) All Class 1 Excavation shall be considered as waste for this project.

## CATEGORY 600 SHOULDERS

#### **SECTION 600 - FLEXIBLE SIDEWALK**

**DESCRIPTION.** This work shall consist of furnishing and installing Flexible Sidewalk in the locations identified on the plans and in accordance with these Special Provisions and as directed by the Engineer.

#### MATERIALS.

**Flexible Sidewalk** shall be similar to the City of Takoma Park's New Ave Streetscape Standards (2014) Capitol Flexipave sustainable porous pavement, color shall be a medium to dark gray. Flexible sidewalk shall be comprised of three components: recycled passenger car tires, aggregate, and urethane binder that provides a strong, pervious, yet flexible paving. Flexible sidewalk shall be provided by one of the following manufacturers:

Capitol Flexipave, <a href="http://www.capitolflexipave.com/">http://www.capitolflexipave.com/</a>
Porous Pave, <a href="http://www.porouspaveinc.com/">http://www.porouspaveinc.com/</a>
Filter Pave, <a href="http://filterpave.com/">http://filterpave.com/</a>
Or approved equal by City of Takoma Park

#### Referenced Standards.

#### **ASTM** standards:

ASTM C 666/C 666M-03, "Standard Test Method for Resistance of Concrete to Freezing and Thawing, Procedure A - freezing and Thawing in Water." Samples shall indicate only minimal mass change results after 300 nominal freeze-thaw cycles, and visual examination of the test specimens shall indicate no cracks or breaks.

D 3385-03 Standard Test Method for Infiltration Rate of Soils in Field Using Double-Ring Infiltrometer.

D 3665-06 Standard Practice for Random Sampling of Construction Materials E 329-06a Specification for Agencies Engaged in Construction Inspection and/or Testing. **Submittals**.

#### Qualification Data:

## For Porous Paving Installer:

Provide a list of successfully installed Flexible Porous Paving projects, as required herein, including the address, square footage, and photographs for each project.

Manufacturer's Certifications.

Proposed Mix Design.Samples for Verification: Provide one 6" diameter sample, full thickness.

## Quality Assurance.

**Installer Qualifications:** 

Flexible Sidewalk installer shall be currently certified by the Manufacturer and have successfully installed a minimum of 10,000 square feet within the Mid-Atlantic region within the last year.

Flexible Sidewalk installer shall employ no less than two Manufacturer-certified Flexible Porous Paving technicians on staff who directly oversee or perform the installations during all Flexible Sidewalk placement, unless otherwise specified.

#### **SUBBASE**

Coarse aggregates shall meet the durability requirements of ASTM C33.

#### FLEXIBLE POROUS PAVING

Bonding: Have the capacity to bind with: wood; steel; concrete; aluminum; compacted aggregate; enamel tile, or; fiberglass.

Resistance to degradation: Resistant to: chlorine; ozone; bromine; muriatic acid; salt water; oil; transmission oil, and; hydraulic oil.

#### Aggregate:

Stone: Triple-washed coarse aggregate, No. 8 coarse aggregate (3/8 to ½ inch) per ASTM C 33. Bagged and labeled as tested and certified by Flexible Porous Paving Manufacturer.

Nominal maximum aggregate size shall not exceed \( \frac{1}{3} \) of the specified paving thickness.

Rubber: Recycled passenger tires ground to 3/8" nominal with the wire remnants removed.

Binding agent: urethane liquid prepolymer based upon Diphenylmethane-Diisocyanate.

Air Entraining Agents: Prohibited.

Mix Design: Using materials acceptable to the Manufacturer design a tentative mix and test for the consistency intended for use on the work and specified.

The volume by weight of aggregate per cu. yd. shall be 50% of the total dry mix. The volume by weight of the rubber product per cu. yd. shall be 50% of the total dry mix. Permeability: Pervious infiltration rate of 2,000 gallons/square foot/hour.

3 of 5

## **SPECIAL PROVISIONS** 600 - FLEXIBLE SIDEWALK

#### **FORMS**

Make forms with steel, wood, or other material that is sufficiently rigid to maintain specified tolerances, and capable of supporting concrete and mechanical concrete placing equipment.

Forms shall be clean and free of debris of any kind, rust, and hardened concrete.

Form release: Diesel, Bio-diesel or vegetable oil coating.

#### CONSTRUCTION.

### **Project Conditions.**

Schedule placements to minimize exposure to wind and heat before curing materials are applied.

Avoid placing flexible sidewalk if rain, snow, or frost is forecast within 24 hours unless measures are taken as described later. Always protect fresh paving from moisture and freezing.

#### **SUBGRADE PREPARATION**

Prepare subgrade as specified in the contract documents.

Construct subgrade to ensure that the required paving thickness is obtained in all locations. Keep all traffic off of the subgrade during construction to the maximum extent practical. Regrade subgrade disturbed by delivery vehicles or other construction traffic, as needed.

Compact the material added to obtain final subgrade elevation.

Determine subgrade permeability in accordance with ASTM D3385 before porous paving placement. Confirm that subgrade permeability meets requirements of Contract Documents.

### **SUBBASE**

Prepare subbase in accordance with contract documents.

#### SETTING FORMWORK

Set, align, and brace forms so that the hardened paving meets the tolerances specified herein.

Apply form release agent to the form face which will be in contact with porous paving, immediately before placing paving.

4 of 5

## SPECIAL PROVISIONS

600 - FLEXIBLE SIDEWALK

The vertical face of previously placed concrete may be used as a form.

Protect previously placed paving from damage.

Do not apply form release agent to previously placed concrete.

Apply liquid urethane bonding agent to face of surfaces when adhesion is desired

Placement width shall be as specified in Contract Documents.

#### BATCHING, MIXING, AND DELIVERY

Batch and mix on site in compliance with Manufacturer's written specifications, except that discharge shall be completed within 5 minutes of the introduction of urethane to the dry products.

#### PLACING AND FINISHING PAVING

Do not place porous paving on frozen or wet subgrade or subbase

Deposit porous paving either directly onto the subgrade or subbase by wheelbarrow or by material handler onto the subgrade or subbase, unless otherwise specified.

Deposit porous paving between the forms to an approximately uniform height.

Spread the porous paving using a come-along, short-handle, square-ended shovel or rake.

Use steel trowels to finish to the elevations and thickness specified in Contract Documents.

#### FINAL SURFACE TEXTURE

Final surface of porous paving shall be smoothed with bull float and magnesium trowels.

#### **EDGING**

When forms are not used, bevel the edge of the top surface to a 45° slope

#### **CURING**

Begin curing within 20 minutes of paving discharge, unless longer working time is accepted by the Manufacturer.

Completely cover the paving surface with a minimum 4 mil thick polyethylene sheet only if rain or sprinklers are imminent within 20 minutes. Cut sheeting to a minimum of a full placement width.

Cover all exposed edges of paving with polyethylene sheet.

## **SPECIAL PROVISIONS** 600 - FLEXIBLE SIDEWALK

Secure curing cover material without using dirt.

Cure paving for a minimum of 24 uninterrupted hours, unless otherwise specified.

## HOT- AND COLD-WEATHER CONSTRUCTION

When hot weather is anticipated up to 95 degrees Fahrenheit, no special procedures are necessary.

In cold weather when temperatures may fall below freezing just after an installation, utilize a fan to maintain airflow over porous paving during the curing process.

#### **OPENING TO TRAFFIC**

Do not open the paving to light vehicular traffic until the porous paving has cured for at least 24 hours during warm weather, and 48 hours during very cold temperatures at or near freezing and not until the porous paving is accepted by the Owner for opening to traffic. Paving should be checked and verified to be sufficiently hardened after the curing period as relative humidity can alter the curing time in some regions.

#### MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.

Flexible Sidewalk will be measured and paid for at the Contract unit price per Square Foot of Flexible Sidewalk installed and accepted. The payment for Item Flexible Sidewalk as specified in the Contract Documents will be full compensation for all material, labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the work.

## CATEGORY 600 SHOULDERS

#### SECTION 600 - REMOVE AND RELOCATE FENCE

#### DESCRIPTION.

This work shall consist of removing and relocating existing fence and gates where indicated on the contract plans.

#### MATERIALS.

Concrete footings for chain link fence posts: MSHA Mix No. 2 concrete.

Concrete footings for wood fence posts: MSHA Mix No. 3 concrete.

Posts, Braces, Fittings and Hardware: MSHA 914.03.

#### CONSTRUCTION.

Existing fence shall be removed and relocated behind the proposed concrete sidewalk and/or Type A curb. Existing gates shall be removed and relocated behind the proposed concrete sidewalk in line with existing house walkways. Coordinate the fence relocation with the City of Takoma Park and the adjacent property owner.

Take care not to damage the existing fence during removal or relocation. If existing posts are encased in concrete, install new posts and concrete footings to match in the new location.

#### MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.

The payment will be full compensation for material, labor, supervision, equipment, tools and incidentals necessary to complete the work including disposal of surplus materials in accordance with the specifications, or as directed by the Engineer.

Remove and Relocate Existing Chain Link Fence will be measured and paid for at the Contract unit price per linear foot. Measurement will be made along the length of satisfactorily installed chain link fence and gate, as determined by the Engineer. Concrete Footings and new chain link fence posts, if determined necessary by the Engineer, will not be measured but will be incidental to the contract unit price per linear foot of the Remove and Relocate Existing Chain Link Fence pay item.

Remove and Relocate Existing Wood Fence will be measured and paid for at the Contract unit price per linear foot. Measurement will be made along the length of satisfactorily

## **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

SECTION 600 – REMOVE AND RELOCATE FENCE

installed wood / composite fence and gate, as determined by the Engineer. Concrete Footings and new wood / composite fence posts, if determined necessary by the Engineer, will not be measured but will be incidental to the contract unit price per linear foot of the Remove and Relocate Existing Wood Fence pay item.

Removal and disposal of existing concrete encasements, chain link fence posts, and wood posts will not be measured but will be incidental to the lump sum price for Clearing and Grubbing.

1 of 1

## CATEGORY 600 SHOULDERS

### **SECTION 602 – COMBINATION CURB AND GUTTER**

### 602.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.

524 **ADD:** The following after the third paragraph:

When vertical adjustments of existing utilities and sub-grade preparation is required for roadway width reduction (curb line bump outs), the cost will be incidental to the Contract unit price for Standard Type A Combination Curb and Gutter Any Height or Depth. Vertical adjustment will include any required coordination and for all materials, labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the work.

## CATEGORY 600 SHOULDERS

#### **SECTION 603 – SIDEWALKS**

#### 603.04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.

## 527 **ADD:** The following after the third paragraph:

When vertical adjustments of existing utilities and sub-grade preparation is required to construct sidewalk and/or sidewalk ramps, the cost will be incidental to the Contract unit price for 5 Inch Concrete Sidewalk, 6 Inch Concrete Sidewalk, or Unit Pavers (Type 2). Vertical adjustment will include any required coordination and for all materials, labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the work.

Temporary and permanent stabilization of disturbed area for sidewalk installation shall be incidental to the pertinent item and shall include all necessary backfill, topsoil, reseeding, sod, seed and mulch, and for all materials, labor, equipment, tools and incidentals necessary to temporarily or permanently stabilize the disturbed area adjacent to the sidewalk installation.

When existing concrete sidewalk is removed and replaced with subsoil, topsoil and turfgrass sod, the cost of the removal will be measured and paid for at the Contract unit price per cubic yard of Class 1 Excavation.

## CATEGORY 600 SHOULDERS

## **SECTION 611 - DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACES**

### 611.02 MATERIALS.

542 **INSERT:** The following after the first paragraph.

The color of the detectable warning surfaces as shown in the Contract Plans, shall be **<u>Red.</u>** 

#### **SECTION 875-UTILITIES STATEMENT**

**DESCRIPTION.** The Contractor's attention is called to the requirements of Sections GP-5.05, GP-7.13, GP-7.17, and TC-4.04.

MATERIALS. Not Applicable.

#### CONSTRUCTION.

(a) Attention of the Contractor is directed to the presence of water, sewer, gas, electrical, telecommunication and television facilities, poles, buried drops from poles to service customers, cables, wires, conduit, ducts, mains, and house service connections in, over, under or adjacent to the street or highway in which the construction project is to be performed. The Contractor shall exercise special care and extreme caution to protect and avoid damage to utility company facilities as described in the preceding sentence. The Contractor shall take into consideration the adjustments and installations by public utilities in areas within the limits of this Contract. Existing utilities have been generally located and shown on the plans, as they are believed to exist; however, the City of Takoma Park and the SHA assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of these locations.

All notifications to the utility companies and "MISS UTILITY" 1-800-257-7777 shall be given 48 hours (two full working days) in advance of working in the area of the specific affected utility. The notification to "MISS UTILITY" is required by the Contractor whenever any excavating or similar work is to be performed. Note that the SHA is now part of Miss Utility. To file electronically, visit – <a href="https://www.missutility.net/itic/">www.missutility.net/itic/</a>

- (b) The Contractor has an obligation to coordinate all work with Utility Companies that have facilities within the project. This includes pre-bid inquiries to ascertain the nature of the relocation work and a pre-bid site investigation. When underground facilities are encountered during the construction, the Contractor must coordinate with each utility company directly to determine if they are to be maintained or abandoned.
- (c) The Contractor shall locate all existing utilities and be responsible for their safety. Should any existing utilities be damaged or destroyed due to the operations of the Contractor, the damaged or destroyed components shall be immediately replaced or repaired as necessary to restore the utility to a satisfactory operating condition. These repairs or replacements shall be at no additional expense to the City of Takoma Park, the SHA or to the owner of the utility. In the event that the respective Utility Agency conducts these repairs, the Contractor will be entirely responsible to furnish the Utility with full payment for the work performed including all costs associated with any service disruptions.
- (d) The existing utilities requiring relocation or adjustment shall be relocated or adjusted by the agency responsible for their maintenance or by the owner of the utility <u>unless</u> otherwise indicated in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall inform the

## **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**SECTION 875-UTILITIES STATEMENT

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 1 of 4

respective utility companies at least five days prior to working in any area. In addition, the Contractor shall

## SPECIAL PROVISIONS SECTION 875-UTILITIES STATEMENT

give sufficient notice to the specific utilities of the Contractor's overall plan for construction. The utility companies will establish the lead-time necessary to meet the applicable utility work schedule and coordinate with the Contractor's work operations based upon the Contractor's overall plan.

- (e) Activities with required durations (as determined by the Owner and Utility Companies) for all utility relocation work associated with this project shall be included in the CPM baseline schedule and updates for this project. Reasonable delays in the completion of these activities will not constitute a basis for project delay, and schedule adjustments made accordingly. Should utility or third party delays become unreasonable, as solely determined by the Owner, time extensions will be considered, but non-compensable.
- (f) Any submittal by the Contractor to vary the sequence of work and/or perform concurrent work in multiple phased differing from the recommended maintenance of traffic phasing, must be accompanied by an updated schedule or CPM reflecting all utility relocation's and adjustments. The Contractor shall be responsible, upon gaining approval, for coordinating utility relocations and adjustments with the affected utility owners, City of Takoma Park engineer and the SHA District Utility Engineer. All requirements and lead times as stated in the Utility Statement and Special Provisions will remain in effect unless written approval from the utility company and the SHA District Utility Engineer is received by the Contractor prior to the commencing any requested work.

NOTE: ANY REQUIRED UTILITY RELOCATION WORK WILL BE CONCURRENT TO CONTRACTOR(S) WORK. IN ORDER TO ALLOW UTILITY COMPANIES TO COMPLETE THEIR RELOCATIONS THE CONTRACTOR MUST COORDINATE ALL WORK AND REFLECT IN SCHEDULE OR CPM.

(g) The following known utility companies may have existing facilities or may have adjustments within the limits of this Contract:

\*

#### **Comcast Cable**

Mr. Dwayne Douty 5304 Kings Ct Frederick, MD 21703 (301) 456-8957 (240) 372-6694 dwayne\_douty@cable.comcast.net

#### **PEPCO**

Mr. Tewodros Ferede (301) 548-4335 tewodros.ferede@delmarva.com

#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112

#### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

**SECTION 875-UTILITIES STATEMENT** 

3 of 4

#### **Verizon Communications**

Mr. Chip Lambert 13101 Columbia Pike FDC-1, Floor 01 Silver Spring, MD 20904-5248 (301) 282-7039 christopher.l.lambert@verizon.com

#### **Verizon Business**

Mr. Adam Rice Verizon Services Operations OSP-CO Engineering, MD/VA/DC Office: (703) 391-5767

Cell: (571)-220-8978 adam.rice@verizon.com

## **Washington Gas**

Mr. Andrew King 6801 Industrial Road Springfield, VA 22151 (703) 750-4793 (571) 422-2019 AndrewKing@washgas.com

## Washington Suburban Sanitary Commission (WSSC)

Mr. Kevin Lethbridge WSSC Construction Manager (301) 206-7339

See the WSSC water main relocation plan, details and specifications contained within these contract documents.

## **Maryland State Highway Administration**

SHA Fiber Optic and Communication Cables Statewide Operations Center (SOC) 800-543-2515

SHA Traffic Signals Hanover Complex Signal Shop 410-787-7652

## (h) CONTRACT PROVISION BUY AMERICA UTILITIES

This section applies to projects partially or totally funded with Federal Funds. The prime contractor or its subcontractors shall comply with Section 165 of the Surface

## SPECIAL PROVISIONS SECTION 875-UTILITIES STATEMENT

Transportation Assistance Act of 1982 as amended by Section 1041(a) and 1048(a) of the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 with regard to the furnishing and coating of iron and steel products.

The prime contractor or its subcontractors shall supply certifications to the Project Engineer from the manufacturer of all coating, iron or steel products which document that the steel and iron have been manufactured and the coatings for iron or steel have been applied by the manufacturer in the United States. The Project Engineer shall forward copies of the certifications to the Office of Materials Technology for review and approval prior to such items being incorporated into the permanent work. Certifications shall extend to materials utilized in manufactured and fabricated products purchased by the Contractor.

Products manufactured of foreign steel or iron materials may be used, provided the cost of such products as they are delivered to the project does not exceed 0.1% of the total contract amount, or \$2500, whichever is greater. If a supplier or fabricator wishes to use a partial fabrication process where domestic and foreign source components are assembled at a domestic location, the "as delivered cost" of the foreign components should include any transportation, assembly and testing costs required to install them in the final product. This applies to all iron, steel and coating materials used for utility work incorporated into the project including materials/items supplied by the Utility Company.

**MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT.** All work, or additional work, performed expediting utility relocations, working around, or protecting, utility facilities, and coordinating and cooperating with utility agencies or their contractors will not be measured but will be incidental to the items specified in the Contract Documents.



STATE HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION

## **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E 1 of 45

## STATE OF MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STATE HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION PROPOSAL FORM

<b>Proposal</b>	by			
•	•		Name	
	Addres	s (Street and/or P.O. Bo	ox)	
	City	State	Zip	
( )		( )		
A.C.	Phone No.	A.C. Fax No.		

to furnish and deliver all materials and to do and perform all work, in conformance with the Standard Specifications, revisions thereto, General Provisions and the Special Provisions in this contract to <u>City of Takoma Park</u> located in, <u>Montgomery</u>, Maryland, for which Invitation for Bids will be received until 12:00 o'clock noon on <u>IFB\_BidOpenDate</u>, this work being situated as follows:

To the City of Takoma Park Department of Public Works c/o Special Projects Coordinator 31 Oswego Avenue Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

In response to the advertisement by the Administration, inviting bids for the work in conformance with the Contract Documents, now on file in the office of the Administration. I/We hereby certify that I/we am/are the only person, or persons, interested in this bid proposal as principals, and that an examination has been made of the work site, the Specifications, the Plans, and Invitation for Bids, including the Special Provisions contained herein. I/We propose to furnish all necessary machinery, equipment, tools, labor and other means of construction, and to furnish all materials required to complete the project at the following unit price or lump sum price.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

2-1 of 12

## **SCHEDULE OF PRICES**

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT P	RICE	UNIT P	RICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS	CENTS	DOLLARS	CENTS
1001 110100	LUMP SUM	CLEARING AND GRUBBING	101				
				<u>LUMP SUM</u>			
1002 110350	LUMP SUM	TYPE A ENGINEERS OFFICE	103 SP				
110330				LUMP SUM			
1003 120500	LUMP SUM	MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC	104 SP				
120300				LUMP SUM			
1004 130840	LUMP SUM	CONSTRUCTION STAKEOUT	107				
130040				<u>LUMP SUM</u>			
1005 130850	LUMP SUM	MOBILIZATION	108				
				<u>LUMP SUM</u>			

2-2 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

## **SCHEDULE OF PRICES**

ITEM	APPROXIMATE	DEGCD IDENOV OF VEEN G	CECTION	UNIT PI		UNIT P	
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS	CENTS	DOLLARS	CENTS
2001 202065	30	CUBIC YARDS OF COMMON BORROW	203 SP				
2002 210019	2,044	LINEAR FEET OF SAW CUTS	206				
2003 210025	25	CUBIC YARDS OF REMOVAL OF EXISTING PAVEMENT	206				
2004 210030	5	CUBIC YARDS OF REMOVAL OF EXISTING MASONRY	207				

2-3 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT PRICE	UNIT PRICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS CENTS	DOLLARS CENTS
3001 300000	3	EACH OF OUTFALL PIPE THROUGH CURB	XXX		
3002 374100	1	EACH OF 5 FOOT COG/COS OPENING	XXX		
3003 380202	1	EACH OF RECONSTRUCT EXISTING INLET	XXX		
3004 388066	5	EACH OF INLET PROTECTION	XXX		
3005 388135	LUMP SUM	FINAL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL INCENTIVE	XXX	<u>LUMP SUM</u>	

2-4 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT PRICE	UNIT PRICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS CENTS	DOLLARS CENTS
3006 390525	36	LINEAR FEET OF SILT FENCE	308		

2-5 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT PRICE	UNIT PRICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS CENTS	DOLLARS CENTS
4001 400000	LUMP SUM	RETAINING WALL	XXX		
4002 417105	881	CUBIC YARDS OF CLASS 3 EXCAVATION	402		

2-6 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT PI	RICE	UNIT P	RICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS	CENTS	DOLLARS	CENTS
5001 504500	60	TONS OF SUPERPAVE ASPHALT MIX 9.5MM FOR SU PG 64S-22, LEVEL 2	504 URFACE,				
5002 504518	20	TONS OF SUPERPAVE ASPHALT MIX 9.5MM FOR WEDGE/LEVEL, PG 64S-22, LEVEL 2	504				
5003 504562	10	TONS OF SUPERPAVE ASPHALT MIX 19.0MM FOR WEDGE/LEVEL, PG 64S-22, LEVEL 2	504				
5004 504600	1	EACH OF PRICE ADJUSTMENT FOR ASPHALT BINDER	504				
5005 504605	1	EACH OF PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT FOR PAVEMENT DENSITY	504				

2-7 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT PR	ICE	UNIT PI	RICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS	CENTS	DOLLARS	CENTS
CC NO.		EACH OF	504				
5006 504615	1	PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT FOR ASPHALT MIXTURE					
5007 520113	10	SQUARE YARDS OF 6 INCH GRADED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE	501 E				
5008 530101	240	SQUARE YARDS OF GRINDING ASPHALT PAVEMENT 0 INCH TO 2 INCH	509				
5009 549609	300	LINEAR FEET OF  12 INCH WHITE PREFORMED THERMOPLAST PAVEMENT MARKING LINES	556 FIC				
5010 549617	15	LINEAR FEET OF 24 INCH WHITE PREFORMED THERMOPLAST PAVEMENT MARKING LINES	556 FIC				

2-8 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT PR	RICE	UNIT PI	RICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS	CENTS	DOLLARS	CENTS
	<u> </u>	SQUARE YARDS OF	520	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	
5011 561114	300	6 INCH PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRET	ΓΕ PAVEMENT				
501114		FOR DRIVEWAY MIX 6					

2-9 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT PR	ICE .	UNIT PF	RICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS	CENTS	DOLLARS	CENTS
6001 600000	920	SQUARE FEET OF FLEXIBLE SIDEWALK	600 SP				
6002 600000	270	SQUARE YARDS OF MIX 9 CONCRETE FOR SLOT BACK FILL	XXX				
60003 634204	240	LINEAR FEET OF TYPE A CURB ANY HEIGHT OR DEPTH	602				
6004 634312	2,150	LINEAR FEET OF TYPE A COMBINATION CURB AND GUTTER ANY HEIGHT OR DEPTH	602 SP				
6005 655105	9,670	SQUARE FEET OF 5 INCH CONCRETE SIDEWALK	603				

2-10 of 12



## CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE			UNIT PRICE	UNIT PRICE
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS CENTS	DOLLARS CENTS
6006 655120	150	SQUARE FEET OF DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE FOR CURB RAMPS	611 SP		
6007 655284	55	SQUARE FEET OF RESET FLAG STONE SIDEWALK	XXX		
6008 657182	20	LINEAR FEET OF METAL HANDRAIL	XXX		
6009 695183	75	LINEAR FEET OF REMOVE AND RESET EXISTING FENCE	600 SP		

2-11 of 12



## **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM APPROXIMATE				UNIT PRICE		UNIT PRICE	
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS	CENTS	DOLLARS	CENTS
7001 704345	725	SQUARE YARDS OF PLACING FURNISHED TOPSOIL 4 INCH I	701 DEPTH				
7002 705500	725	SQUARE YARDS OF TURFGRASS ESTABLISHMENT	705				
7003 705565	725	SQUARE YARDS OF REFERTILIZING	705				
7004 709100	725	SQUARE YARDS OF TYPE A SOIL STABLIZATION MATTING	709				
7005 715050	100	LINEAR FEET OF TREE ROOT PRUNING	715				

2-12 of 12

#### **SCHEDULE OF PRICES**



## **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E

ITEM	APPROXIMATE	IMATE		UNIT PRICE		UNIT PRICE	
NO. CC NO.	QUANTITIES	DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS	SECTION	DOLLARS	CENTS	DOLLARS	CENTS
8001 800000	1	EACH OF RELOCATING USPS MAILBOX	XXX				
8002 813023	60	SQUARE FEET OF RELOCATE EXISTING GROUND MOUNT	705 FED SIGNS				



**CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E 3 of 45

#### **GENERAL MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS**

#### CONVICT PRODUCED MATERIALS

Section 1019 of the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA) clarifies that materials produced by convict labor after July 1, 1991 may not be used for Federal-aid highway construction projects unless produced at a prison facility producing convict made materials for Federal-aid construction projects prior to July 1, 1987.

#### **CONTRACT PROVISION BUY AMERICA**

This section only applies to projects partially or totally financed with Federal funds. The Contractor shall comply with Section 165 of the Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1982 as amended by Section 1041(a) and 1048(a) of the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (codified by SAFETEA-LU, §1903 as 23 U.S.C 313) with regard to the furnishing and coating of iron and steel products.

The Contract, if awarded, will be awarded to the responsive and responsible bidder who submits the lowest total bid for the Contract based on furnishing Domestic Products unless such bid exceeds the lowest total bid based on furnishing Foreign Products by more than twenty five percent (25%). Foreign Products will not be permitted to be used as a substitution for Domestic ones after the bid has been awarded.

Furnish steel or iron construction materials, including coating, for permanently incorporated work according to 23 CFR 635.410 and as follows:

- (a) All manufacturing processes of steel or iron materials in a product, including coating; and any subsequent process that alters the steel or iron material's physical form or shape, changes its chemical composition, or the final finish; are to occur within the United States (One of the 50 States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, or in territories and possessions of the U.S.). Manufacturing begins with the initial melting and mixing, and continues through the coating stage. The processes include rolling, extruding, machining, bending, grinding, drilling, welding, and coating. The action of applying a coating to steel or iron is deemed a manufacturing process. Coating includes epoxy coating, galvanizing, aluminizing, painting, and any other coating that protects or enhances the value of steel or iron. Any process from the original reduction from ore to the finished product constitutes a manufacturing process for iron.
- **(b)** The following are considered to be steel manufacturing processes:

## **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E 4 of 45

- (1) Production of steel by any of the following processes:
  - (a) Open hearth furnace.
  - (b) Basic oxygen.
  - (c) Electric furnace.
  - (d) Direct reduction.
- (2) Rolling, heat treating, and any other similar processing.
- (3) Fabrication of the products:
  - (a) Spinning wire into cable or strand.
  - (b) Corrugating and rolling into culverts.
  - (c) Shop fabrication.
- (c) The manufacturing process for a steel/iron product is considered complete when the product is ready for use as an item (e.g., fencing, posts, girders, pipe, manhole cover, etc.) or could be incorporated as a component of a more complex product through a further manufacturing process (e.g., prestressed concrete girders, reinforced concrete pipe, traffic control devices, bearing pads, etc.). A product containing both steel and/or iron components, may be assembled outside the United States and meet Buy America requirements if the constituent steel and iron components (in excess of the minimal amounts permitted) were manufactured domestically and are not modified at the assembly location prior to final assembly.
- (d) If domestically produced steel billets or iron ingots are exported outside of the U.S., as defined above, for any manufacturing process then the resulting product does not conform to the Buy America requirements. Additionally, products manufactured domestically from foreign source steel billets or iron ingots do not conform to the Buy America requirements because the initial melting and mixing of alloys to create the material occurred in a foreign country.
- (e) Due to a nationwide waiver, Buy America does not apply to raw materials (iron ore and alloys), scrap (recycled steel or iron), and pig iron or processed, pelletized, and reduced iron ore.
- (f) For the Buy America provisions to apply, the steel or iron product must be permanently incorporated into the project. If an item is rendered as a "donated material" in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 323 Donations and Credits, it will have to comply with Buy America requirements. While States and local governments may receive a credit for donated material, this material must generally comply with Buy America requirements. Buy America does not apply to temporary steel items, e.g., temporary sheet piling, temporary bridges, steel scaffolding and falsework. Further, Buy America does not apply to materials which remain in place at the contractor convenience.



## **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E 5 of 45

- (g) Certifications which document that steel and iron have been manufactured and that coatings for iron or steel have been applied in the United States shall be provided to the Contractor by the manufacturer. The Contractor shall provide the required certifications to the Engineer prior to such items being incorporated into the permanent work. Certifications shall extend to materials utilized in manufactured and fabricated products purchased by the Contractor.
- (h) Products manufactured of foreign steel or iron materials may be used, provided the cost of such products as they are delivered to the project does not exceed 0.1% of the total contract amount, or \$2,500, whichever is greater. If a supplier or fabricator wishes to use a partial fabrication process where domestic and foreign source components are assembled at a domestic location, the "as delivered cost" of the foreign components should include any transportation, assembly and testing costs required to install them in the final product.



## **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 FAP NO. TAP-3(533)E 6 of 45

#### ALTERNATE BID USING FOREIGN PRODUCTS

When a bidder elects to utilize Foreign Products on one or more items, the following summation indicating the Total Bid using Foreign Products must be completed in addition to the individual item bid tabulations.

The following instructions are given to the bidder in completing the Total Bid summation using Foreign Products:

- 1 The "Bid Total" for the initial bid using Domestic Products shall be shown on line (1).
- 2 The subtotal for Item Amounts using Domestic Products shall be shown on line (2), for those items which the Contractor elects to use Foreign Products.
- **3** The subtotal for Item Amounts using Foreign Products shall be shown on line (3).
- **4** The total Bid, utilizing Foreign Products shall be shown on line (4). The value is obtained by subtracting subtotal (2) from the Total Bid (1) and then adding subtotal (3).

Bid Total for Bid 1 using Domestic items	Line (1)
Total of Domestic Items	Line (2)
Total of Foreign Items	Line (3) +
Bid Total using Foreign Items	Line (4)

## ALTERNATE BID - USING FOREIGN PRODUCTS BIDDER'S INSTRUCTIONS

When the bidder elects to submit a bid for one or more items using Foreign Products, the following form must be used. For each item that Foreign Products are contemplated, the appropriate "Item Numbers", "Approximate Quantities", "Description of Items", "Unit Price or Lump Sum Price", "Item Amount Domestic" and "Item Amount Foreign" shall be tabulated below as specified in the initial bid. The bidder shall indicate the unit price in dollars and cents and show the total cost of the item for each item that utilizes Foreign Products. When all items utilizing Foreign Products have been listed, the bidder shall indicate on Page 6 of 45 the subtotals of the Item Amounts for

Domestic Products in Line (2) and for Foreign Products in Line (3).

Item Nos.	Approximate Quantities	Description of Items	Unit Price or Lump Sum Dollars.Cts.	Items Amount Domestic Dollars.Cts.	Items Amount Foreign Dollars.Cts.



I HEREBY AFFIRM THAT:

STATE HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION

CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 8 of 45

#### **NOTICE**

All bidders shall complete and submit with their bid the Bid/Proposal Affidavit below.

#### **BID/PROPOSAL AFFIDAVIT**

#### A. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE AND AFFIANT

I,	(print	name),	possess	the	legal	authority	to	make	thi
Affidavit.									

#### **B. CERTIFICATION REGARDING COMMERCIAL NONDISCRIMINATION**

The undersigned bidder hereby certifies and agrees that the following information is correct: In preparing its bid on this project, the bidder has considered all proposals submitted from qualified, potential subcontractors and suppliers, and has not engaged in "discrimination" as defined in §19-103 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. "Discrimination" means any disadvantage, difference, distinction, or preference in the solicitation, selection, hiring, or commercial treatment of a vendor, subcontractor, or commercial customer on the basis of race, color, religion, ancestry, or national origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, sexual identity, genetic information or an individual's refusal to submit to a genetic test or make available the results of a genetic test, disability, or any otherwise unlawful use of characteristics regarding the vendor's, supplier's, or commercial customer's employees or owners. "Discrimination" also includes retaliating against any person or other entity for reporting any incident of "discrimination". Without limiting any other provision of the solicitation on this project, it is understood that, if the certification is false, such false certification constitutes grounds for the State to reject the bid submitted by the bidder on this project, and terminate any contract awarded based on the bid. As part of its bid or proposal, the bidder herewith submits a list of all instances within the past 4 years where there has been a final adjudicated determination in a legal or administrative proceeding in the State of Maryland that the bidder discriminated against subcontractors, vendors, suppliers, or commercial customers, and a description of the status or resolution of that determination, including any remedial action taken. Bidder agrees to comply in all respects with the State's Commercial Nondiscrimination Policy as described under Title 19 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 9 of 45

#### C. AFFIRMATION REGARDING BRIBERY CONVICTIONS

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business (as is defined in Section 16-101(b) of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland), or any of its officers, directors, partners, controlling stockholders, or any of its employees directly involved in the business's contracting activities, including obtaining or performing contracts with public bodies, has been convicted of, or has had probation before judgment imposed pursuant to Criminal Procedure Article, §6-220, Annotated Code of Maryland, or has pleaded nolo contendere to a charge of, bribery, attempted bribery, or conspiracy to bribe in violation of Maryland law, or of the law of any other state or federal law, except as follows (indicate the reasons why the affirmation cannot be given and list any conviction, plea, or imposition of probation before judgment with the date, court, official or administrative body, the sentence or disposition, the name(s) of person(s) involved, and their current positions and responsibilities with the business):

#### D. AFFIRMATION REGARDING OTHER CONVICTIONS

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business, or any of its officers, directors, partners, controlling stockholders, or any of its employees directly involved in the business's contracting activities including obtaining or performing contracts with public bodies, has:

- (1) Been convicted under state or federal statute of:
  - (a) a criminal offense incident to obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private contract; or
  - (b) fraud, embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction of records, or receiving stolen property;
- (2) Been convicted of any criminal violation of a state or federal antitrust statute;
- (3) Been convicted under the provisions of Title 18 of the United States Code for violation of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organization Act, 18 U.S.C. §1961, et seq., or the Mail Fraud Act, 18 U.S.C. §1341, et seq., for acts in connection with the submission of bids or proposals for a public or private contract;



#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

10 of 45

- (4) Been convicted of a violation of the State Minority Business Enterprise Law, Section 14-308 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland;
- (5) Been convicted of a violation of the Section 11-205.1 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland;
- (6) Been convicted of conspiracy to commit any act or omission that would constitute grounds for conviction or liability under any law or statute described in subsection (1) through (5) above;
- (7) Been found civilly liable under a state or federal antitrust statute for acts or omissions in connection with the submission of bids or proposals for a public or private contract;
- (8) Been found in a final adjudicated decision to have violated the Commercial Nondiscrimination Policy under Title 19 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland with regard to a public or private contract; or
- (9) Been convicted of a violation of one or more of the following provisions of the Internal Revenue Code:
  - (a) §7201, Attempt to Evade or Defeat Tax;
  - (b) §7203, Willful Failure to File Return, Supply Information, or Pay Tax,
  - (c) §7205, Fraudulent Withholding Exemption Certificate or Failure to Supply Information,
  - (d) §7206, Fraud and False Statements, or
  - (e) §7207 Fraudulent Returns, Statements, or Other Documents;
- (10) Been convicted of a violation of 18 U.S.C. §286 Conspiracy to Defraud the Government with Respect to Claims, 18 U.S.C. §287, False, Fictitious, or Fraudulent Claims, or 18 U.S.C. §371, Conspiracy to Defraud the United States;
- (11) Been convicted of a violation of the Tax-General Article, Title 13, Subtitle 7 or Subtitle 10, Annotated Code of Maryland;
- (12) Been found to have willfully or knowingly violated State Prevailing Wage Laws as provided in the State Finance and Procurement Article, Title 17, Subtitle 2, Annotated Code of Maryland, if:
  - (a) A court:
    - (i) Made the finding; and
    - (ii) Decision became final; or
  - (b) The finding was:
    - (i) Made in a contested case under the Maryland Administrative Procedure Act; and
    - (ii) Not overturned on judicial review;



#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL

11 of 4

- (13) Been found to have willfully or knowingly violated State Living Wage Laws as provided in the State Finance and Procurement Article, Title 18, Annotated Code of Maryland, if:
  - (a) A court:
    - (i) Made the finding; and
    - (ii) Decision became final; or
  - (b) The finding was:
    - (i) Made in a contested case under the Maryland Administrative Procedure Act; and
    - (ii) Not overturned on judicial review;
- (14) Been found to have willfully or knowingly violated the Labor and Employment Article, Title 3, Subtitles 3, 4, or 5, or Title 5, Annotated Code of Maryland, if:
  - (a) A court:

and

- (i) Made the finding; and
- (ii) Decision became final; or
- (b) The finding was:
  - (i) Made in a contested case under the Maryland Administrative Procedure Act;
  - (ii) Not overturned on judicial review; or
- (15) Admitted in writing or under oath, during the course of an official investigation or other proceedings, acts or omissions that would constitute grounds for conviction or liability under any law or statute described in §§B and C and subsections D(1) (14) above, except as follows (indicate reasons why the affirmations cannot be given, and list any conviction, plea, or imposition of probation before judgment with the date, court, official or administrative body, the sentence or disposition, the name(s) of the person(s) involved and their current positions and responsibilities with the business, and the status of any debarment):

	-	



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 12 of 45

#### E. AFFIRMATION REGARDING DEBARMENT

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business, or any of its officers, directors, partners, controlling stockholders, or any of its employees directly involved in the business's contracting activities, including obtaining or performing contracts with public bodies, has ever been suspended or debarred (including being issued a limited denial of participation) by any public entity, except as follows (list each debarment or suspension providing the dates of the suspension or debarment, the name of the public entity and the status of the proceedings, the name(s) of the person(s) involved and their current positions and responsibilities with the business, the grounds of the debarment or suspension, and the details of each person's involvement in any activity that formed the grounds of the debarment or suspension):
F. AFFIRMATION REGARDING DEBARMENT OF RELATED ENTITIES
I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:
(1) The business was not established and it does not operate in a manner designed to evade the application of or defeat the purpose of debarment pursuant to Sections 16-101, et seq., of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland; and
(2) The business is not a successor, assignee, subsidiary, or affiliate of a suspended or debarred business, except as follows (you must indicate the reasons why the affirmations cannot be given without qualification):



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 13 of 45

#### **G. SUB-CONTRACT AFFIRMATION**

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business, has knowingly entered into a contract with a public body under which a person debarred or suspended under Title 16 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland will provide, directly or indirectly, supplies, services, architectural services, construction related services, leases of real property, or construction.

#### **H. AFFIRMATION REGARDING COLLUSION**

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business has:

- (1) Agreed, conspired, connived, or colluded to produce a deceptive show of competition in the compilation of the accompanying bid or offer that is being submitted;
- (2) In any manner, directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement of any kind to fix the bid price or price proposal of the bidder or offeror or of any competitor, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the contract for which the accompanying bid or offer is submitted.

#### **I. CERTIFICATION OF TAX PAYMENT**

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Except as validly contested, the business has paid, or has arranged for payment of, all taxes due the State of Maryland and has filed all required returns and reports with the Comptroller of the Treasury, the State Department of Assessments and Taxation, and the Department of Labor, Licensing, and Regulation, as applicable, and will have paid all withholding taxes due the State of Maryland prior to final settlement.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 14 of 45

#### J. CONTINGENT FEES

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

The business has not employed or retained any person, partnership, corporation, or other entity, other than a bona fide employee, bona fide agent, bona fide salesperson, or commercial selling agency working for the business, to solicit or secure the Contract, and that the business has not paid or agreed to pay any person, partnership, corporation, or other entity, other than a bona fide employee, bona fide agent, bona fide salesperson, or commercial selling agency, any fee or any other consideration contingent on the making of the Contract.

#### K. CERTIFICATION REGARDING INVESTMENTS IN IRAN

- (1) The undersigned certifies that, in accordance with State Finance and Procurement Article, §17-705, Annotated Code of Maryland:
  - (a) It is not identified on the list created by the Board of Public Works as a person engaging in investment activities in Iran as described in State Finance and Procurement Article, §17-702, Annotated Code of Maryland; and
  - (b) It is not engaging in investment activities in Iran as described in State Finance and Procurement Article, §17-702, Annotated Code of Maryland.

(2)	The undersigned	is unable to	make the	above	certification	regarding	its i	nvestment	activities
	in Iran due to the	following ac	ctivities:						

## L. CONFLICT MINERALS ORIGINATED IN THE DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF CONGO (FOR SUPPLIES AND SERVICES CONTRACTS)

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

The business has complied with the provisions of State Finance and Procurement Article, §14-413, Annotated Code of Maryland governing proper disclosure of certain information regarding conflict minerals originating in the Democratic Republic of Congo or its neighboring countries as required by federal law.

#### **M. I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:**

Any claims of environmental attributes made relating to a product or service included in the bid or proposal are consistent with the Federal Trade Commission's Guides for the Use of



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 15 of 45

Environmental Marketing Claims as provided in 16 CFR §260, that apply to claims about the environmental attributes of a product, package, or service in connection with the marketing, offering for sale, or sale of such item or service.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 16 of 45

#### N. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT this Affidavit is to be furnished to the Procurement Officer and may be distributed to units of: (1) the State of Maryland; (2) counties or other subdivisions of the State of Maryland; (3) other states; and (4) the federal government. I further acknowledge that this Affidavit is subject to applicable laws of the United States and the State of Maryland, both criminal and civil, and that nothing in this Affidavit or any contract resulting from the submission of this bid or proposal shall be construed to supersede, amend, modify or waive, on behalf of the State of Maryland, or any unit of the State of Maryland having jurisdiction, the exercise of any statutory right or remedy conferred by the Constitution and the laws of Maryland with respect to any misrepresentation made or any violation of the obligations, terms and covenants undertaken by the above business with respect to (1) this Affidavit, (2) the contract, and (3) other Affidavits comprising part of the contract.

I DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY THAT THE CONTENTS OF THIS AFFIDAVIT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION, AND BELIEF.

Date:	
Ву:	(print name of Authorized Representative and Affiant)
	(signature of Authorized Representative and Affiant)



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 17 of 45

#### **COMPREHENSIVE SIGNATURE PAGE 1 OF 2**

THE BIDDER IS HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT THIS DOCUMENT <u>SHALL BE SIGNED</u> IN INK IN ORDER FOR THE BID TO BE ACCEPTED. BY SIGNING, THE BIDDER CERTIFIES THAT HE/SHE WILL COMPLY IN EVERY ASPECT WITH THESE SPECIFICATIONS.

FURTHER, I DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY THAT THE CONTENTS OF THIS AFFIDAVIT (PARAGRAPHS A-N) ARE TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION, AND BELIEF.

This bid form shall be filled out legibly in ink or typed. The bid, if submitted by an individual, shall be signed by an individual; if submitted by a partnership, shall be signed by such member or members of the partnership as have authority to bind the partnership; if submitted by a corporation the same shall be signed by the President and attested by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. If not signed by the President as aforesaid, there must be attached a copy of that portion of the By-Laws, or a copy of a Board resolution, duly certified by the Secretary, showing the authority of the person so signing on behalf of the corporation. In lieu thereof, the corporation may file such evidence with the Administration, duly certified by the Secretary, together with a list of the names of those officers having authority to execute documents on behalf of the corporation, duly certified by the Secretary, which listing shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the Administration is advised in writing to the contrary. In any case where a bid is signed by an Attorney in Fact the same must be accompanied by a copy of the appointing document, duly certified.

#### IF AN INDIVIDUAL:

NAME:				
	Str	reet and/or P.O. Box	K	
	City	State	Zip Code	Fed ID or SSN
			(SEAL)	
	Signature			Date
	Print Signatur	e		
WITNESS:				
		Signature		
-		Print		Signature



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 18 of 45

#### **COMPREHENSIVE SIGNATURE PAGE 2 OF 2**

F A PARTNERSHIP:			
NAME OF PARTNERSHIP	D:		
Street a	nd/or P.O. Box		
City	State	Zip Code	Fed ID or SS
BY:Signature Da	te	(SEAL)	
Print Signature TITLE:			
		Signature	
		Print Sigr	nature
NAME OF CORPORATION  Street a	nd/or P.O. Box		
	G	7' 0 1	E 11D 00
City	State	-	Fed ID or SS
STATE OF INCORPORAT	ION:		
BY:Signature		(SEAL)	Date
Signature			Bute
Print Signature			
TITLE:	WITNESS:		
		Secretary	's Signature
	_	Print Sigr	nature



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 19 of 45

#### MDOT DBE FORM A FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS CERTIFIED DBE UTILIZATION AND FAIR SOLICITATION AFFIDAVIT PAGE 1 OF 2

This affidavit must be included with the bid/ proposal. If the bidder/offeror fails to accurately complete and submit this affidavit as required, the bid shall be deemed not responsive or the proposal shall be deemed not susceptible of being selected for award.

In connection with the bid/proposal submitted in response to Solicitation No. IFB\_ContractNo, I affirm the following:

### 1. DBE Participation (PLEASE CHECK ONLY ONE) I have met the overall certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation goal of Fourteen percent (14%). I agree that this percentage of the total dollar amount of the Contract for the DBE goal will be performed by certified DBE firms as set forth in the DBE Participation Schedule - Part 2 of the MDOT DBE Form B (Federally-Funded Contracts). <u>OR</u> I conclude that I am unable to achieve the DBE participation goal. I hereby request a waiver, in whole or in part, of the goal. Within 10 business days of receiving notice that our firm is the apparent awardee or as requested by the Procurement Officer, I will submit a written waiver request and all required documentation in accordance with COMAR 21.11.03.11. For a partial waiver request, I agree that certified DBE firms will be used to accomplish the percentages of the total dollar amount of the Contract as set forth in the DBE Participation Schedule - Part 2 of the MDOT DBE Form B (Federally-Funded Contracts).

#### 2. Additional DBE Documentation

I understand that if I am notified that I am the apparent awardee or as requested by the Procurement Officer, I must submit the following documentation within 10 business days of receiving such notice: (a) Outreach Efforts Compliance Statement (MDOT DBE Form C -Federally-Funded Contracts ); (b) Subcontractor Project Participation Statement (MDOT DBE Form D - Federally-Funded Contracts); (c) DBE Waiver Request documentation per COMAR 21.11.03.11 (if waiver was requested); and (d) Any other documentation required by the Procurement Officer to ascertain bidder's responsibility/ offeror's susceptibility of being selected for award in connection with the certified DBE participation goal.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 20 of 45

## MDOT DBE FORM A FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS CERTIFIED DBE UTILIZATION AND FAIR SOLICITATION AFFIDAVIT PAGE 2 OF 2

I acknowledge that if I fail to return each completed document (in 2 (a) through (d)) within the required time, the Procurement Officer may determine that I am not responsible and therefore not eligible for contract award or not susceptible of being selected for award.

#### 3. Information Provided to DBE firms

In the solicitation of subcontract quotations or offers, DBE firms were provided not less than the same information and amount of time to respond as were non-DBE firms.

#### 4. Products and Services Provided by DBE firms

I hereby affirm that the DBEs are only providing those products and services for which they are MDOT certified.

I solemnly affirm under the penalties of perjury that the information in this affidavit is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Company Name	Signature of Representative
Address	Printed Name and Title
City, State and Zip Code	Date



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 21 of 45

#### MDOT DBE FORM B FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE

#### PART 1 – INSTRUCTIONS FOR DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE

PARTS 2 AND 3 MUST BE INCLUDED WITH THE BID/PROPOSAL. IF THE BIDDER/OFFEROR FAILS TO ACCURATELY COMPLETE AND SUBMIT PART 2 WITH THE BID/PROPOSAL AS REQUIRED, THE BID SHALL BE DEEMED NOT RESPONSIVE OR THE PROPOSAL SHALL BE DEEMED NOT SUSCEPTIBLE OF BEING SELECTED FOR AWARD.

PAGE 1 OF 4

## \*\*\* STOP \*\*\* FORM INSTRUCTIONS PLEASE READ BEFORE COMPLETING THIS FORM

- 1. Please refer to the Maryland Department of Transportation (MDOT) DBE Directory at <a href="www.mdot.state.md.us">www.mdot.state.md.us</a> to determine if a firm is certified for the appropriate North American Industry Classification System ("NAICS") Code <a href="and">and</a> the product/services description (specific product that a firm is certified to provide or specific areas of work that a firm is certified to perform). For more general information about NAICS, please visit <a href="www.naics.com">www.naics.com</a>. Only those specific products and/or services for which a firm is certified in the MDOT Directory can be used for purposes of achieving the DBE participation goal.
- 2. In order to be counted for purposes of achieving the DBE participation goal, the firm `must be certified for that specific NAICS ("DBE" for Federally-funded projects designation after NAICS Code). WARNING: If the firm's NAICS Code is in graduated status, such services/products will not be counted for purposes of achieving the DBE participation goals. Graduated status is clearly identified in the MDOT Directory (such graduated codes are designated with the word graduated after the appropriate NAICS Code).
- 3. Examining the NAICS Code is the <u>first step</u> in determining whether a DBE firm is certified and eligible to receive DBE participation credit for the specific products/services to be supplied or performed under the contract. The <u>second step</u> is to determine whether a firm's Products/Services Description in the DBE Directory includes the products to be supplied and/or services to be performed that are being used to achieve the DBE participation goal.
- 4. If you have any questions as to whether a firm is MDOT DBE certified, or if it is certified to perform specific services or provide specific products, please call MDOT's Office of Minority Business Enterprise at 1-800-544-6056 or send an email to mbe@mdot.state.md.us.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 22 of 45

# MDOT DBE FORM B FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE PART 1 – INSTRUCTIONS FOR DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE PAGE 2 OF 4

- 5. The Contractor's subcontractors are considered second-tier subcontractors. Third-tier contracting used to meet a DBE goal is to be considered the exception and not the rule. The following two conditions must be met before MDOT, its Modal Administrations and the Maryland Transportation Authority may approve a third-tier contracting agreement: (a) the bidder/offeror must request in writing approval of each third-tier contract arrangement, and (b) the request must contain specifics as to why a third-tier contracting arrangement should be approved. These documents must be submitted with the bid/proposal in Part 2 of this DBE Participation Schedule.
- 6. For each DBE firm that is being used as supplier/wholesaler/regular dealer/broker/manufacturer, please follow these instructions for calculating the <u>amount of the subcontract for purposes of achieving the DBE participation goal</u>:
  - A. Is the firm certified as a broker of the products/supplies? If the answer is YES, please continue to Item C. If the answer is NO, please continue to Item B.
  - B. Is the firm certified as a supplier, wholesaler, regular dealer, or manufacturer of such products/supplies? If the answer is YES, continue to Item D. If the answer is NO, continue to Item C <u>only</u> if the DBE firm is certified to perform trucking/hauling services under NAICS Codes 484110, 484121, 484122, 484210, 484220 and 484230. If the answer is NO and the firm is not certified under these NAICS Codes, then <u>no</u> DBE participation credit will be given for the supply of these products.
  - C. For purposes of achieving the DBE participation goal, you may count <u>only</u> the amount of any reasonable fee that the DBE firm will receive for the provision of such products/supplies <u>not</u> the total subcontract amount or the value (or a percentage thereof) of such products and/or supplies. For Column 3 of the DBE Participation Schedule, please divide the amount of any reasonable fee that the DBE firm will receive for the provision of such products/services by the total Contract value and insert the percentage in Line 3.1.
  - D. Is the firm certified as a manufacturer (refer to the firm's NAICS Code and specific descrition of products/services) of the products/supplies to be provided? If the answer is NO please continue to Item E If the answer is YES, for purposes of achieving the DBE participation goal, you may count the total amount of the subcontract. For Column 3 of the DBE Participation Schedule, please divide the total amount of the subcontract by the total Contract value and insert the percentage in Line 3.1.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 23 of 45

# MDOT DBE FORM B FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE PART 1 – INSTRUCTIONS FOR DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE PAGE 3 OF 4

- E. Is the firm certified as a supplier, wholesaler and/or regular dealer? If the answer is YES and the DBE firm is furnishing and installing the materials <u>and</u> is certified to perform these services, please divide the total subcontract amount (including full value of supplies) by the total Contract value and insert the percentage in Line 3.1. If the answer is YES and the DBE firm is only being used as a supplier, wholesaler and/or regular dealer or is not certified to install the supplies/materials, for purposes of achieving the DBE participation goal, you may only count sixty percent (60%) of the value of the subcontract for these supplies/products (60% Rule). To apply the 60% Rule, first divide the amount of the subcontract for these supplies/products only (not installation) by the total Contract value. Then, multiply the result by sixty percent (60%) and insert the percentage in Line 3.2.
- 7. For each DBE firm that <u>is not</u> being used as a supplier/wholesaler/regular dealer/broker/manufacturer, to calculate the <u>amount of the subcontract for purposes of achieving the DBE participation goal</u>, divide the total amount of the subcontract by the total Contract value and insert the percentage in Line 3.1.

**Example:** \$ 2,500 (Total Subcontract Amount) ÷ \$10,000 (Total Contract Value) x 100 = 25%.

- 8. Please note that for USDOT-funded projects, a DBE prime may count towards its DBE participation goal work performed by its own forces. Include information about the DBE prime in Part 2.
- 9. **WARNING:** The percentage of DBE participation, computed using the dollar amounts in Column 3 for all of the DBE firms listed in Part 2, MUST at least equal the DBE participation goal as set forth in MDOT DBE Form A Federally-Funded Contracts for this solicitation. If the bidder/offeror is unable to achieve the DBE participation goals, then the bidder/offeror must request a waiver in Form A or the bid will be deemed not responsive, or the proposal not susceptible of being selected for award. You may wish to use the Goal Worksheet shown below to assist you in calculating the percentage and confirming that you have met the applicable DBE participation goal.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 24 of 45

# MDOT DBE FORM B FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE PART 1 – INSTRUCTIONS FOR DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE PAGE 4 OF 4

GOAL WORKSHEET					
Total DBE Firm Participation (Add percentages in Column 3 for all DBE firms listed in DBE Participation Schedule)	(A)%				
The percentage amount in Box A above should	be equal to the percentage amount in Box E below.				
Add <i>Countable</i> Subcontract Amounts (see 6 through 8 of Instructions) for all DBE firms listed in DBE Participation Schedule, and insert in Box B	(B) \$				
Insert the Total Contract Amount in Box C	(C) \$				
Divide Box B by Box C and Insert in Box D	(D) =				
Multiply Box D by 100 and insert in Box E	(E) =%				



#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 25 of 45

#### MDOT DBE FORM B FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE PART 2 – DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE

PARTS 2 AND 3 MUST BE INCLUDED WITH THE BID/PROPOSAL. IF THE BIDDER/OFFEROR FAILS TO ACCURATELY COMPLETE AND SUBMIT PART 2 WITH THE BID/PROPOSAL AS REQUIRED, THE BID SHALL BE DEEMED NOT RESPONSIVE OR THE PROPOSAL SHALL BE DEEMED NOT SUSCEPTIBLE OF BEING SELECTED FOR AWARD.

PAGE \_\_ OF \_\_\_

Prime Contractor		Project Description		Solicitation Number		
		ACH CERTIFIED IPATION GOAL.	DBE SUBCONTRACTOR Y	OU AGREE TO USE TO		
COLUMN 1	COLUN	MN 2	COLUMN 3 Unless the bidder/offeror requested	a waiver in MDOT DBE Form A – Federally		

		Funded Contracts for this solicitation, the cumulative DBE participation for all DBE firms listed herein must equal at least the DBE participation goal set forth in Form A.
NAME OF DBE SUBCONTRACTOR AND TIER	CERTIFICATION NO.	FOR PURPOSES OF ACHIEVING THE DBE PARTICIPATION GOAL, refer to sections 6, 7 and 8 in Part 1 - Instructions. State the percentage amount of the products/services in Line 3.1, except for those products or services where the DBE firm is being used as a wholesaler, supplier, or regular dealer. For items of work where the DBE firm is being used as a supplier, wholesaler and/or regular dealer, complete Line 3.2 using the 60% Rule.
☐ Please check if DBE firm is a third-tier contractor (if applicable). Please submit written documents in accordance with Section 5 of Part 1 - Instructions	Certification Number:	3.1. TOTAL PERCENTAGE TO BE PAID TO THE SUBCONTRACTOR (STATE THIS PERCENTAGE AS A PERCENTAGE OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT VALUE-EXCLUDING PRODUCTS/SERVICES FROM SUPPLIERS, WHOLESALERS OR REGULAR DEALERS).  PART 1 -  PART 2 -

Please check if Continuation Sheets are attached.



**Prime Contractor** 

STATE HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION

**Project Description** 

#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 26 of 45

**Solicitation Number** 

## MDOT DBE FORM B FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE CONTINUATION SHEET

**PAGE** \_\_ OF \_\_\_

ACHIEVE THE DBE I	FOR EACH CERTIFIED I	DBE SUBCONTRACTOR YOU AGREE TO USE TO			
COLUMN 1	COLUMN 3  Unless the bidder/offeror requested a waiver in MDOT DBE Form A Federally Funded Contracts for this solicitation, the cumulative D participation for all DBE firms listed herein must equal at least the D participation goal set forth in Form A.				
NAME OF DBE SUBCONTRACTOR AND TIER	CERTIFICATION NO.  FOR PURPOSES OF ACHIEVING THE DBE PARTICIPATION refer to sections 6, 7 and 8 in Part 1 - Instructions. State the percentage of the products/services in Line 3.1, except for those products or service the DBE firm is being used as a wholesaler, supplier, or regular deal items of work where the DBE firm is being used as a supplier, wholesale regular dealer, complete Line 3.2 using the 60% Rule.				
Please check if DBE firm is a third-tier contractor (if applicable). Please submit written documents in accordance with Section 5 of Part 1 - Instructions	Certification Number:	3.1. TOTAL PERCENTAGE TO BE PAID TO THE SUBCONTRACTOR (STATE THIS PERCENTAGE AS A PERCENTAGE OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT VALUE-EXCLUDING PRODUCTS/SERVICES FROM SUPPLIERS, WHOLESALERS OR REGULAR DEALERS).  PART 7 -  PART 8 -			



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 27 of 45

#### MDOT DBE FORM B FEDERALLY-FUNDED CONTRACTS DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE

#### PART 3 – CERTIFICATION FOR DBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE

#### PARTS 2 AND 3 MUST BE INCLUDED WITH THE BID/PROPOSAL AS DIRECTED IN THE SOLICITATION.

I hereby affirm that I have reviewed the Products and Services Description (specific product that a firm is certified to provide or areas of work that a firm is certified to perform) set forth in the MDOT DBE Directory for each of the DBE firms listed in Part 2 of this DBE Form B for purposes of achieving the DBE participation goal that was identified in the DBE Form A that I submitted with this solicitation, and that the DBE firms listed are only performing those products/services/areas of work for which they are certified. I also hereby affirm that I have read and understand the form instructions set forth in Part 1 of this DBE Form B.

The undersigned Prime Contractor hereby certifies and agrees that it has fully complied with the State Minority Business Enterprise law, State Finance and Procurement Article §14-308(a)(2), Annotated Code of Maryland which provides that, except as otherwise provided by law, a contractor may not identify a certified minority business enterprise in a bid or proposal and:

- (1) fail to request, receive, or otherwise obtain authorization from the certified minority business enterprise to identify the certified minority business enterprise in its bid or proposal;
- (2) fail to notify the certified minority business enterprise before execution of the contract of its inclusion of the bid or proposal;
- (3) fail to use the certified minority business enterprise in the performance of the contract; or
- (4) pay the certified minority business enterprise solely for the use of its name in the bid or proposal.

I solemnly affirm under the penalties of perjury that the contents of Parts 2 and 3 of MDOT DBE Form B are true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Company Name	Signature of Representative
Address	Printed Name and Title
City, State and Zip Code	Date



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 28 of 45

#### MDOT MBE/DBE FORM E GOOD FAITH EFFORTS GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTATION

### PART 1 – GUIDANCE FOR DEMONSTRATING GOOD FAITH EFFORTS TO MEET MBE/DBE PARTICIPATION GOALS

In order to show that it has made good faith efforts to meet the Minority Business Enterprise (MBE)/Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation goal (including any MBE subgoals) on a contract, the bidder/offeror must either (1) meet the MBE/DBE Goal(s) and document its commitments for participation of MBE/DBE Firms, or (2) when it does not meet the MBE/DBE Goal(s), document its Good Faith Efforts to meet the goal(s).

#### I. Definitions

**MBE/DBE Goal(s)** – "MBE/DBE Goal(s)" refers to the MBE participation goal and MBE participation subgoal(s) on a State-funded procurement and the DBE participation goal on a federally-funded procurement.

Good Faith Efforts – The "Good Faith Efforts" requirement means that when requesting a waiver, the bidder/offeror must demonstrate that it took all necessary and reasonable steps to achieve the MBE/DBE Goal(s), which, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, could reasonably be expected to obtain sufficient MBE/DBE participation, even if those steps were not fully successful. Whether a bidder/offeror that requests a waiver made adequate good faith efforts will be determined by considering the quality, quantity, and intensity of the different kinds of efforts that the bidder/offeror has made. The efforts employed by the bidder/offeror should be those that one could reasonably expect a bidder/offeror to take if the bidder/offeror were actively and aggressively trying to obtain DBE participation sufficient to meet the DBE contract goal. Mere *pro forma* efforts are not good faith efforts to meet the DBE contract requirements. The determination concerning the sufficiency of the bidder's/offeror's good faith efforts is a judgment call; meeting quantitative formulas is not required.

**Identified Firms** – "Identified Firms" means a list of the DBEs identified by the procuring agency during the goal setting process and listed in the federally-funded procurement as available to perform the Identified Items of Work. It also may include additional DBEs identified by the bidder/offeror as available to perform the Identified Items of Work, such as DBEs certified or granted an expansion of services after the procurement was issued. If the procurement does not include a list of Identified Firms or is a State-funded procurement, this term refers to all of the MBE Firms (if State-funded) or DBE Firms (if federally-funded) the bidder/offeror identified as available to perform the Identified Items of Work and should include all appropriately certified firms that are reasonably identifiable.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 29 of 45

**Identified Items of Work** – "Identified Items of Work" means the bid items identified by the procuring agency during the goal setting process and listed in the procurement as possible items of work for performance by MBE/DBE Firms. It also may include additional portions of items of work the bidder/offeror identified for performance by MBE/DBE Firms to increase the likelihood that the MBE/DBE Goal(s) will be achieved. If the procurement does not include a list of Identified Items of Work, this term refers to all of the items of work the bidder/offeror identified as possible items of work for performance by MBE/DBE Firms and should include all reasonably identifiable work opportunities.

**MBE/DBE Firms** – For State-funded contracts, "MBE/DBE Firms" refers to certified **MBE** Firms. Certified MBE Firms can participate in the State's MBE Program. For federally-funded contracts, "MBE/DBE Firms" refers to certified **DBE** Firms. Certified DBE Firms can participate in the federal DBE Program.

#### II. Types of Actions MDOT will Consider

The bidder/offeror is responsible for making relevant portions of the work available to MBE/DBE subcontractors and suppliers and to select those portions of the work or material needs consistent with the available MBE/DBE subcontractors and suppliers, so as to facilitate MBE/DBE participation. The following is a list of types of actions MDOT will consider as part of the bidder's/offeror's Good Faith Efforts when the bidder/offeror fails to meet the MBE/DBE Goal(s). This list is not intended to be a mandatory checklist, nor is it intended to be exclusive or exhaustive. Other factors or types of efforts may be relevant in appropriate cases.

#### A. Identify Bid Items as Work for MBE/DBE Firms

- 1. Identified Items of Work in Procurements
- (a) Certain procurements will include a list of bid items identified during the goal setting process as possible work for performance by MBE/DBE Firms. If the procurement provides a list of Identified Items of Work, the bidder/offeror shall make all reasonable efforts to solicit quotes from MBE Firms or DBE Firms, whichever is appropriate, to perform that work.
- (b) Bidders/Offerors may, and are encouraged to, select additional items of work to be performed by MBE/DBE Firms to increase the likelihood that the MBEDBE Goal(s) will be achieved.
  - 2. Identified Items of Work by Bidders/Offerors
- (a) When the procurement does not include a list of Identified Items of Work, bidders/offerors should reasonably identify sufficient items of work to be performed by MBE/DBE

  Firms.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 30 of 45

(b) Where appropriate, bidders/offerors should break out contract work items into economically feasible units to facilitate MBE/DBE participation, rather than perform these work items with their own forces. The ability or desire of a prime contractor to perform the work of a contract with its own organization does not relieve the bidder/offeror of the responsibility to make Good Faith Efforts.

#### B. Identify MBE Firms or DBE Firms to Solicit

- 1. DBE Firms Identified in Procurements
- (a) Certain procurements will include a list of the DBE Firms identified during the goal setting process as available to perform the items of work. If the procurement provides

a list of Identified DBE Firms, the bidder/offeror shall make all reasonable efforts to solicit those DBE firms.

- (b) Bidders/offerors may, and are encouraged to, search the MBE/DBE Directory to identify additional DBEs who may be available to perform the items of work, such as DBEs certified or granted an expansion of services after the solicitation was issued.
  - 2. MBE/DBE Firms Identified by Bidders/Offerors
- (a) When the procurement does not include a list of Identified MBE/DBE Firms, bidders/offerors should reasonably identify the MBE Firms or DBE Firms, whichever is appropriate, that are available to perform the Identified Items of Work.
- (b) Any MBE/DBE Firms identified as available by the bidder/offeror should be certified in the appropriate program (MBE for State-funded procurements or DBE for federally-funded procurements)
- (c) Any MBE/DBE Firms identified as available by the bidder/offeror should be certified to perform the Identified Items of Work.

#### C. Solicit MBE/DBEs

- 1. Solicit <u>all</u> Identified Firms for all Identified Items of Work by providing written notice. The bidder/offeror should:
- (a) provide the written solicitation at least 10 days prior to bid opening to allow sufficient time for the MBE/DBE Firms to respond;



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 35 of 45

- (b) send the written solicitation by first-class mail, facsimile, or email using contact information in the MBE/DBE Directory, unless the bidder/offeror has a valid basis for using different contact information; and
- (c) provide adequate information about the plans, specifications, anticipated time schedule for portions of the work to be performed by the MBE/DBE, and other requirements of the contract to assist MBE/DBE Firms in responding. (This information may be provided by including hard copies in the written solicitation or by <u>electronic means</u> as described in C.3 below.)
- 2. "All" Identified Firms includes the DBEs listed in the procurement and any MBE/DBE Firms you identify as potentially available to perform the Identified Items of Work, but it does not include MBE/DBE Firms who are no longer certified to perform the work as of the date the bidder/offeror provides written solicitations.
- 3. "<u>Electronic Means</u>" includes, for example, information provided *via* a website or file transfer protocol (FTP) site containing the plans, specifications, and other requirements of the contract. If an interested MBE/DBE cannot access the information provided by electronic means, the bidder/offeror must make the information available in a manner that is accessible by the interested MBE/DBE.
- 4. Follow up on initial written solicitations by contacting DBEs to determine if they are interested. The follow up contact may be made:
- (a) by telephone using the contact information in the MBE/DBE Directory, unless the bidder/offeror has a valid basis for using different contact information; or
- (b) in writing *via* a method that differs from the method used for the initial written solicitation.
- 5. In addition to the written solicitation set forth in C.1 and the follow up required in C.4, use all other reasonable and available means to solicit the interest of MBE/DBE Firms certified to perform the work of the contract. Examples of other means include:
- (a) attending any pre-bid meetings at which MBE/DBE Firms could be informed of contracting and subcontracting opportunities;
- (b) if recommended by the procurement, advertising with or effectively using the services of at least two minority focused entities or media, including trade associations, minority/women community organizations, minority/women contractors' groups, and local, state, and federal minority/women business assistance offices listed on the MDOT Office of Minority Business Enterprise website; and



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 35 of 45

(c) effectively using the services of other organizations, as allowed on a case-by-case basis and authorized in the procurement, to provide assistance in the recruitment and placement of MBE/DBE Firms

#### D. Negotiate With Interested MBE/DBE Firms

Bidders/Offerors must negotiate in good faith with interested MBE/DBE Firms.

- 1. Evidence of negotiation includes, without limitation, the following:
- (a) the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of MBE/DBE Firms that were considered;
- (b) a description of the information provided regarding the plans and specifications for the work selected for subcontracting and the means used to provide that information; and
- (c) evidence as to why additional agreements could not be reached for MBE/DBE Firms to perform the work.
- 2. A bidder/offeror using good business judgment would consider a number of factors in negotiating with subcontractors, including DBE subcontractors, and would take a firm's price and capabilities as well as contract goals into consideration.
- 3. The fact that there may be some additional costs involved in finding and using MBE/DBE Firms is not in itself sufficient reason for a bidder's/offeror's failure to meet the contract DBE goal, as long as such costs are reasonable. Factors to take into consideration when determining whether a MBE/DBE Firm's quote is excessive or unreasonable include, without limitation, the following:
  - (a) the dollar difference between the MBE/DBE subcontractor's quote and the average of the other subcontractors' quotes received by the bidder/offeror;
  - (b) the percentage difference between the MBE/DBE subcontractor's quote and the average of the other subcontractors' quotes received by the bidder/offeror;
  - (c) the percentage that the DBE subcontractor's quote represents of the overall contract amount:
  - (d) the number of MBE/DBE firms that the bidder/offeror solicited for that portion of the work;
  - (e) whether the work described in the MBE/DBE and Non-MBE/DBE subcontractor quotes (or portions thereof) submitted for review is the same or comparable; and



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 35 of 45

- (f) the number of quotes received by the bidder/offeror for that portion of the work.
- 4. The above factors are not intended to be mandatory, exclusive, or exhaustive, and other evidence of an excessive or unreasonable price may be relevant.
- 5. The bidder/offeror may not use its price for self-performing work as a basis for rejecting a MBE/DBE Firm's quote as excessive or unreasonable.
- 6. The "average of the other subcontractors' quotes received by the" bidder/offeror refers to the average of the quotes received from all subcontractors, except that there should be quotes from at least three subcontractors, and there must be at least one quote from a MBE/DBE and one quote from a Non-MBE/DBE.
- 7. A bidder/offeror shall not reject a MBE/DBE Firm as unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation of the firm's capabilities. For each certified MBE/DBE that is rejected as unqualified or that placed a subcontract quotation or offer that the bidder/offeror concludes is not acceptable, the bidder/offeror must provide a written detailed statement listing the reasons for this conclusion. The bidder/offeror also must document the steps taken to verify the capabilities of the MBE/DBE and Non-MBE/DBE Firms quoting similar work.
- (a) The factors to take into consideration when assessing the capabilities of a MBE/DBE Firm, include, but are not limited to the following: financial capability, physical capacity to perform, available personnel and equipment, existing workload, experience performing the type of work, conduct and performance in previous contracts, and ability to meet reasonable contract requirements.
- (b) The MBE/DBE Firm's standing within its industry, membership in specific groups, organizations, or associations and political or social affiliations (for example union vs. non-union employee status) are not legitimate causes for the rejection or non-solicitation of bids in the efforts to meet the project goal.

#### E. Assisting Interested MBE/DBE Firms

When appropriate under the circumstances, the decision-maker will consider whether the bidder/offeror:

- 1. made reasonable efforts to assist interested MBE/DBE Firms in obtaining the bonding, lines of credit, or insurance required by MDOT or the bidder/offeror; and
- 2. made reasonable efforts to assist interested MBE/DBE Firms in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, materials, or related assistance or services.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 35 of 45

#### III. Other Considerations

In making a determination of Good Faith Efforts the decision-maker may consider engineering estimates, catalogue prices, general market availability and availability of certified MBE/DBE Firms in the area in which the work is to be performed, other bids or offers and subcontract bids or offers substantiating significant variances between certified MBE/DBE and Non-MBE/DBE costs of participation, and their impact on the overall cost of the contract to the State and any other relevant factors.

The decision-maker may take into account whether a bidder/offeror decided to self-perform subcontract work with its own forces, especially where the self-performed work is Identified Items of Work in the procurement. The decision-maker also may take into account the

performance of other bidders/offerors in meeting the contract. For example, when the apparent successful bidder/offeror fails to meet the contract goal, but others meet it, this reasonably raises the question of whether, with additional reasonable efforts, the apparent successful bidder/offeror could have met the goal. If the apparent successful bidder/offeror fails to meet the goal, but meets or exceeds the average MBE/DBE participation obtained by other bidders/offerors, this, when viewed in conjunction with other factors, could be evidence of the apparent successful bidder/offeror having made Good Faith Efforts.

#### **IV.** Documenting Good Faith Efforts

At a minimum, a bidder/offeror seeking a waiver of the MBE/DBE Goal(s) or a portion thereof must provide written documentation of its Good Faith Efforts, in accordance with COMAR 21.11.03.11, within 10 business days after receiving notice that it is the apparent awardee. The written documentation shall include the following:

#### A. Items of Work (Complete Good Faith Efforts Documentation Form E, Part 2)

A detailed statement of the efforts made to select portions of the work proposed to be performed by certified MBE/DBE Firms in order to increase the likelihood of achieving the stated MBE/DBE Goal(s).

#### B. Outreach/Solicitation/Negotiation

- 1. The record of the bidder's/offeror's compliance with the outreach efforts prescribed by COMAR 21.11.03.09C(2)(a) through (e) and 49 C.F.R. Part 26, Appendix A. (Complete Outreach Efforts Compliance Statement)
- 2. A detailed statement of the efforts made to contact and negotiate with MBE/DBE Firms including:



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 35 of 45

- (a) the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the MBE/DBE Firms who were contacted, with the dates and manner of contacts (letter, fax, email, telephone, etc.) (Complete Good Faith Efforts Form E, Part 3, and submit letters, fax cover sheets, emails, etc. documenting solicitations); and
- (b) a description of the information provided to MBE/DBE Firms regarding the plans, specifications, and anticipated time schedule for portions of the work to be performed and the means used to provide that information.

#### C. Rejected MBE/DBE Firms (Complete Good Faith Efforts Form E, Part 4)

- 1. For each MBE/DBE Firm that the bidder/offeror concludes is not acceptable or qualified, a detailed statement of the reasons for the bidder's/offeror's conclusion, including the steps taken to verify the capabilities of the MBE/DBE and Non-MBE/DBE Firms quoting similar work.
- 2. For each certified MBE/DBE Firm that the bidder/offeror concludes has provided an excessive or unreasonable price, a detailed statement of the reasons for the bidder's/offeror's conclusion, including the quotes received from all MBE/DBE and Non-MBE/DBE firms bidding on the same or comparable work. (**Include copies of all quotes received.**)
- 3. A list of MBE/DBE Firms contacted but found to be unavailable. This list should be accompanied by a Minority Contractor Unavailability Certificate signed by the MBE/DBE contractor or a statement from the bidder/offeror that the MBE/DBE contractor refused to sign the Minority Contractor Unavailability Certificate.

#### D. Other Documentation

- 1. Submit any other documentation requested by the Procurement Officer to ascertain the bidder's/offeror's Good Faith Efforts.
- 2. Submit any other documentation the bidder/offeror believes will help the Procurement Officer ascertain its Good Faith Efforts.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 36 of 45

#### MDOT MBE/DBE FORM E GOOD FAITH EFFORTS GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTATION

#### PART 2 - CERTIFICATION REGARDING GOOD FAITH EFFORTS DOCUMENTATION

PAGE \_\_ OF \_\_\_

Prime Contractor	Project Descri	Project Description	
PARTS 3, 4, AND 5 MU		TTH THIS CERTIFICATE ALC S YOUR WAIVER REQUEST.	ONG WITH ALL DOCUMENTS
and/or subgoal(s), (2) portion of the pertin procurement. I affirm E. I further affirm un	the Disadvantaged nent MBE/DBE p n that I have review nder penalties of pe	Business Enterprise (DBE) participation goal and/or wed the Good Faith Efforts	e (MBE) participation goal participation goal, or (3) a MBE subgoal(s) for this Guidance MBE/DBE Form Parts 3, 4, and 5 of MDOT and belief.
Company Name		Signature of Representat	tive
Address		Printed Name and Title	
City, State and Zip Co	de	Date	
		state-funded procurements. DBE contracts do not have subgoals.	participation goals apply to



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 37 of 45

#### MDOT MBE/DBE FORM E GOOD FAITH EFFORTS GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTATION

## PART 3 – IDENTIFIED ITEMS OF WORK BIDDER/OFFEROR MADE AVAILABLE TO MBE/DBE FIRMS

PAGE \_\_ OF \_\_\_

Prime Contractor	Project Description	Solicitation Number

Identify those items of work that the bidder/offeror made available to MBE/DBE Firms. This includes, where appropriate, those items the bidder/offeror identified and determined to subdivide into economically feasible units to facilitate the MBE/DBE participation. For each item listed, show the anticipated percentage of the total contract amount. It is the bidder's/offeror's responsibility to demonstrate that sufficient work to meet the goal was made available to MBE/DBE Firms, and the total percentage of the items of work identified for MBE/DBE participation equals or exceeds the percentage MBE/DBE goal set for the procurement. Note: If the procurement includes a list of bid items identified during the goal setting process as possible items of work for performance by MBE/DBE Firms, the bidder/offeror should make all of those items of work available to MBE/DBE Firms or explain why that item was not made available. If the bidder/offeror selects additional items of work to make available to MBE/DBE Firms, those additional items should also be included below.

Identified Items of Work	Was this work listed in the procurement?	Does bidder/offeror normally self-perform this work?	Was this work made available to MBE/DBE Firms? If no, explain why?		
	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No		
	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No		
	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No		
	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No		
	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No		
	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No		

Ш	Please	check i	f A	Additional	Sheets	are	attached
---	--------	---------	-----	------------	--------	-----	----------



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 38 of 45

#### MDOT MBE/DBE FORM E GOOD FAITH EFFORTS GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTATION

#### PART 4 – IDENTIFIED MBE/DBE FIRMS AND RECORD OF SOLICITATIONS

PAGE \_\_ OF \_\_\_

<b>Prime Contractor</b>	<b>Project Description</b>	Solicitation Number

Identify the MBE/DBE Firms solicited to provide quotes for the Identified Items of Work made available for MBE/DBE participation. Include the name of the MBE/DBE Firm solicited, items of work for which bids/quotes were solicited, date and manner of initial and follow-up solicitations, whether the MBE/DBE provided a quote, and whether the MBE/DBE is being used to meet the MBE/DBE participation goal. MBE/DBE Firms used to meet the participation goal must be included on the MBE/DBE Participation Schedule, Form B. Note: If the procurement includes a list of the MBE/DBE Firms identified during the goal setting process as potentially available to perform the items of work, the bidder/offeror should solicit all of those MBE/DBE Firms or explain why a specific MBE/DBE was not solicited. If the bidder/offeror identifies additional MBE/DBE Firms who may be available to perform Identified Items of Work, those additional MBE/DBE Firms should also be included below. Copies of all written solicitations and documentation of follow-up calls to MBE/DBE Firms must be attached to this form. If the bidder/offeror used a Non-MBE/DBE or is self-performing the identified items of work, Part 4 must be completed.



#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 39 of 45

Name of Identified MBE/DBE Firm & MBE Classification Firm Name:  MBE Classification (Check only if requesting waiver of MBE subgoal.)  African American- Owned Hispanic American- Owned Asian American- Owned Women-Owned Other MBE Classification	Describe Item of Work Solicited	Initial Solicitation Date & Method  Date:    Mail   Facsimile   Email	Follow-up Solicitation Date & Method  Date:  Phone Mail Facsimile Email	Details for Follow-up Calls  Time of Call:  Spoke With:  Left Message	Quote Rec'd	Quote Used  ☐ Yes ☐ No	Reason Quote Rejected  Used Other MBE/DBE Used Non- MBE/DBE Self- performing
Firm Name:  MBE Classification (Check only if requesting waiver of MBE subgoal.)  African American- Owned Hispanic American- Owned Asian American- Owned Women-Owned Other MBE Classification		Date:      Mail     Facsimile     Email	Date:  □ Phone □ Mail □ Facsimile □ Email	Time of Call:  Spoke With:  Left Message	□ Yes □ No	□ Yes □ No	□ Used Other MBE/DBE □ Used Non- MBE/DBE □ Self- performing

☐ Please check if Additional Sheets are attached.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 40 of 45

#### MDOT MBE/DBE FORM E GOOD FAITH EFFORTS GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTATION

#### PART 5 – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING REJECTED MBE/DBE QUOTES

OF

PAGE

4	•			C .

Prime Contractor	Project Description	Solicitation Number

This form must be completed if Part 3 indicates that a MBE/DBE quote was rejected because the bidder/offeror is using a Non-MBE/DBE or is self-performing the Identified Items of Work. Provide the Identified Items Work, indicate whether the work will be self-performed or performed by a Non-MBE/DBE, and if applicable, state the name of the Non-MBE/DBE. Also include the names of all MBE/DBE and Non-MBE/DBE Firms that provided a quote and the amount of each quote.

Describe Identified Items of Work Not Being Performed by MBE/DBE (Include spec/section number from bid)	Self-performing or Using Non- MBE/DBE (Provide name)	Amount of Non- MBE/DB E Quote	Name of Other Firms who Provided Quotes & Whether MBE/DBE or Non- MBE/DBE	Amount Quoted	Indicate Reason Why MBE/DBE Quote Rejected & Briefly Explain
	□ Self-performing □ Using Non-MBE/DBE	\$	 □ MBE/DBE □ Non-MBE/DBE	\$ 	□ Price □ Capabilities □ Other
	□ Self-performing □ Using Non-MBE/DBE	\$	 □ MBE/DBE □ Non- MBE/DBE	\$	☐ Price ☐ Capabilities ☐ Other
	□ Self-performing □ Using Non-MBE/DBE	\$ 	 □ MBE/DBE □ Non- MBE/DBE	\$	□ Price □ Capabilities □ Other

Please check if Additional Sheets are attached.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 41 of 45

## INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED FOR FEDERALLY ASSISTED CONTRACTS:

(a) Each bidder shall provide the following information:

	Street and/o	r P.O. Box	
	City	State	Zip Code
DBE	Non-DBE	Age of the firmy	vears .
Annual gross	receipts per last ca	lendar year<\$500,	000\$500,000-1,000,00
\$1,000,0	00-3,000,000	_\$3,000,000-5,000,000 _	\$5,000,000-10,000,000
>\$10,00	0,000		
NAME OF FI	RM:		
	Street and/o	r P.O. Box	
	City	State	Zip Code
DBE	Non-DBE	Age of the firmy	vears .
Annual gross	receipts per last ca	lendar year<\$500,	000\$500,000-1,000,00
	000-3,000,000	_\$3,000,000-5,000,000 _	\$5,000,000-10,000,000
\$1,000,0			
	00,000		
> \$10,00	,		
> \$10,00	00,000 RM:		
> \$10,00	,		
> \$10,00	RM:		Zip Code
> \$10,00 NAME OF FI ————	RM:Street and/o	r P.O. Box	•
> \$10,00  NAME OF FI   DBE	RM:Street and/o CityNon-DBE	State  Age of the firm y	•
> \$10,00  NAME OF FI  DBE  Annual gross	Street and/o  City  Non-DBE receipts per last ca	State  Age of the firm y lendar year<\$500,	vears



#### CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 42 of 45

	Street and	/or P.O. Box	
	City	State	Zip Code
Annual gross\$1,000,0	receipts per last 000-3,000,000		years 0,000\$500,000-1,000,000 \$5,000,000-10,000,000
> \$10,00			
		/or P.O. Box	
	City	State	Zip Code
DBE	M DDD		
Annual gross	receipts per last 000-3,000,000		
Annual gross\$1,000,0> \$10,00	receipts per last 6 000-3,000,000 00,000	calendar year<\$500	\$5,000,000-1,000,00 \$5,000,000-10,000,000
Annual gross\$1,000,0> \$10,00	receipts per last 6 000-3,000,000 00,000	calendar year<\$500 \$3,000,000-5,000,000	\$500,000\$500,000-1,000,00 \$5,000,000-10,000,000
Annual gross\$1,000,0> \$10,00	receipts per last 6 000-3,000,000 00,000	calendar year<\$500 \$3,000,000-5,000,000	\$5,000,000-1,000,00 \$5,000,000-10,000,000

copy.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 43 of 45

## EXTRA WORK, CONTRACT TIME, BONDING, LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, AND PROPOSAL GUARANTY

**EXTRA WORK.** It is further proposed to do all "Extra Work" which may be required to complete the work contemplated at unit prices or lump sum prices to be agreed upon in writing prior to starting such extra work, or if such prices or sums cannot be agreed upon, to perform such work on a Force Account basis as specified in TC-7.03.

**CONTRACT TIME.** To commence work as specified in the "Notice to Proceed" and to prosecute the work to complete the contract within/or before

70 (working days)

#### <u>IFB PFPContractDate</u> (calendar date)

Any delay in awarding or the execution of this contract will not be considered as a basis for any monetary claim, however, an extension of time may be considered by the Administration, if warranted.

**BONDING.** When the Contractor's bid is \$100,000 or more, the Contractor shall furnish a Payment Bond and a Performance Bond in the full amount of the Contract Award as security for the construction and completion of the contract in conformance with the Plans, Standard Specifications, revisions thereto, General Provisions and Special Provisions.

To guarantee all of the work performed under this contract to be done in conformance with the Standard Specifications, revisions thereto, General Provisions and Special Provisions in a good workmanlike manner and to renew or repair any work which may be rejected due to defective materials or workmanship, prior to final completion and acceptance of the work, also we have the equipment, labor, supervision and financial capacity to perform this contract either with our organization or with Subcontractors.

**LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.** The Contractor is hereby advised that liquidated damages in the amount of

500 dollars per working day

500 dollars per calendar day

will be assessed for unauthorized extensions beyond the contracted time of completion.



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 44 of 45

**PROPOSAL GUARANTY.** A bid security is not required on Contract Proposals under \$100,000.

A bid security totaling at least five percent (5%) of the bid amount will be required on contracts of \$100,000 or over.

Acceptable forms of security for bid guaranty shall be per GP-2.07.

Enclosed herewith, find bid security based on at least five percent (5%) of the aggregate amount of the bid submitted, and made payable to the "State of Maryland". This bid security is a Proposal Guaranty (which is understood will be forfeited in the event the contract is not executed, if awarded to the signer of this affidavit).



CONTRACT NO. MO4665112 PROPOSAL FORM PACKET — FEDERAL 45 of 45

#### **Commercial Nondiscrimination**

- A. As a condition of entering into this Agreement, Contractor represents and warrants that it will comply with the State's Commercial Nondiscrimination Policy, as described under Title 19 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. As part of such compliance, Contractor may not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, sexual identity, genetic information or an individual's refusal to submit to a genetic test or make available the results of a genetic test or on the basis of disability, or other unlawful forms of discrimination in the solicitation, selection, hiring, or commercial treatment of subcontractors, vendors, suppliers, or commercial customers, nor shall Contractor retaliate against any person for reporting instances of such discrimination. Contractor shall provide equal opportunity for subcontractors, vendors, and suppliers to participate in all of its public sector and private sector subcontracting and supply opportunities, provided that this clause does not prohibit or limit lawful efforts to remedy the effects of marketplace discrimination that have occurred or are occurring in the marketplace. Contractor understands that a material violation of this clause shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and may result in termination of this Agreement, disqualification of Contractor from participating in State contracts, or other sanctions. This clause is not enforceable by or for the benefit of, and creates no obligation to, any third party.
- B. The Contractor agrees to include the clause contained in subsection (A), above, in all subcontracts, regardless of the tier.
- C As a condition of entering into this Agreement, upon the request of the Commission on Civil Rights, and only after the filing of a complaint against Contractor under Title 19 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended from time to time, Contractor agrees to provide within 60 days after the request a complete list of the names of all subcontractors, vendors, and suppliers that Contractor has used in the past 4 years on any of its contracts that were undertaken within the State of Maryland, including the total dollar amount paid by Contractor on each subcontract or supply contract. Contractor further agrees to cooperate in any investigation conducted by the State pursuant to the State's Commercial Nondiscrimination Policy as set forth under Title 19 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, and to provide any documents relevant to any investigation that are requested by the State. Contractor understands that violation of this clause is a material breach of this Agreement and may result in contract termination, disqualification by the State from participating in State contracts, and other sanctions.